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Corporate Information
NRIER

Board of Directors

Executive Directors*

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) @®

Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen (Vice Chairman) (FCPA)
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung SBS, BBS

Mr. Cheng Tai Po

Mr. Lin Ching Hua

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew GBs, SBs, Jp V23

Mr. Li Wai Keung @3

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Jp®

Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel s8s, mH, Jp®

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Hui Chun Yip (CPA)

Company Secretary
Ms. Tse Man Yu Michelle (FCPA)

Auditor
Ernst & Young

Legal Advisors

As to Hong Kong law
Linklaters

Reed Smith Richards Butler

As to China law
Commerce & Finance Law Offices

(1)  Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of Remuneration Committee
(3) Member of Nomination Committee

*  Mr. Song Chuan resigned as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group with effect from 1 February 2019.

*  Mr. Zhao Lidong has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group with effect from 1 February 2019.
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Corporate Information (Continued)

NEER ()

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Export-Import Bank of China

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Registered Office
Room 2205, Sun Life Tower
The Gateway, 15 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Listing Information

Share Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1668

Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 5.75% 3 years senior notes due 2020

The Company’s 10.875% 2 1/4 years senior notes due 2020
The Company's 6.75% 5 years senior notes due 2021

The Company'’s 7.25% 3 years senior notes due 2021

The Company’s 11.875% 2 years senior notes due 2021
The Company’s 7.25% 5 years senior notes due 2022

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

Website

www.chinasouthcity.com

Investor Relations
Telephone: (852) 3188-3111

Fax: (852) 3188-1323
Email: ir@chinasouthcity.com
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Birdview - CSC Shenzhen
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China South City Shenzhen

China South City Shenzhen (“CSC Shenzhen”), the Group’s first project,
is situated at the Pinghu Logistics Base in Longgang District, Shenzhen.
Shenzhen City, one of the four first-tier cities in China, is located at the
heart of the Greater Bay Area amid an extensive transportation network
with about 13.02 million permanent resident population in 2018,
accounting for 60.11% of the total increase in the Greater Bay Area. In
2018, the regional GDP has rapidly increased by around 7.5% compared
to the previous year, the fastest growth rate among the first four first-
tier cities in China. Its total GDP ranked the fifth over Asian cites. Located
in the northeast of Shenzhen, Longgang District recorded a regional GDP
of RMB420 billion in 2018 and ranked the second in the city with the
top growth rate of 11%. With the local government further developing
Longgang District as an innovation center in the east of Shenzhen, its
ancillary infrastructure such as logistics, healthcare and education will
continue to advance, bringing more convenience to tenants of CSC
Shenzhen. Transportation around the project has also been improving.
CSC Shenzhen is only 2.6 kilometers away from the Pinghu Railway
Station. According to Shenzhen Metro Planning, subway line 10 passing
through CSC Shenzhen is expected to be open for traffic by 2020. Upon
completion, it will generate more business opportunities and uplift visitor
traffic for CSC Shenzhen.
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The project is situated at the Pinghu Logistics Park in Longgang District
of Shenzhen, occupying a site area of approximately 1.06 million square
meters (“sq. m.”). As at 31 March 2019, CSC Shenzhen had acquired
100% attributable gross floor area (“GFA") of its total planned GFA of
approximately 2.64 million sg. m., and had completed approximately 2.39
million sq. m. of construction including trade centers, residential ancillary,
multi-purpose offices and apartments, logistics park, hotels, etc. CSC
Shenzhen is now in operation.

Positioned as a modern large-scale integrated logistics and trading
platform to serve the Greater Bay Area, CSC Shenzhen covers a wide
spectrum of product range, including textile and clothing, leather and
accessories, electronic parts, printing, paper products and packaging,
metals and chemicals, plastic materials, hotel supplies, tea and teaware,
cross-border products, e-commerce, outlets, home furnishing, children
education, produce and flower market, etc., on its trade center premises,
complementary with various facilities and services on site, such as banking
and finance, hotels and restaurants, governmental bodies, leisure and
entertainment, etc. In addition, CSC Shenzhen provides micro-credit
service for on-site small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs"), assisting
them in resolving financing difficulties for business development.

The Group's headquarters located in CSC Shenzhen
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Trade center plaza 1 in CSC Shenzhen
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China South City Nanchang

China South City Nanchang (“CSC Nanchang”) is located at Honggutan
New District of Nanchang, the capital of Jiangxi Province. Situated at the
transportation hub for the Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River Delta, the
project is readily accessible to suppliers, manufacturers and merchants via
major highways, the largest port on the Gan River and a complete freight
network which includes a cargo marshal yard, a container terminus and
an international airport, coupled with Nanchang West Railway Station —
a principal high-speed rail station just 1.2 km away. As a new business
center of Nanchang, Honggutan New District is becoming more influential
in administrative, commercial and cultural aspects day by day. In addition,
the gradual completion of local amenities is driving visitor traffic and
generating business opportunities, laying a solid foundation for the
development of CSC Nanchang.

CSC Nanchang has a total planned land area of approximately 2.61
million sq. m. and a total planned GFA of approximately 6.87 million
sg. m.. As at 31 March 2019, CSC Nanchang had a total planned GFA
of approximately 4.79 million sq. m. of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 2.40 million sg. m. completed, including
trade centers, residential ancillary, logistics park, public facilities like
primary school, etc.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEriH =R AR A 7
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CSC Nanchang is now in operation, and covers industries including FEEEEHDIRALE - BRXHPOLMRENLEE
building and decoration materials, small commodities, textile and clothing, — EEEIEREEM « IES - $RE  FEFA
leather and accessories, healthy and green products, outlets, etc., on its  f2FE4AE R MM BRI -

trade center premises.

As the first provincial-level E-commerce Model Base in Jiangxi Province  FIEZEEMIEA/ LIS B8 R E T ~ei & &
and state-level University Students’ E-commerce Business Incubator ~ BISRHRE S AS4E F &AM A - BT
in Nanchang, CSC Nanchang has successfully attracted numerous — LAZREKINIRAN TR Z B2 A S - WS =50
e-commerce enterprises to move in since its establishment and cooperated K AYE @ BBEBEARLETELEBER » AIEE
with tertiary institutes to proactively consolidate its resources in wholesale — FIAIZE DR ERAFE DR EE - HEIEE AR/
market and e-commerce, so as to create a closer cooperation between — {PEEHEITER [Z 4 o

the e-commerce startups and manufacturing enterprises, thereby helping

SMEs within the project to transform and upgrade.
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Residential ancillary (Xizhanruidu) in CSC Nanchang Birdview - Trade centers in CSC Nanchang
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Trade center plaza 2 in CSC Nanning

REEERRN2RR5ES

e~

et L Lt T T

&

Y
[T
38
5
dth
43
]

EH>mm—amsS

China South City Nanning

China South City Nanning (“CSC Nanning”) is located at Jiangnan District
of Nanning, the capital of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, a
critical gateway between China and the Association of Southeast Asian
Nations (“ASEAN") countries. The project is easily accessible by railway
stations, highways and an international airport. Strategically located in
close proximity to Southeast Asia and enjoying the advantage of a tariff
waiver on cross-border trade activities within the China-ASEAN Free Trade
Area, CSC Nanning endeavors to serve as a key hub for cross-border trade
catering to the demand from the Northern Bay Region and Southeast Asia.
CSC Nanning was conferred as “China-ASEAN Plaza” in 2011, aiming to
forge a regional trade and logistics hub. CSC Nanning has been awarded as
“National AAA Class Tourist Attraction” as well.

CSC Nanning has a total planned net land area of approximately 1.83
million sq. m. and a total planned GFA of approximately 4.88 million
sg. m. As at 31 March 2019, CSC Nanchang had a total planned GFA
of approximately 2.48 million sq. m. of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 1.95 million sq. m. completed, including
trade centers, residential ancillary, multi-purpose offices and apartments,
logistics park, exhibition center, public facilities like primary school, etc.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3HiZRGR A 7

SEE o)
AEERRCNEALRE ARG EmEm LEE
EPHHEFEREKER EANEERE HEEANE
U mRARE KBRS E - SREAR] o A HERLAS
RE AR EHIEES  SERFE-REAHE
FENERE SRR - EEEREWREIKA
FEEMBEIREZEM - DAm R Ib30E & 3 R A
TR o EEMBMN20MEHRETF[HE -REESH
RPN EEITEN AR EDEYRENR © B
BHER I ELE Al BIRAAARIRESE | ©

FEERHAREFGHEEL183ETF K - 4R
ZEEMIBEL488E F 7K - HE201943H31H -
FEERHEBEARIEEMBEN2488 T 15 KD
T WEEKL195BFHKER  BREARRS
R EE - ZVEEREAS EE - RS
Dy s AR NEE o

4



CSC Nanning is now in operation, and covers industries including textile
and clothing, small commodities, ASEAN products, home furnishing, tea
and teaware, e-commerce, groceries, automobiles and parts, outlets, etc.,
on its trade center premises. Through organizing a series of exhibitions,
such as the China ASEAN Expo and Light Industrial Exhibition, Folk Culture
Festival cum Expo, traffic flow to the project as well as regional brand
recognition of the project were enhanced. In addition, the commercial
complex, 1668 Square, launched by CSC Nanning, has commenced
operation, so as to satisfy demands on entertainment, leisure and
shopping from the residents of the community and, at the same time,
enhance CSC Nanning's overall commercial attributes. CSC Nanning also
provides micro-credit service for on-site SMEs, assisting them in resolving
financing difficulties in business development.

Office tower of 1668 Square in CSC Nanning
MREEERN1668E SR T2
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Trade center plaza 3 in CSC Nanning
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China South City Xi‘an

China South City Xi‘an (“CSC Xi'an") is located at the Xi'an International
Trade and Logistics Park in Shaanxi Province. As a local key project, the
Xi'an International Trade and Logistics Park is an open economic pilot zone
and a core area for modern service industry, aiming to become the largest
international transit hub and logistics distribution center along the Silk
Road Economic Belt and an important strategic platform for the “Belt and
Road” initiative. In addition, the Xi‘an International Trade and Logistics
Park is one of the three largest clusters of China (Shaanxi) Pilot Free Trade
Zone. Benefiting from such geographic advantages, CSC Xi‘an is highly
accessible via the Xi‘an City Expressway and Beijing-Kunming Expressway,
Lianyungang-Khorgos Expressway, Shaanxi-Shanghai Expressway, Baotou-
Maoming Expressway and other national highways, forming an intricate
spider network which opens to all directions. Besides, the strategic
location of CSC Xi‘an is connected to a railway container terminal and
the largest bonded area in the north western region of China, along with
two planned subway lines that cross the project site. Subway line 3, which
passes through CSC Xi'an, has commenced operation. In addition, that a
new stadium is slated to be built to host the 14th National Games of the
People’s Republic of China in 2021 nearby CSC Xi‘an, and the subway
line connected to the venue have launched for development. This subway
line and the new stadium will generate more business opportunities and
visitor traffic for the Xi‘an International Trade and Logistics Park and thus
further enhance the value of CSC Xi‘an.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEriH =R AR A 7
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CSC Xi'an has a total planned land area of approximately 10.00 million
sg. m. and the total planned GFA of approximately 17.50 million sq. m.. As
at 31 March 2019, CSC Xi'an had a total planned GFA of approximately
4.68 million sg. m. of land acquired, of which the construction of
approximately 1.79 million sq. m. completed, including trade centers,
logistics park, supporting facilities, etc.

CSC Xi'an is now in operation, and covers industries including hardware
and machinery, curtains and fabrics, textile and clothing, leather and fur,
automobiles and parts, building and decoration materials, outlets, cross-
border e-commerce, Central Asia and ASEAN product exhibition center,
etc., on its trade center premises. Leveraging its geographical advantage
in the starting point of the Silk Road Economic Belt, CSC Xi‘an is actively
poised to capture the immense opportunities arising from the “Belt and
Road” initiative.

PZERMRAR B HEEL1,0008F 5K - 4

REIEEMIEL1,7508F 5K - #Z=2019F3 A31
H AXEEBCESERIEEERENI8ETH
Kyt WEFERA1798F 1 KER - BERE R
RSF0 - MnEREMEERES

AREMPRERALE - AmXHTOMBRENLE
XECRISKE FEHRNME  HERE KEX
T ORBEAR  KEEM  BERE BRER -+
TRERBEMETT LS  BEERGAZBEBES
ERAMEVERY  AREENRGES - ULE
[—&— B BB RBEAREK -

The multi-purpose office and apartment complex —1668 Square under construction next to subway station
RN ZIN AR R AEAR S B8 — 1668 EH AN Bl UL O

Annual Report 2018/19 F 3k

13



14

Harbin 15

China South City Harbin

Located at the Daowai District of Harbin, the capital of Heilongjiang
Province, China South City Harbin (“CSC Harbin") fully utilizes its
advantageous location in Northeast China, a premier hub for cross-
border trade with countries in Northeast Asia. Its proximity to the China-
Russia border helps to facilitate economic activities within the region.
Leveraging the opportunities arising from the area’s development
potential, CSC Harbin endeavors to become the largest integrated
logistics and trade center in Northeast China. Leveraging its own
geographical location and advantages of local industries, CSC Harbin
actively promotes the development of regional economy and trade, for
example, the cooperation with merchants from Khabarovsk Russia, the
signing of “Wuchang City Rice Official Flagship Store” with the municipal
government, the signing of strategic cooperation with Anhui Chamber of
Commerce, etc. It is also proactively to become the Northeast Asian green
food exhibition and trading hub. In addition, Xinxiangfang North Station
of Harbin — Mudanjiang high speed rail (M4 S ##rE DL, only a
couple of kilometers from CSC Harbin, commenced operation by the end
of 2018 and will bring more visitors and business opportunities to the
project.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3HiZRGR A 7
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CSC Harbin has a total planned land area of approximately 10.00 million
sg. m. and the total planned GFA of approximately 12.00 million sq. m.. As
at 31 March 2019, CSC Harbin had a total planned GFA of approximately
5.61 million sq. m. of land acquired, of which the constructions of
approximately 1.83 million sq. m. completed, including trade centers,
residential ancillary, logistics park, supporting facilities, etc.

CSC Harbin is now in operation, and covers industries including hardware
and construction materials, chemicals, machinery, automobiles and parts,
green food, small commodities, hotel supplies, leather and fur, outlets,
e-commerce, etc., on its trade center premises. Among these, China
Harbin Green Food International Expo City (fFE#&ZE R H (MERE) BEER
HE ) on the project, aimed to become an influential one-stop green
food base with economies of scale advantage, has been certified and
licensed by China Green Food Development Center.
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China South City Zhengzhou

China South City Zhengzhou (“CSC Zhengzhou”) is located in Zhengzhou,
the capital of Henan Province, adjacent to the Airport Economy Zone
("AEZ") of Zhengzhou, the only state-level AEZ with a complete network
which includes an international airport, high-speed train, intercity train,
metro and highway to act as an integrated transport hub to provide
seamless connectivity. The project is highly accessible and enjoys extensive
transportation links — it is a mere 16 km away from Zhengzhou Xinzheng
International Airport and only a couple of kilometers away from the
Beijing-Guangzhou Railway Freight Station and the Beijing-Hong Kong-
Macao Highway. With subway south line 2 connecting downtown area
to the airport across CSC Zhengzhou with three stations currently in full
operation, and the main road (Zhonghua Road) to Xinzheng City Center
open to traffic, more business opportunities and visitor traffic will be
generated for the project.

CSC Zhengzhou has a total planned net land area of approximately 7.00
million sq. m., and total planned GFA of approximately 12.00 million
sg. m.. As at 31 March 2019, CSC Zhengzhou had a total planned GFA
of approximately 9.76 million sq. m. of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 3.05 million sq. m. completed, including
trade centers, residential ancillary, logistics park, public facilities like park,
etc.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEr3HiZRGR A 7

Birdview - CSC Zhengzhou
EDM ZE I R R

B0 2 R I

BN ERWAION A A S EIM T - AR NS
REGEERR -ZERBRDHENZEE ——EBRR
FMEBLEFRAERR  SRERMZ  SH - W
BREEE  E RS RARN 8 TERGFAEAN
A - BMEZAEMNERSE Bz A
N BB AS AR B 16 R E - B RERREE
WERARBRABITRBBARZE - REMNERS
WARE = EE= 2SR AR AR E 2R
B EBREHRSTHRONTERITCHE - AEIM
ERRBEEZHREER

S0 2E m S AR AR B R HE B AR XV 7008 F 5 K - 4858
EIEEMBAA1,2008 F 5K  H220194F3 A31
B BMEERCESAAZREEEEN76E T
Kyt o WEFERAI058 F 5 KER - BERE®
RHN - F%E - URERAHZEINARESE -



CSC Zhengzhou is now in operation, and covers industries including
building and decoration materials, small commodities, hardware and
machinery, home furnishing, automobiles and parts, non-staple food,
clothing, outlets, e-commerce, etc., on its trade center premises. CSC
Zhengzhou will speed up the development of residential ancillary and
commercial facilities such as multi-purpose offices and apartments, in
order to meet the local demands.

In response to the local policy to support innovation and entrepreneurship,
CSC Zhengzhou is also actively developing emerging industries and new
types of businesses. Among them, CSC Zhengzhou has gradually become
a "Provincial-level E-commerce Demonstration Base” since 2016, “Henan
Province Cross-border E-Commerce Demonstration Base”, and “Henan
Province Innovation Model Bases for Micro and Small Enterprises”.
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Residential ancillary (Zhongyuan) in CSC Zhengzhou
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Birdview - CSC Hefei
AIEERSSHE

China South City Hefei

China South City Hefei (“CSC Hefei”) is located at Anhui Feixi Economic
Development Zone of Hefei (formerly Anhui Taohua Industrial Park),
the capital of Anhui Province, and the transport and economic hub at
the heart of Eastern China. Leveraging the advantageous geographical
location, CSC Hefei will enjoy more visitors and business opportunities.
CSC Hefei also benefits from the well-developed infrastructure, together
with a planned transportation system of railways, highways and river
transportation across China. The subway south line 4 across CSC Hefei
will be accessible in 2021.

CSC Hefei has a total planned net land area of approximately 10.00
million sg. m. with a total planned GFA of approximately 12.00 million
sg. m.. As at 31 March 2019, CSC Hefei had a total planned GFA
of approximately 5.99 million sq. m. of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 2.49 million sq. m. completed, including
trade center, residential ancillary, logistics park, public facilities like
secondary school, etc.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEriH =R AR A 7

BIEERH

BREERBUNLBEEEAETICAKLERERE
(R%& : METXRR)  HREEGEAMEERMEH L
R - RERER MR DRI o R E
M IRA B KA E RE — T HRARERH - SIEE
ARET TEEMERERIOH - SR EREIAE
B BRARNMITEERAGEKEETE - K o &
B IR ) AR R AR A N 2021 R IESUEE -

AIEER R AR E R EREL1,0008 F 5K - 4
MEEEBMBELAB1,2008F 5K - BE2019F3 A
310 - AEERKEBSARSEEEELS9E T
FoKR 4 - WETERA2498 F KRR - BIERE
BmRZF 0 FEE - URERAEZEINFEE o



Residential ancillary (Zijingmingdu) and the secondary school in CSC Hefei

RERERSNEERESH B RH 2

CSC Hefeiis now in operation, and covers industries including
automobiles and parts, hardware and machinery, building and decoration
materials, textile and clothing, hotel supplies, outlet, small commodities,
non-staple food, etc., on its trade center premises.

As Hefei further plays its role as the political, economic, cultural and
financial center at the heart of Eastern China, CSC Hefei aims to capture
opportunities arising from the area and develop into a major large-scale
integrated logistics and trade center in the region.
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China South City Chongqing

China South City Chongging (“CSC Chongging”) is strategically located
at Banan District of Chongging, the only direct-administered municipality
in midwestern China, and the essential location connecting both “Belt
and Road” initiative and “Yangtze River Economic Belt”. CSC Chongging
is also the Group’s first project in direct-administered municipality. The
project is highly accessible to the city center and other regions given its
strategic location in the Chongging Highway Logistics Base, the state-
level transportation infrastructure and large highway base in the western
region. Such location is also the starting point of national strategies of
“The New International Land-sea Trade Corridor” and “Chongging-ASEAN
International Logistics Channel”. The transportation network around the
project has been developed rapidly, coupled with the growing maturity
of business in Banan district, laying a good foundation for the future
transportation and commercial environment of the project. Following
Chongging government’s announcement that the development of new
town in the core Southern District, where CSC Chonggqing is located, it is
expected the regional growth potential will be on the rise.

China South City Holdings Limited ZEriH =R AR A 7

Street view in CSC Chongging
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Residential ancillary (Bananhuafu) in CSC Chongging
REBERHNEEREDBER

CSC Chongging has a total planned net land area of approximately
5.9 million sq. m. with a total GFA of approximately 13.1 million
sg. m.. As at 31 March 2019, CSC Chongging had a total planned GFA
of approximately 6.50 million sq. m. of land acquired, of which the
construction of approximately 1.88 million sq. m. completed, including
trade centers, residential ancillary, logistics park, public facilities like
primary and secondary schools, etc.

CSC Chongging is now in operation, and covers industries such as
small commodities, hardware and machinery, hotel supplies, building
and decoration materials, textiles and clothing, automobile and parts,
lightings and lamps, outlets, metals, cultural tourism, etc., on its trade
center premises. There are CSC Chongging South West University and
CSC Primary School and CSC China Junior High School established on
the project to cope with the on-site demand in course of development.
With the opening of the two schools in September 2018, in addition to
attracting the flow of people to CSC Chongging, it drives the need of
various facilities for living, which in turn further accelerates construction
pace and development on the project.
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Financial Highlights
IRE

(in HK$'000F %)
Revenue
ON
10,274,255
9,405,370
2018
7,838,510
2017
6,136,262
2016
9,757,767
2015
Net assets value
BEERE
36,149,827
2010 [
36,400,754
2018
28,479,391
2017
26,368,465
2016
25,021,816
2015
China South City Holdings Limited ZEEHIER AR A T

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

FRAER ABGERE

3,250,962
2019 [

4,511,679
2018
4,322,626
2017
3,537,012
2016
3,727,872

2015

Core net profit attributable to owners of the parent

B2 FHEE ABAEROFEFE

1,749,575

20 [
1,608,548
2018
1,351,212
2017
1,205,782
2016
1,854,273

2015



Financial Highlights (Continued)

PMBRE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 2018 Approximate
BZE3A3MHLEE HK$'000 HK$'000 Change %
FTHERT FET HEA 08 %
Contracted sales BRIHE 14,677,062 12,025,886 22.0
Revenue WA 10,274,255 9,405,370 9.2
Among which, Recurring income Hep: FEEIRA 2,314,884 2,019,976 14.6
Gross profit margin EF=E 43% 43%
Profit attributable to owners ISUNGIE 2PN/
of the parent FE 3,250,962 4,511,679 -27.9
Core net profit attributable to S ARER ARG
owners of the parent* R0 F A * 1,749,575 1,608,548 8.8
Earnings per share — Basic TR BRI — F AR HK40.33 centsi& 1l HK56.35 centsi& il
Cash and bank balances** e RIRTTIER > 9,359,772 10,655,692
Gearing ratio BARBELE 68.9% 77.4%

Proposed final dividend per share

BURRHR S (BA)

HK5.0 centsi&Al

HK5.0 centsi Il

* Mainly represents the net profit attributable to owners of the parent excluding fair value gains on investment properties and related tax effects,
provision for impairment of goodwill, provision for impairment loss of available-for-sale investments and loss on redemption of senior notes, etc.
FERRRAREDMELATEANSREABBEZE  BERERE  THESSRREAERENELELZRBEBSNEAREE AR
1EFRE -

**  Represents cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.

RERERBFESEBEYREIRHRS -

Contracted Sales by Projects
REBESENHEE

18%
149 6% 17% ’
10% ‘ 5%
10%
90/0 . 2°/l
12% 5% 34% ° 10%
FY2015/16 FY2017/18 39
2015/16 B L EEE 2017/18BI N EEE 4%
6% HK$6,628 million ° HK$12,026 million °
66,2855 7T 8% 6% 120.261E8 7T
8% 2% 14% '
[ ' 5%
9% 7%
FY2014/15
FY2018/19
201415 BF B FY2016/17 2018/198 K
H'<ﬁ31'23121?1=%5g7|%0n 2016/ 17 BF K HK$ 14,677 million
o HK$8,636 million 146.77185 7T
86.36/E/87T
® Shenzhen J&3I| ©® Nanchang B & Nanning FJ 2 ©® Chongging E &

® Xi'an A% © Harbin BMEE Zhengzhou ZB/1| Hefei & 1
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, together with its subsidiaries,
| report herewith the consolidated annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Over the past year, both domestic and international environment
experienced intricate and profound changes. The international community
witnessed the resurgence of unilateralism and protectionism and a lack
of growth momentum in global economic and trade. The escalating trade
friction between China and the US put considerable downward pressure
on the Chinese economy. The national economy entered the first quarter
of 2019 with a stable start under a growing number of positive factors in
the economic environment as well as improving market expectations and
confidence, achieving a 6.4% year-on-year GDP growth which exceeded
market expectation. The Chinese economy is signaling further stability as
the economic structure continuously optimizes and effects from policies
are gradually revealing. China recorded a Purchasing Managers’ Index
(PMI) of 50.1% and a New Orders Index of 51.4% in April, both figures
remaining in the expansion territory and indicating the overall stable
market demand in the manufacturing sector.

During the Year, real estate policy control in China was confronted by a
complex macro-economic environment and unstable market, which in
turn caused the market to call for greater emphasis on market regulation
and rectifying speculation on property to ensure that reasonable housing
demands were met. Despite a new record high in real estate transaction
volume under the controlling policies, such tightened policies have
impaired the growth momentum among real estate enterprises, as they
recorded slower year-on-year growth rates. Some major Mainland real
estate players have expanded their service offerings from residential
development to areas such as apartments, logistics and commercial
properties, as well as property service. Stimulated by the national policy
of supply-side structural reform, these enterprises have transformed their
business models and extended their presence to relevant industries such
as property service, business and tourism, culture and sports as well as
finance on top of real estate development.

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

That the business transformation these industry-leading enterprises
direct coincides with the “Trade and Logistics +” model that has been
persevered by China South City over the years. The years of hard work has
enabled the Group to sustain a diversified and flexible business model in
concert with national development strategies. China South City managed
to replicate the model of its CSC Shenzhen project to multiple strategic
regions nationwide. Forward-looking to the prospect in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”), the Group
positioned the pilot project for its unique business model in the first-tier
city, Shenzhen. Besides, CSC Shenzhen is situated at Pinghu, Shenzhen,
laid on “Qianhai Houlu (Pinghu) Extension Area” (Fil/&1& R (SE#)IHER),
which is the sole official cooperation area entitled to the same preferential
policy as businesses in Qianhai, as well as the heart of the central
city cluster among Shenzhen, Dongguan and Huizhou. Furthermore,
in response to Pinghu old town renovation plan, China South City is
proactively in negotiation with government authorities on renovation
measures, for the benefit from the sublimation of post-renovation Pinghu
area.

China South City also benefits from the strategic opportunity from
national “Belt and Road Initiative”. Apart from the Group’s projects
being afoot in key participating cities such as Xi‘an, Chongging and
Shenzhen, CSC Harbin situated in the Northeast Asia market under
the national “Belt and Road Initiative”, serves as a bridge for economic
collaboration between China-Eurasian Economic Union. Besides, CSC
Nanning, strategically located adjacent to Southeast Asia, benefits from
the preferential policy on cross-border trading activities devised by the
“China-ASEAN Free Trade Zone".

At present, the Group's layout in eight Mainland cities highly adhere to
important national strategies such as the “Greater Bay Area”, the “Belt
and Road Initiative” and the “Yangtze River Economic Belt”. While the
Group's eight projects grow more mature, and some of which are entitled
as provincial or municipal key projects, China South City would quickly
seize market opportunities amidst industry transformation.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

Results and Dividends

Notwithstanding the fluctuations in the overall economic environment,
China South City continued to consolidate its foundation and make steady
progress during the Year. Striving to improve its organizational structure
and team building, China South City has established standardized systems
on various fronts and prepared more scientific and rigorous management
measures and incentive mechanism, all of which laid a solid foundation
for FY2019/20. During the Year, the Group recorded a notable increase
of 22% to HK$14,677.1 million in contracted sales compared with last
year (FY2017/18: HK$12,025.9 million). Revenue grew by HK$868.9
million to HK$10,274.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$9,405.4 million), out
of which recurring revenue rose by HK$294.9 million to HK$2,314.9
million (FY2017/18: HK$2,020.0 million) with evident growth of 53.2%
and 32.7% in segments of property management and warehousing and
logistics respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent recorded HK$3,251.0 million
(FY2017/18: HK$4,511.7 million), while core net profit attributable to
owners of the parent (excluding fair value gains on investment properties
and related tax effects, provision for impairment of goodwill, provision for
impairment loss of available-for-sale investments and loss on redemption
of senior notes, etc.) was HK$1,749.6 million (FY2017/18: HK$1,608.5
million). Basic earnings per share was HK40.33 cents (FY2017/18:
HK56.35 cents).

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per
share for FY2018/19 (FY2017/18: HK5.0 cents per share with scrip option)
subject to approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM") to be held by the Company on 13 September 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

Review of the Market and Operations
Emphasizing on Merchants Recruitment,
Strengthening Operation and Establishing
Commercial Complexes

In a bid to capture market opportunities brought about by industry
upgrade and transformation and support its long-term development,
China South City carried out its strategy of “Emphasizing on Merchants
Recruitment and Strengthening Operation” by establishing its business
management division and investment development division, enabling
more detailed work division in respect of project development and
merchants recruitment, together with more precise and focused
execution. The newly established entities also allow the Group to further
improve its management in terms of strategy, organizational structure
and business scope. The business management division is responsible for
merchants recruitment and property management, with a professional
team responsible for the prospecting and recruitment of tenants that can
generate positive synergy for China South City projects. The investment
development division focuses on project development, responsible for
the construction of various properties that are required in different stages
of China South City projects. Furthermore, the Group has enhanced
digitalization and process management, effectively mastering project
nodes to ensure construction quality and safety, whilst continuing to
intensify cost control by fully establishing a target cost management
system.

As a leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated logistics and
trade centers in China, China South City has worked out a diversified and
flexible business model to ensure stable revenue stream and sustainable
business development for the Group. With a project portfolio that covers
integrated logistics and trade centers supported by commercial and
residential ancillary facilities, the Group successfully replicated its business
model to establish strategic presence in a first-tier city, major provincial
capitals and a direct-administered municipality in China to cater to tenants
from different sectors with various types of business.

Leveraging a unique business model that provides tenants and visitors with
diverse business and supporting services, the Group makes continuous
strategic adjustments and optimizes business priorities according to
the development stage of each project and local market demands. The
Group has also tapped new sectors such as education to attract premium
tenants, and further improve tenant portfolio to safeqguard the future
development of the China South City brand. In addition, the Group has
successfully optimized its operation system by introducing a number of
new operating revenue sources and ramped up its rental collection rate
during the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

As more new projects are developed, and existing projects becoming
more mature, China South City also pays attention to the incubation
of strategic emerging industries and the construction of commercial
complexes. The Group has been in talks with industry associations and
chambers of commerce over individual innovative high-tech industries
(including startups), with an aim to upgrade its commercial service for
industry cultivation, clustering and integration. During the Year, the
Group stepped up its efforts to capture the opportunities of the market
by developing multi-purpose office and apartment ancillary. The Group
also provides with residential facility and property management service.
Together they stimulated market demand, which has facilitated the
development of the “China South City Ecosystem”.

Formulating Timely and Flexible Business Strategies
to Promote Stable Growth of Business

As a leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated logistics
and trade centers in China, the Group continued to develop its five core
businesses in rental, property management, logistics and warehousing,
outlet operation and E-commerce in addition to enhancing the value
of commercial and residential properties to serve tenants from a wide
range of industries, and facilitating the development of China South City
towards a path high quality and diversification.

As a number of projects successively commenced operation and the
operating floor area continued to grow, the Group has started to
transform its warehousing and logistics service from a rental-oriented
model to an integrated third-party logistics-oriented model and has
already secured a number of warehousing and distribution projects or
logistics projects from renowned brands. Its warehousing and logistics
operating networks was increased to 14, providing timely logistics and
delivery service to more than 700 cities nationwide. Leveraging the
business expansion and service upgrade, the Group expects to maintain a
stable growth in this segment going forward.

Outlets maintained stable growth in its operational performance. Driven
by the increasing income of urban and rural residents, the demand for
discounted branded products has increased significantly. To optimize
resource distribution and operational efficiency, the Group consolidated
the business of the self-owned brands of outlets during the Year, in line
with new consumption trends.

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T

BeE E L HIR B FE & B#R - RN T B
EEXR  ERAXGAE - AREHHENS
MRHREXRBRAILES  ETEXHEREER
Ko AT RBREEARYE - BRELEXEE RE
& MRTTERE - XEER - AEENANEER
SURERM R ASE - NEEMSEE - WiRHHEER
ERERMEEERST - RIAMISHER - KRE
[EERWAREE IWEE -

] By ) L 1 S BV A SR
ERER

ERREEANAREAMRRERR ST LN
BMREER B TRABENEENEBES - £&
EBRAFRBELY  WEEE  AHRDRRE -
RERIELRETHRSAARLES - RETH
ERMES - PHREENENRERNS TR -

RERBR

BEEZEREEERAES - LLHEETENE N - A
SENERYRRBHGEARREEXB AT - @
RAEE=nRFR  LEEZEMNEMRENEE
HESGERIERR - AEENERYRELHHIER 14
18 - YmBCE Al R R X E 2 B 700 % BT - BEE %
B RR MR TR - REBETRFT I E B D BARK
BERFFIZEIRR -

BT BEERBRFIRERE - EEUERK
AREER  BEREFTHGBRERFTRABEN - 5
BICERDE - WRAZLERE - AKRERAFEAR
EARFRIIEEEMENERT  nRIEER

o

3¢ A



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FREHmE ()

In addition, the Group has strengthened its cooperation with HOBA
Furnishing over the home building materials trade center, in an effort
to develop a pan-industry base for home furnishing that integrates
exhibition, warehousing and logistics. Apart from its Shenzhen and
Nanning China South City projects, HOBA Furnishing opened a new store
in Changsha and five new franchises in Ordos, Changsha, Chenzhou and
Weihai during the Year, and is expected to commence business at CSC
Zhengzhou in FY2019/20.

Prudent and Sound Financial Management, Flexible
and Smooth Financing Channels

Looking back at the Year, the Group maintained diversified and extensive
financing channels. In oversea market, the Group issued US$150 million
of senior notes in May 2018 and an additional US$100 million of senior
notes in June 2018, US$200 million of senior notes in March 2019 and
an additional US$60 million of senior notes in June 2019. Domestically,
the Group issued RMB600 million of medium-term notes in April 2019.
The Group has laid a strong foundation for its future development
by effectively utilizing domestic and oversea bond issuance quota,
effectively optimizing the overall debt structure, reducing financing costs
and maintaining a diverse range of smooth financing channels both
domestically and overseas. Through effective application of note facilities
from domestic and oversea capital markets, bank loans and internal
operating cash flows, the Group repaid a number of domestic notes and
reduced its overall liabilities effectively during the Year, which reflected its
flexible capital operation and sound financial foundation. In addition, the
Group further mitigated its liabilities through repurchase and cancellation
of oversea bonds, which also improved the capital efficiency and returns
of the Group. Looking into next fiscal year, the Group will maintain its
prudent and sound financial management strategy as well as flexible and
smooth financing channels, strive for better capital management, attain a
balance between financial stability and business development, in a bid to
create maximum value for shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Prospects

Affected by uncertainties from home and abroad in 2019, China will
stress on both “Stability” and “Progress” in development, and continue
with its reform and development on the basis of stability. The real estate
sector will pursue steady progress, as industry-leading enterprises continue
to push forward their transformation and extend their value chain.

Looking ahead to FY2019/20, China South City will enhance capital
operation and financial control, expand financing channels, and ramp
up the quality of merchants recruitment, operation and projects. It will
work to deliver refined products with rigorous cost control, prioritize
efficiency and pay attention to business scale to facilitate the Group’s
future development. The “Trade and Logistics +” model will continue to
help China South City capture opportunities amid industry transformation,
leveraging the Group’s competitive advantages to integrate resources.
After years of development, its projects in Zhengzhou, Xi'an, Shenzhen
and Nanchang have been furnished with a range of ancillaries and
managed to cover increasing number of sectors. Together with the
railing transportation development nearby, these projects will bring
in more tenants and visitors and become the key projects for future
breakthroughs.

China South City stays committed to putting national development
strategies into practice. As China entered its first year of fully materializing
the spirit of the 19th CPC National Congress in 2018, The Group will
continue to execute its development strategy of “Integrating Industries
into Projects, Building Beautiful New Cities Conducive to Work and Live”.
Focusing on the “One Center” approach, the Group will continue to
develop its trade and logistics centers by leveraging its years of experience
in real economy, to set an example of large-scale integrated trade and
logistics centers in the domestic arena. With “Twin Bases” in place, China
South City will continue with its business upgrade and transformation
plan, target emerging industries and establish incubators for strategic
emerging industries to align with the country’s direction of strategic and
economic transformation and join hands with real economy to cultivate
new growth points. Meanwhile, the Group will promote urbanization in
cities where respective China South City projects are located, by improving
urban development and industry layout, to build thriving smart service
bases that are conducive to work and live.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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The management expects that the Group will deliver its annual contracted
sales target of HK$16,000 million for the financial year ended 31 March
2020 (“FY2019/20"). In respect of recurring business, the Group will strive
to keep its growth momentum and develop diversified and stable revenue
streams.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to express my deepest gratitude to
our shareholders, customers and business partners for their consistent trust
and support to the Group. | would also like to thank the management
and staff for their dedication and whole-hearted commitment, which have
helped China South City grow from strength to strength.

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

Continuously Expanding and Improving the Scope
of Business

During the Year, the international and domestic environment was
complex and volatile. Affected by the Sino-US trade war, the Chinese
economy faced multiple challenges, but by and large remained stable
growth. In 2018, China’s GDP exceeded RMB9O trillion for the first time,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.6%, which was, however,
the lowest economic growth for the country in 28 years. Despite its
slowing economic growth and challenging external environment, China
maintained a robust performance in general. Consumers will remain the
dominant driving force for China’s economic growth, which continues to
create opportunities for the Group and its stakeholders.

Given the slowdown of China’s economic growth and challenging market
conditions, the diversified and flexible business model of China South
City enables the Group to make timely and effective adjustments to sales
and operations portfolios according to different development stages of
the projects and market needs of different regions. China South City
continues to be a leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated
logistics and trade centers by leveraging its innovative industry model. Our
ongoing project construction and development attracted a wide range of
businesses from various industries and generated more diverse demands
for supporting services. The Group innovatively integrates the operation
of trade centers with comprehensive integrated logistics and trade services
to develop a core business system that is competitive in the market. In
order to meet the increasing amount of project activities, the Group
has strengthened the provision of ancillary services, such as residential
units, multi-purpose office and apartment ancillary, office buildings,
property management, conference and exhibition facilities, logistics and
warehousing services, outlet operation and financial services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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CSC Shenzhen delivered a successful business model that serves as a pilot
project for the upgrade of the Group’s business model. By strategically
replicating its unique business model from Shenzhen to other strategic
economic regions, China South City has developed a diversified project
portfolio with strategic value in eight cities with priority on economic
development. Currently, the eight projects are in different stages of
development. Among them, CSC Xi‘an has welcomed more customers
and business opportunities with the subway line 3 connecting the project.
CSC Xi'an, located within the Silk Road Economic Belt, connects with
the vast northwest of China via Xi'an City Expressway (% &5 = 2
N #), which is linked to Beijing-Kunming Expressway, Lianyungang-
Khorgos Expressway, Shanghai-Shaanxi Expressway and Baotou-Maoming
Expressway as well as the Eurasian Continental Bridge. Furthermore,
with the strategic expansion of ancillary services, CSC Xi'an has recently
launched its multi-purpose office and apartment ancillary in response
to the housing demand within and around the project. In the future, as
railways and other public transportation services further connect various
CSC projects to city centers, on-site housing demand is expected to rise
continuously. The Group will reinforce its residential or multi-purpose
office and apartment ancillaries according to the demand in each project.

During the Year, the Group’s total revenue increased by 9.2% to
HK$10,274.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$9,405.4 million). Its recurring
income grew by 14.6% year-on-year from HK$2,020.0 million in
FY2017/18 to HK$2,314.9 million, accounting for 22.5% of the total
revenue (FY2017/18: 21.5%). Gross profit margin was 43% (FY2017/18:
43%). Profit attributable to owners of the parent was HK$3,251.0 million
(FY2017/18: HK$4,511.7 million). Basic earnings per share amounted to
HK40.33 cents (FY2017/18: HK56.35 cents).
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Refining Project Construction and Merchant
Recruitment to Promote the Strategic Upgrade of
the Group’s Business

The Group continuously strives to be a leading developer and operator
of large-scale integrated logistics and trade centers. For over a decade,
it has established its presence in a first-tier city, provincial capitals and a
direct-administered municipality in Mainland China through the successful
establishment of multiple well-rounded projects containing trade centers,
warehousing and logistics facilities, residential units, multi-purpose office
and apartment ancillary, and other commercial complexes. These projects
have delivered sustainable business development for the Group and
helped it to gain a development edge during industry transformation.
Within the Year, the Group established its business management
division and investment development division to refine work division of
project construction and merchant recruitment. The entities are tasked
with project management and making the management of merchant
recruitment more professional, to enable the Group to better cater to the
daily needs of our projects’ business tenants on business and households
on living, and implement the integrated “Trade and Logistics+” model of
China South City.

Project Investment and Development

Our investment development division mainly focuses on the Group’s
project investment, development and construction. The Group continued
to adhere to its strategy of increasing the sales of housing and commercial
ancillaries and enhancing its value-added supporting service from the
previous year, to cater to the fast-growing demand among the business
tenants of its integrated logistics and trade centers. To meet the different
needs of local projects, the Group works to develop all-round commercial
complexes in different projects: multi-purpose office and apartment
ancillaries are being developed in Zhengzhou, Xi‘an, Nanchang and
Shenzhen projects; schools and education centers are being built in
projects, of which primary school in Nanchang and Nanning projects and
primary and secondary schools in Chongging project have commenced
operation, while the kindergarten and private school in CSC Hefei are
also preparing for schooling. The Group also assisted the government in
building public facilities such as parks in China South City projects, where
there are local infrastructure facilities such as substations and gas stations,
to meet the daily needs of business tenants and residents. The Group also
continuously enhances the ancillary services within the projects.
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CSC Shenzhen

As of 31 March 2019, Phases | and Il and part of Phase Il of its properties
had commenced operation of their respective trade centers and ancillary
facilities with a total GFA of approximately 2.39 million sg. m., including
approximately 1.62 million sq. m. of trade centers, approximately 412,000
sg. m. of residential ancillary and multi-purpose offices and apartments
ancillaries and approximately 356,200 sg. m. of warehousing and other
facilities. Phase Ill of the project is currently in development. As of 31
March 2019, the planning and construction of a GFA of approximately
185,000 sg. m. of multi-purpose office and apartment ancillary was
underway.

In FY2018/19, CSC Shenzhen recorded total contracted sales of
approximately HK$495.7 million (FY2017/18: HK$1.9 million), including a
GFA of 34,000 sq. m. of multi-purpose office and apartment units at an
average selling price (“ASP") of HK$14,600/sq. m. (FY2017/18: 100 sq. m.
at an ASP of HK$19,400/sq. m.).

CSC Nanchang

As of 31 March 2019, construction of CSC Nanchang with a total GFA of
approximately 2.40 million sq. m. was completed, including approximately
1.07 million sg. m. of trade centers, approximately 1.28 million sq. m. of
residential ancillaries and approximately 44,300 sqg. m. of warehousing
facilities. As of 31 March 2019, construction of a GFA of approximately
340,000 sq. m. residential ancillary, multi-purpose offices and apartments
was underway.

In FY2018/19, CSC Nanchang recorded total contracted sales of HK$402.9
million (FY2017/18: HK$2,123.9 million), including a GFA of 2,800 sqg. m.
of trade center units (detached style) at an ASP of HK$10,400/sq. m.
(FY2017/18: 1,500 sq. m. at an ASP of HK$10,100/sg. m.) and a GFA
of 40,500 sq. m. of residential ancillaries at an ASP of HK$9,200/sg. m.
(FY2017/18: 202,500 sq. m. at an ASP of HK$10,400/sq. m.).
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CSC Nanning

As of 31 March 2019, construction of CSC Nanning with a total
GFA of approximately 1.95 million sq. m. was completed, including
approximately 896,600 sq. m. of trade centers, approximately 814,100
sg. m. of residential ancillaries, approximately 205,600 sg. m. of multi-
purpose office and apartment ancillary and approximately 36,800 sg. m.
of warehousing facilities. At of 31 March 2019, construction of a GFA of
approximately 154,300 sq. m. of multi-purpose offices and apartments
was underway.

In FY2018/19, CSC Nanning recorded total contracted sales of HK$716.6
million (FY2017/18: HK$1,058.2 million), including a GFA of 10,600 sg. m.
of trade centers (mall style) at an ASP of HK$11,300/sq. m. (FY2017/18:
1,000 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$9,800/sq. m.), a GFA of 48,700 sg. m. of
residential ancillary facilities at an ASP of HK$10,700/sq. m. (FY2017/18:
103,000 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$9,600/sg. m.), and a GFA of 7,600 sg. m.
of multi-purpose office and apartment units at an ASP of HK$10,100/sq. m.
(FY2017/18: 6,200 sq. m. at an ASP of HK$10,100/sg. m.).

CSC Xi'an

The development of CSC Xi‘an is well underway with a total GFA of
approximately 1.79 million sq. m. was completed, including approximately
1.72 million sg. m. of trade centers, approximately 55,800 sg. m. of
warehousing facilities and approximately 23,300 sq. m. of ancillary
facilities. During the Year, construction of a GFA of approximately
228,500 sg. m. of trade centers was completed. As of 31 March
2019, construction of a GFA of approximately 480,000 sg. m. of trade
centers, warehousing facilities, multi-purpose offices and apartments
was underway, of which approximately 194,200 sq. m. of trade centers
and multi-purpose offices and apartments was expected to complete in
FY2019/20.
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In FY2018/19, CSC Xi'an recorded total contracted sales of HK$1,433.3
million (FY2017/18: HK$544.1 million), including a GFA of 1,900 sq. m.
of trade centers (mall style) at an ASP of HK$10,900/sq. m. (FY2017/18:
Nil), a GFA of 58,400 sq. m. of trade center (detached style) at an ASP of
HK$7,500/sg. m. (FY2017/18: 79,900 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$6,800/sg. m.)
and a GFA of 104,300 sq. m. of multi-purpose office and apartment units
at an ASP of HK$9,400/sq. m. (FY2017/18: Nil).

CSC Harbin

The development of CSC Harbin is well underway with a total GFA of
approximately 1.83 million sq. m. completed, including approximately 1.43
million sg. m. of trade centers, approximately 317,700 sqg. m. of residential
ancillary, approximately 81,700 sg. m. of logistics and warehousing and
ancillary facilities. During the Year, construction of a GFA of approximately
301,500 sg. m. of trade center was completed. As of 31 March 2019,
construction of a GFA of approximately 667,200 sg. m. of trade centers,
residential ancillary, multi-purpose offices and apartments and hotel was
underway, of which approximately 8,700 sg. m. of ancillary facilities was
expected to complete in FY2019/20.

In FY2018/19, CSC Harbin recorded total contracted sales of HK$767.5
million (FY2017/18: HK$301.3 million), including a GFA of approximately
21,100 sg. m. of trade centers (detached style) at an ASP of HK$7,800/sq. m.
(FY2017/18: 5,700 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$8,800/sq. m.) and a GFA
of 85,900 sg. m. of residential ancillaries at an ASP of HK$7,000/sq. m.
(FY2017/18: 48,800 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$5,100/sq. m.).
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CSC Zhengzhou

The development of CSC Zhengzhou is well underway with a total GFA
of approximately 3.05 million sq. m. completed, including approximately
2.67 million sq. m. of trade centers, approximately 286,200 sq. m.
of warehousing and ancillary facilities, and approximately 101,600
sg. m. of residential ancillary. During the Year, construction of a GFA
of approximately 190,200 sq. m. of residential ancillaries and trade
centers was completed. As of 31 March 2019, construction of a GFA
of approximately 2.59 million sq. m. of trade centers, residential units,
multi-purpose office and apartment ancillary was underway, of which
approximately 1.03 million sg. m. of trade centers and residential units
was expected to complete in FY2019/20.

In FY2018/19, CSC Zhengzhou recorded total contracted sales of
HK$5,174.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$2,748.3 million), including a GFA
of 9,000 sq. m. of trade center units (mall style) at an ASP of HK$15,000/sg. m.
(FY2017/18: a GFA of 13,100 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$10,100/sg. m.),
a GFA of 100,300 sq. m. of trade center units (detached style) at an ASP
of HK$8,000/sq. m. (FY2017/18: a GFA of 104,800 sq. m. at an ASP of
HK$7,600/sg. m.), a GFA of 397,400 sg. m. of residential ancillaries at an
ASP of HK$10,400/sg. m. (FY2017/18: a GFA of 169,600 sg. m. at an ASP
of HK$10,700/sg. m.), and a GFA of 11,200 sg. m. of multi-purpose office
and apartment units at an ASP of HK$8,100/sq. m. (FY2017/18: Nil).

CSC Hefei

The development of CSC Hefei is well under underway with a GFA of
approximately 2.49 million sq. m. completed, including approximately 1.59
million sg. m. of trade centers, approximately 820,600 sg. m. of residential
ancillaries and approximately 82,000 sq. m. of warehousing and ancillary
facilities. During the Year, construction of a GFA of approximately
421,100 sq. m. of residential ancillaries and warehousing facilities was
completed. As of 31 March 2019, construction of a GFA of approximately
1.22 million sg. m. of trade centers, residential units and warehousing
facilities was underway, of which approximately 558,400 sq. m. of trade
centers and residential units was expected to complete in FY2019/20.
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In FY2018/19, CSC Hefei recorded total contracted sales of HK$3,580.9
million (FY2017/18: HK$3,182.1 million), including a GFA of 305,100 sg. m.
of residential ancillaries at an ASP of HK$11,700/sg. m. (FY2017/18:
a GFA of 295,700 sg. m. at an ASP of HK$10,600/sq. m.). During the
year, there was no contracted sales of trade center units (detached style)
(FY2017/18: a GFA of 8,400 sq. m. at an ASP of HK$6,600/sg. m.).

CSC Chongging

The development of China South City Chongqing is well underway
with a GFA of approximately 1.88 million sq. m. completed, including
approximately 1.26 million sq. m. of trade centers, approximately
395,100 sg. m. of residential ancillaries and approximately 217,100 sg. m.
of warehousing and ancillary facilities. During the Year, construction
of a GFA of approximately 431,200 sq. m. of residential and ancillary
facilities was completed. As of 31 March 2019, construction of a GFA of
approximately 537,500 sg. m. of residential and other ancillary facilities
was underway, of which approximately 215,200 sg. m. was expected to
complete in FY2019/20.

In FY2018/19, CSC Chongging recorded total contracted sales of
HK$2,105.8 million (FY2017/18: HK$2,066.1 million), including a GFA
of 36,500 sq. m. of trade center units (detached style) at an ASP of
HK$7,500/sq. m. (FY2017/18: a GFA of 21,000 sq. m. at an ASP of
HK$9,100/sg. m.) and a GFA of 213,800 sq. m. of residential ancillaries at
an ASP of HK$8,600/sq. m. (FY2017/18: a GFA of 256,900 sg. m. at an
ASP of HK$7,300/sq. m.).
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Sustaining the Growth Momentum of Recurring
Business

As a leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated logistics
and trade centers in China, China South City pays high attention to
the overall operation of its projects. Apart from actively enriching the
industries on project sites and promoting industry concentration, China
South City has opened up vertical market to accelerate integration within
different industries, coupled with the provision or introduction of a variety
of ancillary facilities and services needed for project management and
expansion. As each project gradually comes into operation, the growth
momentum of recurring business sustained, which provides the Group
with diverse and stable revenue streams. During the Year, the Group
recorded total recurring income of HK$2,314.9 million (FY2017/18:
HK$2,020.0 million) with an increase of 14.6%. Revenue from rental,
property management, e-commerce, logistics and warehousing services
and outlet operations amounted to HK$776.8 million, HK$575.3 million,
HK$145.6 million, HK$289.3 million and HK$427.9 million, respectively
(FY2017/18: HK$731.7 million, HK$375.5 million, HK$245.2 million,
HK$218.1 million and HK$354.9 million, respectively).

Business Management and Operation

To solidify its leading position amongst the peers, the Group practically
implemented the strategy of “Emphasizing on Merchants Recruitment and
Strengthening Operation” during the Year. By establishing its business
management division, project management and tenants recruitment
would be implemented in a more professional manner, as merchants and
industries needed on projects are pinpointed more precisely.

The Group works hard on incubating strategic emerging industries and
constructing commercial complexes. It also engages itself in negotiation
on innovative and high-tech industries such as e-commerce and the mega
healthcare industry, including negotiation with start-ups to facilitate
industry aggregation and integration. In particular, the e-commerce
segment has attained notable results after years of development, some
of them has become demonstration base on provincial or national level,
while some attracts leading domestic cross-border e-commerce enterprises
onsite.

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T

REFENEBERB D

EATRELEARGEMRNARRZ ST ONFAER
MEER  EMRSEERIBEBRELEE REREZ
EEEEORIESL  REEXERSE  BHRBEE
MEEMS - MRTERE  UHEREERAES
TR SR ERERERRS - BESHEEZES
EANBLRE  AEEBEEEKERIHIFE K
BEITLEBENRARE - XEERN - REBSS
FHEMERABEE23.1498 B T (201718 BUFE ¢
20200188 7T) K 146% - XBEHEL WEE
B EBEFEE  UWRkEREREARBERITESN
WAD B AE7.768(27% 7T  5.7531BB T « 1.456187%8
JC ~ 2.8931E T K 4.2791E L (201718 UFE -
DRIAE7317{EHE T » 375588 T » 245288 7T
218118 T 3.54918%87T) °

BREEREE
AREAREBETER ORI - AFENAEE
MEHITERE - REL IR BB IBEE
BEY  EAREERBEBFEEE BRI
HYEBBRAMBENELLE -

AEBENMBBREAEERTC  EREAELZA
B HHERNSHMRER  NEBMARREXRS
EITEEGE - BREVIRIDEAH - MegTER
£ INRITERA - EPEREXLBZFIEE - 8
MERFEXRBEFFAE - RITTRBELERERE



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE®R D (&)

During the Year, the Group also focused on tenant portfolio by
introducing education industry into different projects and continuing
to prospect quality customers. In the Year, CSC Nanchang set up an
integrated experience hall of space technology which combines displays of
aerospace technology, extracurricular science education and technology
interaction. In addition, CSC Harbin leveraged its geographical location
and advantages of local industries, actively promoting its cooperation
with such business tenants as Khabarovsk, Russia, and entering into an
agreement on “Wuchang Rice Official Flagship Store” with Wuchang
Municipal Government of Heilongjiang Province.

During the Year, HOBA Furnishing has successfully increased its stores
in Shenzhen, Changsha, Chenzhou, Ordos and Weihai in the form of
franchise, cooperation or direct sales store. It also opened flagship stores
in CSC Shenzhen, CSC Nanning and CSC Zhengzhou. These projects
attract customers and stimulate consumption, which complements the
flow of visitors and promote business attraction for the project as a whole.

Project and Property Management

The Group's business management division also took up property
management of project spaces, and supported the management service
required by different types of properties in respective projects. With
years of development, China South City has earned National First-Class
Property Management Qualification and become one of the few capable
of covering both trade center premises and residential properties in China.
During the Year, the revenue from property management amounted to
HK$575.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$375.5 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 53.2%. With more projects commencing operation,
the Group expects its recurring income to continue to grow and provide a
stable cash flow.

As the projects become more mature, the Group will successively add
multiple streams of revenue to improve its operation, including revenue
from advertising, exhibitions, pop-up space leasing and parking.
Meanwhile, as the Group has made fee payment digitalised on its
projects during the Year, of which mobile payment, online payment and
electronic invoicing commenced trial operation on 1 April 2019, with a
view to providing more user-friendly payment collection while optimizing
manpower.
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Logistics and Warehousing Services

The Group’s logistics and warehousing business is chiefly developed
along China South City projects, strategically located in major provincial
capitals and direct-administered municipalities, and well connected to key
domestic logistics nodes in China. During the Year, the revenue generated
from logistics and warehousing services amounted to HK$289.3 million
(FY2017/18: HK$218.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
32.7%.

During the Year, business scope of this segment gradually expanded from
on-site leasing focus to comprehensive third-party logistics, forming a
service base comprises of leasing, warehousing operation and forwarder
distribution that provides integrated logistics service output for brands,
manufacturers and channel partners to enhance the Group’s market
competitiveness.

In June 2018, the Group passed the assessment of 1SO9001 and
ISO14001 international management systems, and obtained the
accreditation certificates of “Quality Management System” and
"Environment Management System”, realizing alignment with global top
500 customers on logistics information system and data-based project
operation. Leveraging this as an opportunity, China South City conducts
quality management strictly according to the audited international quality
system standard, in an effort to meet the standardised and scientific
requirements, fully boost work efficiency and product quality, and establish
positive corporate image and reputation amidst market competition.

In March 2019, the Group was for the first time granted the status of 4A
logistics enterprise by China Federation of Logistics & Purchasing, and
commenced operation of its third-party logistics business in Shanghai,
Chengdu, etc. As such, the Group has gradually formed its nationwide
operation network to further enhance its scope of service and customer
loyalty.
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Outlet Operations

The Group operated eight outlet malls nationwide with a GFA of
approximately 426,000 sq. m. and around 550 brands as regards its outlet
business. Driven by the increasing income of urban and rural residents,
the demand for discounted branded products has increased significantly.
To optimize resources and enhance efficiency in operation, the Group
consolidated the business lines of outlet operation during the Year, in line
with new consumption trends.

During the Year, the Group’s outlet operations recorded a gross turnover
of approximately RMB1,747.4 million (FY2017/18: RMB1,445.0 million),
which represented a year-on-year increase of approximately 21%,
and generated a recurring income of HK$427.9 million (FY2017/18:
HK$354.9 million) with a year-on-year increase of approximately 20.6%.
Such increases were attributable to an efficient operating model that
consolidates less efficient business and focuses on optimizing the brand
structure optimisation on Shenzhen and Zhengzhou projects to enhance
the brand yield. In terms of sales turnover, the Shenzhen project remained
the largest contributor, followed by Zhengzhou project and Xi‘an project,
which accounted for turnover of 39%, 19% and 16% respectively.

E-commerce Development

Developing an online-offline ecosystem is a key initiative for the Group.
While on one hand e-commerce is utilized to optimize the business for its
on-site tenants, the Group also offers brick-and-mortar space to online
businesses and expands their offline presence at the integrated logistics
and trade centers of the Group. Since 2017, the e-commerce subsidiary
of the Group has been accredited as a National High-tech Enterprise, and
received government incentives in such field as enterprise technology
research and development.
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In addition, the e-commerce industry parks, which have been successively
established in the Group’s projects in Shenzhen, Zhengzhou, Nanchang,
Nanning and Harbin, are an essential part of China South City’s online-
offline ecosystem. The Group promotes industry incubation, cultivation,
clustering and integration according to the trend of local e-commerce
development. For example, the Shenzhen project attracts a few domestic
leading enterprises in cross-border e-commerce. Apart from setting up
offices, they also launched offline showrooms or use the logistics and
warehousing service on site. The e-commerce park in the Nanchang
project mainly serves undergraduate start-ups, and its “E-commerce
Business Incubator for University Students of Nanchang” is a state-
level project. The E-commerce Park in CSC Zhengzhou, developed in
accordance with local government’s policy, has become “Provincial
E-commerce Demonstration Base”, “Cross-border E-commerce
Demonstration Base in Henan Province” and “Demonstration Base for
SME Entrepreneurship and Innovation in Henan Province”.

Trade Fairs

During the Year, leveraging on the Group’s large-scale trading and
logistics platforms in major provincial capitals and direct-administered
municipalities, long-term partnership with local governments, as well as
extensive experience in co-organizing trade fairs, the Group saw several of
its projects selected to host major trade fairs and exhibitions organized by
local governments. These successful events, well-received by international
and local exhibitors as well as visitors, raised the profile of the Group's
projects considerably and boosted visitor and business traffic, while
bringing more business opportunities for the tenants in the trade centers.

Events at a Glance

Folk Culture Festival cum Expo

The 4th CSC Folk Culture Festival cum Expo took place at CSC Nanning
in mid-April 2018. The event, successfully held for four consecutive years,
attracts a large number of tourists every year. The nine-day event has
significantly boosted the sales of CSC tenants, generated considerable
visitor flow and business opportunities, and delivered a huge impact of
China South City as a cultural brand in the region.
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CSC Zhengzhou ¢ Central China Building Material
and Hardware Exhibition (Spring) 2018

CSC Zhengzhou e Central China Building Material and Hardware
Exhibition (Spring) 2018 took place in April 2018. The Central China
Building Material and Hardware Industry Forum was held on the same
day. The exhibition is a large-scale, highly professional industry exhibition
with a comprehensive range of product categories in Central China.

The 29th Harbin International Economic and Trade
Fair — CSC Session

The 29th Harbin International Economic and Trade Fair — CSC Session
kicked off at CSC Harbin in June 2018. Harbin International Economic and
Trade Fair serves as a window for China’s opening up to the world, and
a platform for economic and trade cooperation with Northeast Asia and
other countries around the world. The Fair has been regarded as a leading
exhibition for China on economic and trade cooperation and receives
great attention from governments at all levels. Enterprises and institutions
from home and abroad took an active part in the exhibition, setting CSC
Harbin at a key position in the Northeast Asia Economic Zone.

The First CSC Hefei Hotel Supplies Expo

“The First CSC Hefei Hotel Supplies Expo — CSC Summer Dream Carnival”
took place as a three-day event in June 2018. For the Expo, the partners
of CSC Hefei — Hotel Supplies City (£ HE3E g 3iF )5 F i %) gathered a
number of hotel suppliers nationwide for exhibition, presenting a special
sales event together with CSC tenants of various industries. The successful
hotel supplies expo brought in visitors and opportunities from various
locations and raised the brand effect of the Group.
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China-ASEAN Expo and Light Industrial Exhibition
The 15th China-ASEAN Expo and Light Industrial Exhibition was co-
hosted by the Chinese Ministry of Commerce, the economic and
trade departments of 10 ASEAN countries and the China-ASEAN Expo
Secretariat, and organized by the People’s Government of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region. The Exhibition took place at CSC Nanning in
September 2018. CSC Nanning has hosted the event for nine consecutive
years, which has firmly established CSC Nanning as an important platform
for the trading and logistics of light industry products between China and
ASEAN countries, strengthened trade and cultural exchanges, responded
to the national “Belt and Road Initiative” and enhanced the Group's
brand advantage.

The Third China Commercial Vehicles Fair in
Chongqing

The China Commercial Vehicles Fair was held at CSC Chongging in
September 2018, where exhibitions of commercial vehicles, logistics
chains, new energy vehicles and passenger vehicles made their
appearance. The successful event not only promoted the cooperation
on commercial vehicles and other fields, but also drove the development
of the commercial vehicle industry in Chongging. At the same time, it
generated a continuous flow of business, logistics, capital and information
for CSC Chongging and even more opportunities for its business tenants.
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Land Bank T i

With its unique and flexible business model, the Group intends to retain  IFEBE B EB EUMEEER - NREEBRZ YR
commercial properties such as logistics and warehousing facilities and R A% « BESEEME R L R50% 87 &
hotels, as well as no less than 50% of trade center units for self-use or SR LEHEASLRALERR - METHOL
long-term leasing purposes, while the remaining 50% of trade center  50%Pg S SO EMHRAEYE - AEBEBES T
units and residential properties will be sold progressively to generate & - AXREBEZERIZEMBENIRSE - AXEFARERH
cash flow for development. In order to support its growth momentum 2R EFEFMUAER - REBRAEEANUAREL
and revenue base, the Group acquired new plots of land with a GFA of  13.33{E7L &AM A LI S #)1E B 28 49150.38
approximately 1.503 million sq. m. at a consideration of approximately 5 KA Z2EEEEMN 1 - ZE BB AEER
RMB1,333 million for projects in Harbin and Zhengzhou during the Year. B A+ -

Such land plots are for residential and commercial purposes.

Properties
Planned
Properties for Future
Properties tobe Development Total Total Planned GFA
under  Completed on GFA Planned for Acquired Land @
Project Completed Properties®  construction in FY2019/20  Acquired @ GFA® (% to Total Planned GFA)
REBLTH
T BEEE
2019/2081% BREME ] BRLHREREER
1BH BRIYEO BRTME  RINME AREEVEY  BEEEY  (FERUREEEAAL)
(sq.m.) Sold  Inoperation Estimated Estimated Estimated %
(FHK) B e it it Bt
(CSC Shenzhen RYE R 857,600 1,534,700 185,000 - 66,700 2,644,000 2,644,000 100%
(CSC Nanchang EEESES) 1,405,600 995,300 340,000 - 2,053,500 6,866,000 4,794,400 70%
(CSC Nanning HEEEY 658,900 1,294,200 154,300 - 372,600 4,880,000 2,480,000 51%
CSC Xi‘an AEEEN 791,700 1,002,400 480,000 194,200 2,402,500 17,500,000 4,676,600 27%
CSC Harbin BREZREN 557,700 1,271,000 667,200 8,700 3,116,500 12,000,000 5,612,400 47%
(SC Zhengzhou Bz 1,376,600 1,676,100 2,591,900 1,031,700 4,111,600 12,000,000 9,756,200 81%
(CSC Hefei AREREN 1,370,200 1,120,700 1,219,700 558,400 2,282,400 12,000,000 5,993,000 50%
(CSC Chongaing ERERY 560,000 1,316,300 537,500 215,200 4,088,000 13,100,000 6,501,800 50%
Total ast 7,578,300 10,210,700 6,175,600 2,008200 18,493,800 80,990,000 42,458,400 52%
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Notes:

(1) Represents the GFA for which the construction of all various types of buildings
had been completed, including properties held for sales, warehouses, multi-
purpose office and apartment ancillary, hotels and trade centers held for
rental purpose as well as self-use properties.

(2)  Represents the remaining GFA after deducting the completed properties and
properties under development from the total planned GFA for acquired land.

(3)  Represents the GFA planned upon establishment of the projects. The actual
land and GFA to be acquired or built are subject to different factors and may
vary subsequently.

(4)  Represents the planned GFA for the land acquired including completed
properties and properties under development. The actual GFA to be built may
vary subsequently according to needs of the Group.

Strengthening the Senior Management Team

To cope with the domestic and international complex environment, China
South City continues to strengthen its management team during the Year
to ensure an optimum mix of management resources and operational
capabilities to deliver its business strategies.

During the Year, the Group appointed Mr. Zhao Lidong as an Executive
Director of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Group.
Mr. Zhao worked for a number of companies within Wanda Group and
Wuzhou International Holdings Limited, with extensive experience in the
commercial property management and operation of integrated trading
platforms.

Under the guidance of the Board, the strengthened senior management

team will continue leading the Group to create additional value for
shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The main objective of the Group’s financial management is to ensure its
long-run sustainable growth with a strong and stable capital base while
addressing financial health at the same time.

The Group proactively adjusts its business development strategies
according to market environment, together with the pace of land
acquisition and other capital expenditures in concurrence with its cash
flows from operating and financing activities, in order to preserve liquidity
as well as to keep its growth momentum.

The Group actively manages its financing structure through onshore
and offshore bank loans as well as different inter-bank and capital
market instruments, in order to achieve an optimal capital structure and
maturity profile. During the Year, the satisfactory contracted sales and
steady growth of its recurring income have helped optimize the debt
structure of the Group. As at 31 March 2019, the total interest-bearing
debts of the Group were HK$34.3 billion, representing a decrease of
HK$4.6 billion compared to 31 March 2018. The net gearing ratio was
68.9%, representing a decrease of 8.5% compared to 31 March 2018.
The interest bearing debts due within one year amounted to HK$15.29
billion, representing a decrease of HK$0.83 billion compared to 31 March
2018. The diversified financing channels and a more optimized debt
structure enable the Group to maintain good liquidity and sustain stable
development in long run.

When compared with the same period last year, the revenue of the
Group increased 9.2% to HK$10,274.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$9,405.4
million) during the Year, and net profit attributable to owners of the
parent decreased 27.9% to HK$3,251.0 million (FY2017/18: HK$4,511.7
million). Basic earnings per share decreased to HK40.33 cents (FY2017/18:
HK56.35 cents). Core net profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the Year increased by 8.8% to HK$1,749.6 million (FY2017/18:
HK$1,608.5 million). The decrease in net profit attributable to owners of
the parent and basic earnings per share are mainly due to the decrease of
fair value gain of investment properties.

gy de)-
AEENHEERE B ERRARRBENEARE
B RRARETHERRE  YAREEHSEE -

AEERBEMZHNEREGRHELEGHEREE - &
BHMKBREMEARINS K  EaELRRE
BB - EMERRBMERRFHIERETE -

REBRBEAIMEITERMBITHE R EARTISTE
BMETEEGREEMELRE UNBERSEENER
MEBEBPES - RAFE - FEENGHNHEER
BEEERNFBETBRAZRBAEEE( T BBERE -
HE2019F3A310 - "EBEBH BERF343ES
JC B2018F3 A3 BB 46BA T : FRAEXAE
68.9% * E2018F3A31BHL8.5%  FRFIHER
B152. 98 T - FHLLE2018F3 A31H [ f#8.3(8H
T ZNbMBMERBENERLNEBEBBENA
EEBBRIFORDE  REREEBTRE -

R2018/198 B FE - AEBEMW AL IN9.2% =
102.74318% 7T (2017188 L Z : 94.054(877T)
ERAREA AR FF B A27.9%F32.510E5 7T
(201718BA U E - 45. 1171878 7T) - EREAEF)
S E40.3378(11 (2017188 B F € : 56.35/81) °
REEERREAR ABGZLFFHIEMNS8%E
17.496187%8 70 (2017188 L[S + 16.085{B/87T) ©
BARBA ARG EREREARFRISEZHR
BEMEAFEEBER DT -
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Revenue

Revenue for the Year increased by 9.2% to HK$10,274.3 million (FY
2017/18: 9,405.4 million). The increase was mainly attributable to more
properties were sold and delivered through finance lease in Shenzhen and
overall increase of recurring income.

[N
RNEFRURAIENN.2%F102.74318 8 7T (2017/188F
BREE : 94.054(E87L) BINEBRARARAF
EFEAMERE LS RYIER MERINREEFEN
WA INERER ©

FY2018/19 FY2017/18 Change
MERFEE HRFE el ]
HKD$'000 HKD$'000 %
FET FAT
Sales of properties and M E R E

finance lease income AEWA 7,959,371 7,385,394 7.8
Sales of properties YISHE 7,348,017 7,229,545 1.6
Finance lease income BEREWA 496,569 155,849 218.6
Others Hith 114,785 = N/AZ 3
Recurring income FEMIA 2,314,884 2,019,976 14.6
Rental income el 776,844 731,716 6.2

Properties management service MEEIERBUA
income 575,327 375,520 53.2
E-commerce income BEFEEWA 145,595 245,241 -40.6
Other revenue HAb A 817,118 667,499 22.4
10,274,255 9,405,370 9.2
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Sales of Properties and Finance Lease Income

Revenue from sales of properties increased by 1.6% to HK$7,348.0 million
(FY2017/18: HK$7,229.5 million). The increase was mainly attributable to
more sales and delivery of properties in Hefei, Chongging and Zhengzhou
projects during the Year. The sales of properties for each project are as

HEMERBEHEWA

HEE W AIBIN1.6% = 73.4818 78 7T (2017/188F
BUEFE 1 722958 L) o IMEERERHNAH
BURER - EEREMNEEARZHMEHEERR
- RBEMBEEERAT :

follows:
Average selling price Sales revenue
(before deduction (before deduction of Sales revenue
of sales tax*) GFA sold sales tax*) (net of sales tax*)
(HKS/sq. m.) (sq. m.) (HKS million) (HKS million)
HIEE HEWA HEKRA
(RSB EBANY) BEREER (BRSEEBAIY) (MREEERE*)
(BL/THX) (E7K) (BE#R) (BE#T)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20184 20198 2018%F 20195 2018 20198 20185
(SC Nanchang ElEESEd]
- Trade center units —RHFOTEE 15,000 19,900 4,500 7,100 67.0 142.0 64.9 135.0
- Residential properties —fEENE 17,900 10,000 5,900 349,900 106.4 35146 100.7 33268
(CSC Nanning BHEEEY
- Trade center units ~RAPLER 12,800 10,700 12,600 1,800 160.4 189 152.2 18.1
- Residential properties -fFENE 9,900 8,500 37,300 127,100 368.0 1,074.3 360.1 1,010.2
- Office units ~PATEN 10,200 9,200 3,200 7,300 33.0 67.3 311 66.1
CSC Xi'an BRERN 6,900 6,100 71,100 50,800 493.1 3121 449.8 284.8
CSC Harbin mBEZE
~ Trade center units ~RAPOEH 8,000 7,600 24,100 52,900 1926 402.0 1825 3836
- Residential properties —fEENE 5,800 5,100 10,800 50,800 62.9 258.4 58.6 2419
(SC Zhengzhou -l iy
- Trade center units ~RGRLEH 8,600 11,100 73,600 84,600 632.3 936.5 580.7 864.2
— Residential properties -FEnE 10,100 - 101,400 - 1,021.9 - 917.7 -
CSC Hefel alEERH
~ Trade center units —RGPLER - 8,700 - 13,100 - 1144 - 103.6
- Residential properties —fEENE 9,600 7,400 284,100 94,500 2,704.4 696.4 2,448.6 635.0
(SC Chongging SRERH
- Trade center units ~RGRPLEH 10,600 7,900 17,400 21,000 183.7 165.5 170.6 160.2
~ Residential properties ~{FENE 6,900 - 294,000 - 2,019.9 - 1,830.5 -
Total @it NARER  NATER 940,000 860,900 8,045.6 7,702.4 7,348.0 7,229.5

* Sales tax represents business tax and surcharges on or before 30 April 2016 *
and value-added-tax and surcharges after 30 April 2016.

HERIIETE2016F4 30 B sk 2 Al &4 25 M K -
2016F4 3308 1% AL ER KM -
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Finance lease income derived from the leasing of office buildings
increased by 218.6% to HK$496.6 million (FY2017/18: HK$155.8 million).
The increase was primarily attributable to more finance lease on office
building at CSC Shenzhen were made during the Year. During the Year,
the Group entered into finance lease arrangements with tenants for
approximately 36,600 sg. m. (FY2017/18:10,300 sg. m.) at an average
price of HK$14,400/sq. m. (FY2017/18:HK$16,000/sg. m.).

Rental Income

The Group intends to retain not less than 50% of the trade center units
for self-use or rental purposes. Therefore, rental income will continue
to be an important component of the recurrent income in a long run.
CSC Shenzhen, being the Group’s most mature project in its portfolio,
contributed substantial part of the rental income. As at 31 March 2019,
the total occupancy rate of the launched rentable GFA of different phases
of CSC Shenzhen’s trade centers and shops were approximately 87 %
to 94% (As at 31 March 2018: 83% to 98%). Along with the gradual
extension of the operations in other projects, these projects, start to
contribute rental income and resulting in satisfactory growth in rental
income. During the Year, rental income of the Group slightly increased
by 6.2% to HK$776.8 million (FY2017/18: HK$731.7 million) comparing
to the same period last year. Due to expiry of tenancy, government
demolition and business condition, HOBA Furnishing closed five stores
last Year. This resulted in perceptive drop in its revenue and affected the
growth rate of the Groups revenue income. If rental income of HOBA was
excluded, rental income of the Group significantly increased by 20.8% to
HK$642.0 million (FY2017/18: HK$531.7 million).

Property Management Service Income

Income from property management services increased by 53.2% to
HK$575.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$375.5 million). The increase in property
management service income was mainly attributable to the gradual
increase in GFA of trade centers, shops and residential properties delivered
and put into use during the Year.
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E-commerce Income

E-commerce income, derived from the E-commerce services provided
to the Group’s customers, decreased by 40.6% to HK$145.6 million
(FY2017/18: HK$245.2 million) during the Year due to the internal
restructuring of our E-commerce services.

Other Revenue

Other revenue rose by 22.4% to HK$817.1 million (FY2017/18: HK$667.5
million). The increase was mainly attributable to the continuous growth of
the outlet operations and logistics and warehousing services, with revenue
from outlet operations increased 20.6% to HK$427.9 million (FY2017/18:
HK$354.9 million) while that of logistics and warehousing services
increased 32.7% to HK$289.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$218.1 million)
respectively during the Year.

Increase in income from outlet operations was mainly due to the growth
of outlet business and the increase in operating areas of the outlets.
During the Year, the gross mall sales turnover from the outlet business
increased by 20.9% to RMB1,747.4 million (FY2017/18: RMB1,445.0
million). The increase in income from logistics and warehousing services
was mainly due to the increase in rent rate and operating areas of
warehouse and the increase in the third party logistic service income
during the Year.

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales mainly includes construction costs of properties
sold, construction costs of properties held for finance lease and operating
costs of recurring business. During the Year, cost of sales increased by
9.3% to HK$5,834.7 million (FY2017/18: HK$5,336.2 million). The
increase in cost of sales was basically in line with the increase of GFA of
properties sold during the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 9.1% to HK$4,439.6 million (FY2017/18:
HK$4,069.2 million). During the Year, gross profit margin was 43%
(FY2017/18: 43%).

EFHEBRA

Xé%%lzﬁhf LE T 79 B RIEHU AR A EEZ R
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 6.2% to HK$804.1 million
(FY2017/18: HK$857.0 million), mainly due to the decrease in government
grants of HK$540.9 million recognized during the Year (FY2017/18:
HK$783.9 million).

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The fair value gains on investment properties decreased by 36.2% to
HK$2,793.4 million (FY2017/18: HK$4,378.5 million). The decrease in fair
value gains was mainly because the magnitude of increase of fair value
gains of the investment properties during the Year was less than that of
same period of last year.

For each of interim and annual financial reporting date, the Group
appoints an independent professional qualified valuer to determine the
fair value of our investment properties. The change in fair value of our
investment properties may significantly affected by a variety of internal
and external factors, such as rental area, rental rate, market prices of
comparable properties.

Based on our business model, the Group may have new additions of
investment properties every year and generate fair value gains. The fair
value gains/(losses) may fluctuate with time due to the change in quantity
of the investment properties, the change in market conditions and
different construction phrases of our projects. During the Year, the fair
value gains was mainly due to the addition of new investment properties
at the existing projects. Since our projects are in different construction
phrases, the new addition of investment properties may fluctuate year by
year. Therefore, the amount of fair value gains/(losses) will also fluctuate
accordingly.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 2.1% to HK$666.1 million
(FY2017/18: HK$680.7 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to
the effective cost control measures taken as to marketing activities for
promoting the sales of properties during the Year.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 7.1% to HK$1,129.9 million
(FY2017/18: HK$1,216.0 million). The decrease was primarily due to
the actions taken by the Group to streamline human resources and
the effective control of administrative costs. Besides, during the year,
the Company granted in aggregate 25,500,000 share options to four
independent non-executive directors and certain employees of the Group.
Together with the share options granted in prior years, share options
expenses of HK$14.6 million (FY2017/18: HK$42.1 million) were recorded.

Other Expenses

Other expenses slightly increased by 1.1% to HK$333.4 million
(FY2017/18: HK$329.7 million). The other expenses recorded during the
Year was mainly attributable to the impairment of goodwill of HK$134.2
million.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by 80.1% to HK$530.9 million (FY2017/18:
HK$294.8 million), mainly attributable to the increase in bank and other
borrowings for general operation purposes, with which the interest
expenses was recorded in statement of profit or loss. Due to change of
capital market, as at the end of March 2019, along with the increasing
trend of market interest rate, the Group’s weighted average financing
cost was slightly increase to 7.17%, compared to 6.68% as at the end of
March 2018.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses recorded a decreased of 6.5% to HK$2,133.7 million
(FY2017/18: HK$2,281.1 million). The decrease in income tax expenses
was due to the effect of the decrease in fair value gains of investment
properties partly offset by the increase in revenue and operating profits
during the Year.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets
During the Year, prepayments, other receivables and other assets
increased by 76.5% in aggregate to HK$2,847.7 million (31 March 2018:
HK$1,613.2 million), which was mainly due to the increase in deposits
paid for construction of new projects and prepayment of tax expenses.
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Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables decreased by 31.0% to HK$15,729.2 million (31
March 2018: HK$22,807.8 million), mainly due to the adoption of new
accounting standard, which resulted in reclassification of sales deposits
received to contract liabilities during the Year. As at 31 March 2019, the
balance of construction fees and retention payable and contract liabilities
were HK$5,132.9 million and HK$13,655.1 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group finances its development and operations primarily through
internally generated funds, bank and other borrowings, and the issuance
of different types of bonds on the on-shore and off-shore market, which
includes but not limited to senior notes, short-term notes, medium-term
notes, corporate bonds and domestic company bonds. The Group will
continue to explore different financing means and to extend its financing
channels.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had HK$9,359.8 million cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash (31 March 2018: HK$10,655.7 million),
among which non-restricted cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$5,933.8 million (31 March 2018: HK$8,204.3 million).
The Group's cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash were primarily
denominated in Renminbi, HK dollars and US dollars.

Borrowing and Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the total interest-bearing debts of the Group
was HK$34,264.7 million (31 March 2018: HK$38,827.7 million) which
decreased by HK$4,563.0 million. The financing channels mainly included
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes, short-term
notes, medium-term notes, corporate bonds and domestic company
bonds.
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Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

The Group had aggregated interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
HK$17,738.7 million as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: HK$16,098.2
million), of which HK$8,778.9 million will be repayable within one year
or on demand, HK$4,281.3 million will be repayable in the second
year, HK$4,141.6 million will be repayable in the third to fifth years and
HK$536.9 million will be repayable after five years. As at 31 March 2019,
the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$15,640.9 million were secured by certain buildings, investment
properties, properties under development, properties held for finance
lease, property held for sales and bank deposits with a total carrying value
of approximately HK$38,655.6 million.

Except for a bank loan with balance of HK$400 million denominated in
HK dollars and bears interest at floating rates of HIBOR+2.50% which
was repaid in September 2018, other interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group were denominated in Renminbi with interest
rates range from 4.08% to 12.35% (31 March 2018: 4.08% to 9.00%)
per annum. Furthermore, as at 30 April 2019, the Group had unused
banking facilities of approximately RMB12.84 billion. The Group will,
depend on the needs of project development and working capital status,
deploy these banking facilities as appropriate.

Insurance of Notes

Senior Notes

In September and October 2016, the Company issued senior notes due
in September 2021 with a nominal value of US$200 million (equivalents
to approximately HK$1,560 million) and US$150 million (equivalents
to approximately HK$1,170 million) respectively, in a total of US$350
million (equivalents to approximately HK$2,730 million). These notes were
consolidated and formed a single series of “2016 Notes” at a coupon rate
of 6.75% per annum. The net proceed of the issue was mainly for the
purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness and for general corporate
purposes. The Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount
of US$4.5 million of the 2016 Notes and had it cancelled in September
2018. After such cancellation, the principal amount of the 2016 Notes
outstanding is US$345.5 million.

In March 2017, the Company issued senior notes due in March 2020
with a nominal value of US$300 million (equivalents to approximately
HK$2,340 million) at a coupon rate of 5.75% per annum (“2017 March
Notes”). The net proceed of the issue was mainly for the purpose of
refinancing existing indebtedness and for general corporate purposes.
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In November 2017, the Company issued senior notes due in November
2022 with a nominal value of US$300 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$2,340 million) at a coupon rate of 7.25% per annum
("2017 November Notes”). The net proceed of the issue was mainly
for the purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness in relation to the
construction and development of our projects and for general corporate
purposes. The Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of
US$13.5 million of the 2017 November Notes and had it cancelled in
September 2018. After such cancellation, the principal amount of the
2017 November Notes outstanding is US$286.5 million.

In January 2018, the Company issued senior notes due in January 2021
with a nominal value of US$250 million (equivalents to approximately
HK$1,950 million) at a coupon rate of 7.25% per annum (“2018 January
Notes”). The net proceed of the issue was mainly for the purpose of
refinancing existing indebtedness in relation to the construction and
development of our projects and for general corporate purposes. The
Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of US$12.0 million
of the 2018 January Notes and had it cancelled in September 2018.
After such cancellation, the principal amount of the 2018 January Notes
outstanding is US$238.0 million.

In May and June 2018, the Company issued senior notes due in
August 2020 with a nominal value of US$150 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$1,170 million) and US$100 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$780 million) respectively, in a total of US$250 million
(equivalents to approximately HK$1,950 million). These notes were
consolidated and formed a single series of “2018 May Notes” at a coupon
rate of 10.875% per annum. The net proceed of the issue was mainly
for the purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness in relation to the
construction and development of our projects and for general corporate
purposes. The Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of
US$7.0 million of the 2018 May Notes and had it cancelled in September
2018. After such cancellation, the principal amount of the 2018 May
Notes outstanding is US$243.0 million.

In March and June 2019, the Company issued senior notes due in
March 2021 with a nominal value of US$200 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$1,560 million) and US$60 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$468 million) respectively, in a total of US$260 million
(equivalents to approximately HK$2,028 million). These notes were
consolidated and formed a single series of “2019 March Notes” at a
coupon rate of 11.875% per annum. The net proceed of the issue was
mainly for the purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness in relation
to the construction and development of our projects and for general
corporate purposes.
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As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of senior notes were
HK$12,332.4 million. The senior notes are jointly guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries and secured by pledges of share of certain subsidiaries.

Short-Term Notes

In October 2016, China South International Industrial Materials City
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“China South International”) obtained the
relevant approval for issuing the short-term notes in the national inter-
bank market in the PRC with a maximum principal amount of RMB6.0
billion. In June and August 2017, China South International issued the
first tranche and the second tranche of the short-term notes of 2017
with a total principal amount of RMB500 million with a maturity period
of 270 days and at an interest rate of 6.5% per annum for each tranche,
respectively. The proceeds thereof were to be used for general corporate
purpose and repaying part of bank loans of the Group. The first tranche
and second tranche short-term notes of 2017 have been repaid in March
and May 2018, respectively.

Medium-Term Notes

In April 2014, China South International obtained the relevant approval
for issuing the medium-term notes in the national inter-bank market in
the PRC with a maximum principal amount of RMB4.0 billion. In May
2014, China South International issued the first tranche of the medium-
term notes of 2014 with a total principal amount of RMB1.0 billion with
a maturity period of 5 years and at an interest rate of 7.5% per annum.
The proceeds thereof were to be used for repaying part of short-term
bank loans of the Group. The first tranche of the medium-term notes of
2014 have been repaid in May 2019. In September 2014, China South
International issued the second tranche of the medium-term notes of
2014 with a total principal amount of RMB1.0 billion with a maturity
period of 5 years and at an interest rate of 8.4% per annum. The proceeds
thereof were to be used for repaying part of bank loans of the Group. In
July 2015, China South International issue the first tranche of the medium
term notes of 2015 with a total principal amount of RMB2.0 billion with a
maturity period of 3 years and at an interest rate of 7.0% per annum. The
proceeds thereof were to be used for replacement of bank loans of the
Group and the construction of CSC Nanning project. The first tranche of
the medium-term notes of 2015 have been repaid in July 2018.
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In April 2017, China South International obtained another approval for
issuing the medium term notes with a maximum principal amount of
RMB3.0 billion. In April 2019, China South International issued the first
tranche of the medium-term notes of 2019 with a total principal amount
of RMB600 million with a maximum maturity period of 3 years and at an
interest rate of 8.5% per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used
for refinancing existing borrowings of the Group.

Corporate Bonds

In March 2015, China South International obtained the relevant approval
for issuing the corporate bonds in a maximum principal amount of
RMB1.5 billion in the PRC. In April 2015, China South International
issued the corporate bonds with a total principal amount of RMB1.5
billion with a term of up to 6 years in maximum and at an interest rate
of 7.0% per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used for funding
the development of CSC Zhengzhou project. In April 2018, China South
International repaid approximately RMB1.499 billion of corporate bonds.
The remaining portion of RMB482,000 will be matured at April 2021
which the interest rate was 8.05% per annum which was early repaid in
full in April 2019.

Domestic Company Bonds

In December 2015, China South International obtained the relevant
approval for issuing the domestic company bonds in a maximum principal
amount of RMB4.4 billion in the PRC. In January 2016, China South
International issued the first tranche of the domestic company bonds of
2016 with a total principal amount of RMB3.0 billion with a term of 3
years and at an interest rate of 5.98% per annum. The proceeds thereof
were to be used for repaying part of bank loans of the Group and for
general working capital. In May 2016, China South International issued
the second tranche of the domestic company bonds of 2016 with a total
principal amount of RMB1.4 billion with a term of 3 years and at an
interest rate of 6.85% per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used
for repaying part of bank loans of the Group and for general working
capital. The first tranche and second tranche of the domestic company
bonds of 2016 was repaid in January and May 2019, respectively.
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In April 2019, China South International also obtained another two
approvals for issuing the domestic company bonds with a maximum
principal amount of RMB4.4 billion in total in the PRC. China South
International may issue new domestic company bonds as when
appropriates.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of China South International’s
medium-term notes were HK$2,459.9 million, corporate bonds were
HK$562,000 and domestic company bonds were HK$1,733.2 million
respectively.

Gearing Ratio

The Group's gearing ratio (net debt divided by total equity) was 68.9%
as at 31 March 2019, 77.4% as at 31 March 2018 respectively. The total
liabilities over total assets ratio was 68.0% as at 31 March 2019 and
67.4% as at 31 March 2018, respectively.

The Group's business and assets are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
while the consolidated financial statements of the Group were presented
in Hong Kong dollar and the changes in the exchange rate of Hong Kong
dollar against the Renminbi would affect foreign exchange differences
upon currency revaluation. Since early 2018, the depreciation of Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollar result in the decrease in the Group’s net
assets presented in Hong Kong dollar. If taking out the effect of foreign
currency, the adjusted net gearing ratio was 63.2%, which represented a
significant decrease when compared with that at same period of last year.

Net Current Assets and Current Ratio

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net current assets of HK$4,365.8
million (31 March 2018: HK$8,368.8 million) at a current ratio of 1.09 (31
March 2018: 1.19).
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group has provided guarantees with respect to banking facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with mortgage loans entered
into by purchasers of the Group's trade centers and residential properties
and bank loans entered into by lessees of the Group’s residential and
commercial properties. The guarantees granted to purchasers of trade
centers and residential properties will be released when the purchasers
obtain building ownership certificates, which will then be pledged to the
banks. For leased residential and commercial properties, the guarantees
will be released accordingly when the lessees repaid the loan. As at 31
March 2019, the guarantees amounted to HK$15,219.0 million (31 March
2018: HK$12,574.5 million).

Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had future capital expenditure
contracted but not yet provided for in the amount of HK$15,530.9 million
(31 March 2018: HK$10,725.3 million).

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiary and
Associated Companies

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the Year.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The income and
bank deposits of the Group were substantially denominated in Renminbi
to meet the Group’s development and operation needs in the PRC. Other
than the foreign currency denominated bank deposits, bank borrowings
and senior notes, the Group does not have any other material exposure
to foreign exchange risk. During the Year, the Group entered into certain
forward currency contract and currency options with bank to hedge the
amount of US$100 million of the foreign exchange exposure, for which all
contracts have been expired as at 31 March 2019.

The Group continues to adopt a proactive approach to closely monitor the
foreign currency market, as well as explore the domestic capital market
for financing opportunities and consider other hedging arrangement if
such need arise.
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Economic, Commercial and Other Risks

The Group may be exposed to the risk of negative developments in
national and regional economies, property and financial markets. It may
result in reductions in sales and selling prices of the properties, rental
rates and occupancy rates of properties, and demand for ancillary services
and facilities it provides. It may also result in recession, inflation, deflation
and currency fluctuations as well as restrictions in the availability of
credit, increases in financing and other operating costs. The development
of the Group’s projects may subject to market risks as it usually takes
time to complete. Though the Group appoints quality partners for the
development of its projects, it may still be subject to associated risk of the
quality and safety of the products and services provided by the Group.
The Group may also be subject to a number of regulatory environments
in the territories in which it operates. Changes in the regulatory approach
to such matters as ownership of assets and businesses, regulations
related to development and operations, exchange controls, tax rules and
employment legislation may impact the business of the Group. Changes
in the political environment in such territories may also affect the Group.
The management of the Group will keep abreast of the environment and
policy changes and make the necessary adjustments in response to such
changes, if any. Further steps taken by the Group to manage the financial
risk will be set out in the notes to financial statements.

Land for Projects and Restriction on Sales

The Group signs project agreements with local governments prior to the
development of all projects in order to outline the long term blueprints of
relevant projects. These agreements generally set out the size and use of
lands and the related development plans. However, the actual acquisition
of lands, land area and terms and conditions of such acquisition are
subject to the relevant regulations and local governments’ requirements,
the Group’s development plans and the results of the relevant public
tender, auction and listing. Since the development of each of these
projects may last for more than ten years, the Group and the local
government may discuss to adjust the details of these agreements to align
with the actual needs of developments.

The progress of the land acquisition and project development depends on
the progress of the Group’s planning, as well as the procedural formalities
as determined by the local government departments. As the procedures
and requirements set by different local governments vary, the Group may
adjust the development of each project according to relevant conditions.
In view of its substantial land bank and flexibility in project planning, the
Group believes such circumstances will not have material impact on its
development as a whole.
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Pursuant to certain project and land related contracts and documents,
some of the land acquired by the Group may have sales restrictions on
properties built on it. These include the saleable area of trade centers of
CSC Shenzhen is limited to 30% of the total buildable GFA of properties
built on the relevant parcels of land. The saleable area of trade centers
and warehousing facilities built on certain parcels of land acquired by CSC
Nanchang and CSC Nanning in 2010 are limited to 60% of the relevant
total buildable GFA. The saleable area of trade centers or commercial
properties built by CSC Hefei and CSC Chongging are limited to 50% of
their relevant total buildable GFA. The saleable area of trade centers or
commercial properties of phase | and future phases of CSC Zhengzhou
are limited to 60% and 50% respectively of its relevant total buildable
GFA. According to the Group'’s business model, the Group intends to hold
not less than 50% of trade centers and commercial facilities for leasing
and self-use, the related sales restrictions will not have significant impact
to the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a workforce of approximately 5,200
people. The number of the Group's staff decreased by approximately 7.8%
from 5,640 people as at 31 March 2018. The Group aims to recruit, retain
and develop competent individuals who are committed to the Group’s
long-term success and growth. Remunerations and other benefits of
employees are reviewed annually in response to both market conditions
and trends, and are based on qualifications, experience, responsibilities
and performance. In addition to basic salaries and other staff benefits,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be awarded to employees
who display outstanding performance and contributions to the Group.
During the Year, the Company granted in aggregate of 25,500,000
share options to four independent non-executive directors and certain
employees of the Group.

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T

BIEETEE R THAEREE RFIXH - SO EE Tib
TRz MEFEHEERS - BIERIZErRE BRI
RGP ORI EMERRAIEREREN
30% : MEAEEMMEEERRN2010FNENE
Fht - HEEROZSHOMERRENHEER
ERNZEMELEEEEENC0Y : AIEERR
MEEERPERZNR P O EEDENTHER
BNz S E B EEEmMENS50% : BN ZERR
EEM— RN BSOSO EDEN AT
EEBENARRZEMEBTERZEMENCOY &
50% - IRAKEEERR - AKEEBIFETIIORN
50% RSP LREERERGIEREMNAR - A%
ERBIEAEENTETAK o

ADER

M2019F3A318 - XREEHBEEH5200A ° K
EEEE AHE2018F3 A31HH5,640 A T4
7.8% o AEEBNBE - BB REIZEBHIRAK
SERRENIKIERMHAL - EENHHREMETR
TEREMRARMSBY  URIERENERF - K5 -
BEMKRSEHETRT BREAFSREMETRE
o - RIVEBFAAAEBEL BERNES A &SR
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Project Portfolio

HAAS

Properties held for sale/finance lease

FFHE/MEBEYR

Acquired land

Group's area Approx. GFA  Completion
Project Location Interest (sq. m.) Description (sq.m.) Year
EBLEE BHREER
HE ok rEEER (FBHK) AR (FHK) RIFH
China South City Shenzhen No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, 100% 1,060,000 Phase | trade centers 1,000 2004
FE=EER Pinghu, Longgang District, —HZS%0
Shenzhen, China
FE Ry T8 Phase Il residential facilities 800 2008
ERAEH —_HEERERE
Phase Il commercial and other
ancillary facilities
—HEERAMRERE
Phase Il trade centers
ZHRZHL
Phase IIl commercial and other
ancillary facilities
ZHER A BRERE
Phase Ill trade centers 42,500 2016
ZHRZHL
Logistics zone commercial and
other ancillary facilities
nEERERAMEERE
— Office tower 30,000 2015, 2016
7N
China South City Nanchang No. 1, Huanan Avenue, 100% 1,807,800 Phase I trade centers 186,500 2012, 2014,
[BEESE) Honggutan New District, —HR GH0 2015, 2016
Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, China Phase | residential facilities 3,000 2012, 2015,
MEDIAEE R EMANENR —HEERERE 2017, 2018

EPAE—#
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Project Portfolio (Continued)

HEAS(E)

Properties held for sale/finance lease

FEHE/RMEREYE

Acquired land

Group's area Approx. GFA  Completion
Project Location Interest (sg. m.) Description (sg.m.) Year
EELEE BHOREEE
EH bk AEEER (FEK) AR (FHXK) RIFH
China South City Nanning No. 56, Shajing Avenue, 100% 890,000 Phase I trade centers 182,800 2012
HEEEN Jiangnan District, —HR SR
Nanning City, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Phase | offices 11,800 2018
China —HETE
HEERLRE RREET
TEE Y H RE565, Phase | residential facilities 33,500 2013, 2017,
—HEERERE 2018
China South City Xi'an No. 8, Port Avenue, Xi'an 100% 1,926,000 Phase I trade centers 464,700 2013, 2015,
PR ERH International Trade and Logistics —BR G0 2017, 2018,
Park, Xi'an City, 2019
Shaanxi Province,
China
HERFmAARH
AZERELR
BB AESTE
China South City Harbin Tuanjie Town, Daowei District, 100% 2,313,300 Phase | trade centers 643,200 2014, 2017,
REREERN Harbin City, —HR SR 2019
Heilongjiang Province, China
HREZETIERAENEINE Phase | residential facilities
B4 — B ERERE
China South City Zhengzhou  Longhu Town, Xinzheng City, 100% 3,510,000 Phase I trade centers 499,800 2014, 2016,
ENERA Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, —HZ S50 2018
China
T A N m e T Phase | residential facilities 300 2019
e — B ERERE
China South City Hefei Fanhua Avenue, Taohua Industrial 100% 2,450,100 Phase | trade centers 92,600 2014, 2015,
AREEREH Park, Feixi County of Hefei City, —BR S0 2018
Auhui Province, China
mEZHEARTEAREIEE Phase | residential facilities 74,400 2016, 2018,
ZEXE — B ERERE 2019
China South City Chongging ~ No. 1 Dongcheng Avenue, 100% 2,751,400 Phase | trade centers 411,700 2015, 2016
E B0 Nanpeng, Banan District, —HR 5%
Chongging Municipality, China
hEHERTEER Phase | residential facilities 28,800 2018, 2019

BERAAEH

—HEERERE

06
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
HBEAS ()

Properties for Investment

BREW=

Group's Approx. GFA®
Project Location Interest  Description (sq.m.)  Lease Term
BHREEEY
HH bk AEEEE WA (FHXK) BREFH
China South City Shenzhen No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, 100%  Phase | trade centers 167,100  Medium Term Lease
Y Pinghu, Longgang District, —HBZS%00 R
Shenzhen, China
R YT e [ T Phase | commercial and other
EHAE—H andillary facilities
—HEERABEER
— Business centers 22,400 Medium Term Lease
— BB R
— Hotel properties 32,100  Medium Term Lease
— EEME R
Phase Il trade centers 352,800  Medium Term Lease
—HR SR REEY
Phase Il commercial and other
ancillary facilities
—HEERABEER
— Office tower 15,100  Medium Term Lease
— AR Y
— Shopping plaza 15,200  Medium Term Lease
— A% Y
Phase Il trade centers 267,400  Medium Term Lease
ZHR SR Y
Phase Il commercial and other
ancillary facilities
ZHEERABRER
— Office tower 4,400  Medium Term Lease
YN Y
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Project Portfolio (Continued)

HEAS(E)

Properties for Investment

BREMZF

Project

BE

Location

13

Group's
Interest

AEBAN

Description

AR

Approx. GFA®
(sq. m.)
BRREERY
(FHXK)

Lease Term

ZRER

China South City Nanchang
HEEHH

China South City Nanning
HEEEN

China South City Xi'an
BREEH

China South City Harbin
BEEER

China South City Zhengzhou
Mz

China South City Hefei
AEEHS

China South City Chongging
BREEH

No. 1 Huanan Avenue,
Honggutan New District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,
China
hEIIAAEETAAENE
ERAEH

No. 56 Shajing Avenue,
Jiangnan District, Nanning City,
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, China

HEERLRE RREED
TEEDHRES6H:

No. 8, Port Avenue, Xi'an
International Trade and Logistics
Park, Xi'an City,

Shaanxi Province,

China

HRERFEART
AREREBER

BB AESE

Tuanjie Town, Daowei District,
Harbin City,

Heilongjiang Province,

China
HEEETIERRETEINR
B#R

Longhu Town, Xinzheng City,
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province,
China

R A BT
i

Fanhua Avenue, Taohua Industrial
Park, Feixi County of Hefei City,
Auhui Province, China

PEZHESETEEREIRE

ZERE

No. 1 Dongcheng Avenue,
Nanpeng, Banan District,
Chongging Municipality, China
HEZENERR

EEZ VYN R

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Phase | trade centers

—HZ 5P

Phase | trade centers and offices
—HR SR LNETE

Phase | trade centers

—HRFH0

Phase | trade centers

—HRFP0

Phase | trade centers

—HRHHD

Phase | trade centers and
warehouse

—HR P LB R

Phase | trade centers

—HRHRD

232,300

616,300

225,000

449,200

747,400

1,038,900

507,100

Medium Term Lease

o EARLA)

Medium Term Lease

o EIR4Y

Medium Term Lease

P EIRA)

Medium Term Lease

P EIRA)

Medium Term Lease

th EARLH)

Medium Term Lease

b EIEL4)

Medium Term Lease

b EIRLH)

68

Note:

(1) The approximate GFA does not include the area of underground facilities.
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
HBEAS ()

Properties under Development — with Land use Rights Certificates

REDWE-RELHERERS

Approx. Total Properties Estimated
Group's  Acquired land Planned under completion
Project/Location Interest areal”) GFA®  Description Development  Stage of completion calendar year
(sq. m) (sq.m.) (sq. m.)
BHERL Rag
EA/MBE rE@ER HERD BEERQ AR BRONE THRER BATIES
(F5%) (FHK) (F5%)
1. China South City Shenzhen 100% 1,060,000 2,644,000 a.  Trade centers, warehouse and 185,000  Foundation work and 2020-2021
RYIZEmSE other ancillary facilities superstructure in progress
No. 1 Hua Nan Main Road, Pinghu, RGP ERREMEERD WETRR FETRET
Longgang District, Shenzhen, China
PERIMERR TS b.  Remaining portions - Planning -
EPAE—H BTHH RET
2. China South City Nanchang 100% 1,807,800 4,794,400 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 340,000 Foundation work and 2020-2021
EEEL warehouse and other ancillary facilities superstructure in progress
No. 1, Huanan Avenue, ReRb - FE - BE ARREMEE WETRR FETRET
Honggutan New District, B4
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,
China b. Remaining portions - Planning =
PEIEEHETAARNE HTHH RET
EPAE-H
3. China South City Nanning 100% 890,000 2,480,000 a.  Trade centers, warehouse and other 154,300  Foundation work and 2020-2021
HEERY andillary facilities superstructure in progress
No. 56, Shajing Avenue, Jiangnan RGP - ERREMEERD WETRR FETRET
e . i I
o N HTHH R
PEREMRE AREED
JLRE Y K856 5
4. China South City Xi'an 100% 1,926,000 4,676,600 a.  Trade centers, commercial, warehouse and 480,000 Foundation work and 2019-2021
BREEN other ancillary facilties superstructure in progress
No.8, Port Avenue, Xi’an International RFEL - B ERREMEESRE WATER FETRET
Trade and Logistics Park, Xi"an City,
Shaanxi Province, China b. Remaining portions - Planning -
PEREEELTARERERE HTHH RET
BIBRES
5. China South City Harbin 100% 2,313,300 5612,400 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 667,200 Foundation work and 2019-2021
REEZEEY hotels, warehouse and other ancillary superstructure in progress
Tuanjie Town, Daowei District, facilties WEIRR FETRERT
Harbin City, Heilongjiang Province, China ReHL - FEEEOBE  BER
PEEE IR ATENEE LA EfRERN
b. Remaining portions - Planning -
HTHH RET
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
HBEAS ()

Properties under Development — with Land use Rights Certificates

REDWE-RELHERERS

Approx. Total Properties Estimated
Group's  Acquired land Planned under completion
Project/Location Interest areal”) GFA®  Description Development  Stage of completion calendar year
(sq. m) (sq.m.) (sq. m.)
BHERL REA
BE /3 rEEER BERY BEEEY AR BRTIE THER BHRIEE
(E7K) (E7K) (E7K)
6. China South City Zhengzhou 100% 3,510,000 9,756,200 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 2,591,900 Foundation work and 2019-2021
BMEE warehouse and other ancillary facllities superstructure in progress
Longhu Town, Xinzheng City, gl FE - BE  BEREMEE WETRR FETRETH
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, B
China
RETRHE M THET b.  Remaining portions - Planning =
Eine HTHH RET
7. China South City Hefei 100% 2,450,100 5,993,000 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 1,219,700  Foundation work and 2019-2021
ahEmy warehouse and other ancillary facilities superstructure in progress
Fanhua Avenue, Taohua Industrial Park, REL - E BE ARREMEE WEATERR FETRETD
Feixi County of Hefei City, Auhui Province, Bid
China
PEZEESETER b.  Remaining portions - Planning =
HEIXEZENE BTHH RET
8. China South City Chongging 100% 2,751,400 6,501,800 a.  Trade centers, residential, commercial, 537,500 Foundation work and 2019-2021
BEEEY warehouse and other ancillary facilities superstructure in progress
No. 1 Dongcheng Avenue, Nanpeng, XL BT B ARREMEE WATERR FETREND
Banan District, Chongging Bid
Municipality, China - Planning -
PHEETCEREYRAAET b.  Remaining portions RElh
HTHH
Notes: F3E -
(1) Represents the land area acquired by the Group as at 31 March 2019. (1) REAEBEN2019F3F31BDHEE 2 it -
() Represents the planned GFA for the land acquired including completed ~ (2) REEBEZTHHNAZZEDERIEC R I WE

properties and properties under development. The actual GFA to be built

may vary subsequently according to needs of the Group.

REBEERYE  REBRERNEEA

SENFEMAMRLE -
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Five Years' Financial Summary

T EIEHE

Year ended 31 March

BE3A3MALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T THT THL THT
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 10,274,255 9,405,370 7,838,510 6,136,262 9,757,767
Gross Profit E7 4,439,594 4,069,179 3,510,145 2,959,053 5,175,530
Profit before tax FiRIA) 5,376,775 6,783,465 6,592,254 4,904,233 5,859,489
Income tax expenses FrERiE Y (2,133,661) (2,281,133) (2,269,292) (1,370,457) (2,144,709)
Profit for the year REEFHE 3,243,114 4,502,332 4,322,962 3,533,776 3,714,780
Attributable to: T F R
Owners of the parent [SYNGII7=PN 3,250,962 4,511,679 4,322,626 3,537,012 3,727,872
Non-controlling interests RS (7,848) (9,347) 336 (3,236) (13,092)
Core net profit attributable to BARRE AEGZD
owners of the parent* SRR 1,749,575 1,608,548 1,351,212 1,205,782 1,854,273
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets EnEEE 59,867,531 59,267,098 51,889,666 44,393,168 38,990,032
Current assets MBEE 53,239,431 52,278,868 37,086,167 38,992,163 34,263,939
Total assets BERE 113,106,962 111,545,966 88,975,833 83,385,331 73,253,971
Current liabilities THEE 48,873,586 43,910,048 29,601,179 28,021,173 28,345,624
Non-current liabilities ErRBAE 28,083,549 31,235,164 30,895,263 28,995,693 19,886,531
Total liabilities BEER 76,957,135 75,145,212 60,496,442 57,016,866 48,232,155
Equity attributable to owners BARERAER
of parent Ea 35,990,593 36,218,344 28,298,254 26,178,517 24,866,969
Non-controlling interests IR 159,234 182,410 181,137 189,948 154,847
Total equity S 36,149,827 36,400,754 28,479,391 26,368,465 25,021,816
Earnings per share attributable BEREAAEER
to ordinary equity holders EEEEAZ
of the parent BRER
Basic R HK40.33 cents ~ HK56.35cents  HK53.99 cents  HK44.22 cents  HK48.73 cents
&l il ol poxll] gl
Diluted e HK40.33 cents  HK56.19 cents ~ HK53.96 cents ~ HK44.05cents  HK45.27 cents
&l bl bl gl gl

* Mainly represents the net profit attributable to owners of the parent excluding
fair value gains on investment properties and related tax effects, provision
for impairment of goodwill, provision for impairment loss of available-for-
sale investments, fair value gain on derivative financial instrument and loss on
redemption of senior notes, etc.

o EERRRFREVERITFERGERABEREZE
AERERE  THESSHREANERE  T£2
BTAXFERSENENELEREZBRENEGRF
BB AR -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management

ESRTEEEERE

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Hing, aged 58, is our Chairman and an Executive
Director. He is a co-founder of our Group and has been a Director
since 2 August 2002. He acted as Co-Chairman of the Group from
30 September 2009 until he was re-designated as Chairman of the Group
on 25 July 2017. Mr. Cheng is primarily responsible for formulating the
overall strategies and assessing the performance of the Group as well
as providing leadership for the Board. He has more than 36 years of
management experience in the manufacturing, wholesale and distribution
businesses. Mr. Cheng has been awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong 1997” from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, the
Distinguished International Entrepreneur of the Year Award 1997 from
San Francisco State University and the Chinese Outstanding Entrepreneur
Award 2008 from the China Enterprise Confederation and the China
Enterprise Directors Association. Mr. Cheng is the vice chairman of the
China Chamber of International Commerce, a member of the 10th and
a standing member of the 11th Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and a member of the 3rd, the 4th and the 5th Shenzhen Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Cheng is
also presently the foundation honorary chairman of Gem and Jewelry
Committee of China General Chamber of Commerce, a standing member
of the China Enterprise Confederation and the China Enterprise Directors
Association, vice president of the China Federation of Logistics and
Purchasing, vice president of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
Federation of Industry and Commerce, vice president of the Guangxi
Overseas Friendship Association, vice president of the China Chamber of
International Commerce Shenzhen, honorary chairman of the Shenzhen
Logistics and Supply Chain Management Association, vice chairman of
the Federation of Shenzhen Industries, honorary life president of the
Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association Limited, honorary
chairman of Zhejiang Pearl Trade Association and member of the
Shenzhen Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Cheng was the chairman
and non-executive director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“The Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1466) until 10
December 2016. Mr. Cheng is the father of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman,
an Executive Director, and a younger brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po, a Non-
Executive Director.

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Mr. FUNG Sing Hong Stephen, aged 54, is our Group Vice Chairman
and Executive Director. Mr. Fung joined our Group in July 2006 and
since then he acted as the Group’s Chief Financial Officer until 19 May
2016. He has been an Executive Director since August 2014. Mr. Fung
had been the Chief Executive Officer of the Group since 1 January 2016
until he was appointed as the Group Vice Chairman on 4 May 2017. Mr.
Fung is primarily responsible for assisting the Chairman in formulating
the overall development planning and strategies of the Group and will
be responsible for formulating capital market financing, merger and
acquisition strategies, as well as strategic cooperations in e-commerce,
logistics and commercial operations, including extending the cooperations
with Tencent. Mr. Fung graduated from the University of Wales, United
Kingdom with a Master degree in Business Administration. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Chartered Global Management Accountants, a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of the Hong Kong
Professionals And Senior Executives Association. Mr. Fung has more
than 26 years of experience in financial management, mergers and
acquisitions, capital markets financing and corporate restructuring. Mr.
Fung is a standing member of the 5th Chongging Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also an Advisor
of National Management Accounting Advisory Committee, Ministry of
Finance, the director & vice president of Hong Kong Business Accountants
Association and the vice president of Hong Kong Chongging Friendship
Federation. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Fung was an executive director
and the chief financial officer of Guangdong Investment Limited (“GDI").
Before joining GDI, Mr. Fung served as an executive director and the chief
financial officer of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (“GDL"). Both GDI and GDL are
companies listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock codes: 270 and 124, respectively). Mr. Fung was also a key member
of the Guangdong Enterprises (Holdings) Limited (“GDE") restructuring
team and has been extensively involved in the US$5.3 billion debt
restructuring of GDE.

BEMKE  545% SERBIERFHRATES - BEAE
R2006F7 AMMARERE - WHINAKREEZ20165
SA9REAASEEERIBHEE - HEEH20145F
SHAHMAHRITESE » WH20165F1A1BE201745A
ARERBEEAEEITHRAER - BEEN2017F5A
ABEFAEEREE - BEATEEEHHERE
FHEEBMBRRIMEEMGE  YAEFHEEART
BRIERWEA R URAEBREEFEE Y
i AEEESHIENEKRAE BEFMERAR
RNAIMEIE - BAEERERREBRBHTAZ 68T
FEEBLIEM - FARESHIATEFEE - X
EHESHAAETEE « 2RFHEESHMNASY
B BREREeARSERBBEIERARTBA
Bpees - KEERMBER 60 RKE - &R
TERMERCESAFEHRBBIB26FLE o HLE
AETFEARBAHEGZEEMEAEZESEEER
B ARV BBERSTAANER FEER
etfiperEERAeR R EEEEESRER -
MAKEBZ A BAEAEEREGRAR(EE
WEDNRITEE RV AL - EINABGRER -
EEETEEBEMERERAR(FIESREEEE
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Mr. ZHAO Lidong, aged 48, is our Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Zhao joined the Group as the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group in November 2018, and he has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group with effect from 1 February 2019. He is primarily responsible
for the overall operation and management of the Group. Mr. Zhao was
graduated from Dalian University in 1992 with a Diploma in Thermal
Power Engineering and graduated from Dalian University of Technology
in 1999 with a Bachelor degree in Computer and Applications. Mr.
Zhao obtained the qualification of Heating and Ventilation Engineer in
2000. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhao was the president of China
Glorious City Holdings Group Co., Ltd. from April 2017 to November
2018, he was the president of Z# (FF & ) AR A A (Hua Dong (China)
Co. Ltd.*) from September 2016 to April 2017. During the period of
November 2011 to September 2016, Mr. Zhao worked with Wuzhou
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the mainboard of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 1369) as executive director
and executive president. During the period from 2003 to 2011, Mr. Zhao
served as deputy general manager of Wuhan Wanda Plaza Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Wanda Plaza Commercial Management
Co., Ltd. and general manager of property management department,
construction department and preparatory department of BiEE B EE
B AR A 7] (Wanda Group Commercial Management Co., Ltd.*), etc.

Ms. CHENG Ka Man Carman, aged 30, has been an Executive Director
since 4 May 2017. She is primarily responsible for the administration
and operations of the Group. Ms. Cheng graduated from the University
of London with a Bachelor of Science degree in Financial and Business
Economics. She also obtained a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Imperial College London and a Master of Philosophy degree in
Real Estate Finance from the University of Cambridge. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Cheng was an executive director of Man Sang International
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 938). She had also worked in a leading investment
firm in Asia. Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, the
Chairman and Executive Director and the niece of Mr. Cheng Tai Po, a
Non-Executive Director.

*  For identification purposes only

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T

Y REE 4858  MITESREBTEEH -
ER2018F M AMAAREBETEEEREZR - I
R2019F2 A 1B EERTARRBINITEERER
THES  AEAEECBRELERTE - BAER
TONFEENKEAE RSB IRAMETIESR
BIXOR + W 1999F BEMNNEE T REHE R KL E
FAEZEARR - AN 2000F SR B TIZAMER
RIMARERE R » BEER2017F48E20185F11 8
HE AERBIEREBER AT 285 - )R20169F9
BE2017F4AHHAEZ(FR)ER AR ZBH -
WH2011F 11 A E2016F9 A H5RH & E 8 N
ERARAR(—KREBB AT ERLETHAR]
BRADMRSE - 1369) ZHITER RINITAE - MAER
2003F 201 FHHCIRUREBZERESHES
BAERAFERKEEEESHEETERARARFBL
I BESERETEARATMESEL - ITEE
MATHAE 4R IB 5 -

BRE X Lt 305% - B2017F 5 BABEZE AT
BEE FEASASENTHRIE TR2EREEN
BETE BRITE2ENERBBAASNESEKLRY
¥imEsatan RS aRyRETISRE
BEELEMLREARBAE EESRMBELSM -
RINBAEBER  BL+AREBRBARAR(—K
REBBIHER EMHRR - BRMOARSE - 938) 28
TEE o HINGR—RZEMNELAIRE QBT o &
REABERERPTESEINFILE 2 25 RIEWIT
EEWARLEZER -



Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EELTEEEERER (&)

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. MA Kai Cheung, SBs, B8S, aged 77, is our Non-Executive Director.
He is a co-founder of our Group and has been a Director since 2 August
2002, then resigned as Co-Chairman of the Group and remains as Non-
Executive Director of the Group with effect from 25 July 2017. He is
primarily responsible for advising on the formulation of the Group's
general business models, development strategies and the resolution of
major issues. Dr. Ma has more than 47 years of management experience
in garment distribution and manufacturing businesses. Dr. Ma was
awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and a Silver Bauhinia Star (SBS) by
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2003 and
2009 respectively. He was also a member of the 9th, the 10th and the
11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Dr. Ma is currently the permanent honorary president of
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the permanent
honorary president of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce
Limited, the chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organizations, the permanent honorary president of Hong
Kong & Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association and the permanent
honorary chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community
Organizations. Dr. Ma received an Honorary Doctoral degree in Philosophy
from the Morrison University in the United States in 2004. He received
a fellowship from the Asian Knowledge Management Association in
2008. Dr. Ma is also the honorary chairman and non-executive director
of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 126).

FHITESE
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Mr. CHENG Tai Po, aged 67, is a Non-Executive Director. He has been a
Director since 30 April 2010 and is primarily responsible for advising on
the formulation of the Group’s general business models, development
strategies and the resolution of major issues. Mr. Cheng has over 36 years
of experience in manufacturing, wholesale and distribution businesses.
He is a board member of the Zhanjiang Ocean University, China, a
general committee member of the Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’
Association, the chairman of Hong Kong Overseas Puning Sheshan
Clansmen Association and the permanent honorary president of Hong
Kong Association of Jie Yang Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese
Limited. Mr. Cheng has been the executive director and deputy chairman
of Man Sang International Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
The Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 938), since August 1997 and
has been re-designated as chairman and non-executive director since 16
October 2014 until his retirement effective from 31 March 2016, and the
director and vice-chairman of China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Man Sang International (B.V.l) Limited), a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange MKT (ticker symbol: CNR) until his retirement
effective from 5 September 2014. Mr. Cheng is an elder brother of Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing, the Chairman and Executive Director, and is an uncle
of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman, the Executive Director.

Mr. LIN Ching Hua, aged 46, has been a Non-Executive Director since
28 June 2014. He is primarily responsible for advising on the formulation
of the Group’s general business models, development strategies and the
resolution of major issues. Mr. Lin joined Tencent Group (“Tencent Group”
includes Tencent Holdings Limited, shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code no. 700, and
its subsidiaries) in April 2013. He is currently the vice president of Tencent
Group and is the general manager of Strategy Development Department
and Social and Performance Advertisement Department. Mr. Lin is mainly
responsible to establish the strategic platform of Tencent, to formulate
the business development strategies of the Tencent Group, and to lead
the research and development of various business models in the Tencent
Group and the business cooperation with external strategic partners who
the Tencent Group has equity investments. Mr. Lin has taken a crucial and
leading role in promoting Tencent's strategic initiatives, including Weixin
commercialization, important strategic investments and cooperations, and
the business planning and development in internet finance, and resources
integration and product innovation on social advertisement. Before joining
Tencent, Mr. Lin was a partner at McKinsey & Company, Inc. (“McKinsey")
and general manager of its branch in Taiwan. Mr. Lin mainly served
clients and performed research in technology sector, including hi-tech
manufacturing, internet service, telecommunication and media during
his 12 years with McKinsey. His various research received wide coverage
in a number of Business and Financial media in China. Before joining
McKinsey, Mr. Lin worked at Deloitte Consulting Inc., Taiwan Office, as a
consultant. He received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard Business School in 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. LEUNG Kwan Yuen Andrew, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 68, has been
an Independent Non-Executive Director since 4 September 2009.
He has more than 39 years of management experience in the textile
manufacturing, wholesale and distribution businesses. Mr. Leung was
elected as the President of the Sixth Legislative Council of Hong Kong
on 12 October 2016 and he is currently a member of the Industrial (First)
Functional Constituency of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong and is
also a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Mr. Leung is currently the honorary chairman of
Textile Council of Hong Kong, the honorary president of the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries, a fellow member of the Textiles Institute as
well as the Clothing and Footwear Institute in the United Kingdom. He
was a council member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. In
addition, Mr. Leung is an independent non-executive director of Wharf
Real Estate Investment Company Limited (stock code 1997) and Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code 440), both are companies listed on
the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung was an
independent non-executive director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(stock code: 2356) and Harbour Centre Development Limited (stock code:
51) until his resignation effective from 20 December 2017 and 4 May
2018 respectively. He was the chairman and director of Sun Hing Knitting
Factory Limited until his resignation effective from 28 February 2017.

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 62, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director since 4 September 2009. Mr. Li has more than 41 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. Li graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master degree in Business Administration
from the University of East Asia, Macau, currently known as the University
of Macau. He was appointed a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Guangdong Provincial Committee on 17 January
2018 and was subsequently appointed a standing member on 27 January
2018. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and re-designated as the honorary president and remains as director of
Hong Kong Business Accountants Association on 2 August 2018. Mr. Li is
the executive director and chief financial officer of Guangdong Holdings
Limited, executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (“GDL"), non-executive
director of Guangdong Investment Limited (“GDI") and an independent
non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (“SZ Investment”)
and Hans Energy Company Limited (“Hans"). GDL, GDI, SZ Investment
and Hans are companies listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock codes: 124, 270, 604 and 554 respectively). He is
the chairman of the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited,
a member of China Overseas Friendship Association and the vice chairman
and secretary of the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee
of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association. He was appointed
as Advisor of Management Accounting of the Ministry of Finance, PRC
since 21 July 2014. Mr. Li had worked for Henderson Land Development
Company Limited (stock code: 12).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 72, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director since 11 April 2011. Mr. Hui has over 48 years of
experience in the securities and investment industry. He has served as a
council member and vice chairman of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission, a director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited, a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities
and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform and an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A for a
number of years. He was also a member of the Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
and a member of Government “Appointees” (independent member) of
Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui was
appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region a Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2004 and was also appointed as a
member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to 2017. He is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a senior fellow
member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Hui also
serves as a non-executive director of Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (stock code: 590) and an independent non-executive director of
Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (formerly known as Jiuzhou
Development Company Limited) (stock code: 908), Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212), Gemdale Properties and Investment
Corporation Limited (formerly known as Frasers Property (China) Limited)
(stock code: 535), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Limited (stock
code: 2386), Agile Property Holdings Limited (stock code: 3383) and FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited (stock code: 331), whose shares are listed on
The Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited (now known as Asia
Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited) (stock code: 711) and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (stock code: 388) until his resignation
effective from 1 February 2015 and his retirement effective from 29 April
2015 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki Samuel, s8s, MH, /P, aged 60, has been an
Independent Non-Executive Director since 1 March 2013. Mr. Yung
has over 37 years of experience in insurance sector. He was awarded
an EMBA from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and has attained certain professional qualifications, including Certified
Financial Planner, Registered Financial Consultant, Fellow Chartered
Financial Practitioner, Chartered Life Practitioner, Certified Manager of
Financial Advisor and Chartered Insurance Agency Manager. Mr. Yung
is currently an executive district director of AIA International Limited
and an independent non-executive director of China Overseas Insurance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Overseas Holdings Group,
and is also an independent non-executive director of China Overseas
Property Holdings Limited (stock code: 2669), a company listed on the
Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was an independent
non-executive director of Camsing International Holding Limited (formerly
known as Fittec International Group Limited) (stock code: 2662) until his
resignation effective from 31 May 2016, a company listed on the Main
Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Yung is also presently
a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the vice chairman of the Committee for
Economic Affair (CEA) of the CPPCC National Committee, the founding
president of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association,
the chairman of Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority
and the chairman or committee member of several Government
committees and non-governmental organizations. Mr. Yung was elected
the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award” in 1994. He was also
a Municipal Commission standing member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jilin, Standing Committee member
of All-China Youth Federation, member of Commission on Strategic
Development of the HKSAR, member of Central Policy Unit, chairman
of Hong Kong United Youth Association, chairman of The Outstanding
Young Persons’ Association, director and chairman of International
Committee of General Agents & Managers Association International, co-
chairman of the Asia Pacific Financial Services Association and president
of The Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong, president of General
Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong and chairman of Betting
and Lotteries Commission.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Key Management

Mr. HUI Chun Yip, aged 39, has been appointed as the Group's Chief
Financial Officer since 3 April 2018. Mr. Hui is primarily responsible for the
overall financial management of the Group, establishing and maintaining
investor relations and executing the Group’s capital market financing,
mergers and acquisitions and business cooperation. Mr. Hui has more
than 17 years of experience in financial management which include
auditing, accounting and financial management, corporate finance and
investor relations. During the period from March 2007 to February 2015,
Mr. Hui held various senior financial management positions of the Group,
which included the Group’s chief accountant and general manager of
account department. Before rejoined the Group on 3 April 2018, Mr.
Hui was the chief financial officer and company secretary of Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1628), from 31 March 2015 to 9
February 2018. Mr. Hui also had worked in Ernst & Young before. Mr. Hui
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree. Mr. Hui is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. JIANG Ling, aged 46, is the Group’'s Vice President. Ms. Jiang
joined our Group in November 2003, and is responsible for the Group's
strategic development, including policy research, project planning, land
resources planning and management and public relations. Ms. Jiang
graduated from the Department of Journalism, Huazhong University of
Science and Technology in 1994. She later completed Advanced Business
Management Course at HSBC Business School, Peking University in
2009, the postgraduate course in fashion buying at Hong Kong Institute
of Fashion Buying in 2011, and the Advanced Capital Management
(Investment and Financing) Course at Shenzhen Tsinghua University
Research Institute in 2016. She has also attained the qualification of senior
planner from the Ministry of Labor and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China (which has been renamed as the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China). Ms. Jiang
has over 19 years of management experience in the property industry
and has experience in the media industry. She was the manager of the
development department of Shanghai Chenghuang Temple Fuyoumen
Small-Commodities Market Corporation Limited, the director of Shenzhen
Column Editorial Department, Hong Kong Ta Kung Pao and the general
manager of Shenzhen Tongyuan Nanling Cultural and Creative Park
Corporation Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Key Management (Continued)

EERTECEREBE(B)

Ms. TSE Man Yu, aged 48, is the Company Secretary and the Group’s
Deputy Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Tse joined our Group in February
2008. She assists the Chief Financial Officer in offshore financing, merger
and acquisition, business cooperation of the Group, and responsible for
company secretarial duties and investor relations. Ms. Tse is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Tse graduated from the City
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science (Honors) degree in
Finance. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Tse has more than 23 years of experience in financial management,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate finance and asset management. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Tse was the assistant chief financial officer of
GDI which is a company listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 270). Ms. Tse was an alternate director of
Guangdong Development Fund Limited (“GDF"), which is a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange (code: gdf), and a director of
Guangdong Investment Management Limited, which is the fund manager
of GDF. Ms. Tse had also been a senior corporate finance executive of
Tung Fong Hung (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 279) and Sing Pao Media
Group Limited (stock code: 164), both companies were listed on the Main
Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Qiu Wen, aged 46, is the Investment Development Division’s
Executive Vice President. Mr. Qiu joined our Group in July 2016 and served
as the General Manager of CSC Shenzhen. He has been the Investment
Development Division’s Vice President in December 2018, and was then
appointed as the Executive Vice President in June 2019, responsible for the
operation and management of the Investment Development Group. Mr.
Qiu has extensive experience in construction management, cost control,
real estate sales planning and corporate management. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the Industrial and Civil Architecture College of Huanghe S&T
University, and obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Lingnan (University) College. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Qiu was a general manager of Guangzhou region in Hopson Development
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 754). He also worked in Guangdong Pearl
River Engineering General Contractor Limited*, and served as a deputy
general manager of Beijing region in Zhujiang Investment Co., Ltd*, and a
general manager of Beijing office in Guangdong Han Jian Construction &
Installing Engineering Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen Weiguo, aged 51, is the Business Management Division’s
Executive Vice President. Mr. Chen joined our Group as the General
Manager of CSC Nanning in February 2018. In December 2018, he
was appointed as the Business Management Division’s Executive Vice
President, responsible for merchants recruitment, operation and property
management. Mr. Chen graduated from Chemistry Department, Hanshan
Normal University. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in merchants
recruitment and management in the wholesale market. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chen worked as managing director of China Pearls
and Jewellery International City Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of Man Sang
International Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 938). He had also worked with Man
Hing Industry Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

*  For identification purposes only
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

The Board hereby presents this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the fiscal year ended 31 March
2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group is developing and operating large-
scale integrated logistics and trade centers in China, providing a
comprehensive trading platform of raw materials and finished products for
domestic and international wholesale suppliers, traders, manufacturers,
distributors and retail clients. With its unique business model, the Group
not only sells and leases well-designed, high quality trade center units
for businesses to display and sell their products, but also provides trade
center occupants and their customers with a full range of facilities and
services such as property management, logistics and warehousing services,
E-commerce services, outlet operations, offices, residential facilities,
convention and exhibition facilities, hotels, restaurants, banking services,
on-site government services in a bid to offer one-stop convenient supply
chain solutions. The successful business model was first pioneered by
CSC Shenzhen and has been replicated to other provincial capitals and
municipality across China such as Nanchang, Nanning, Xi‘an, Harbin,
Zhengzhou, Hefei and Chongging, forming a strategic network covering
key domestic logistic nodes. At the same time, through the cooperation
with Tencent, the Group is actively building an 020 business eco-system
to facilitate the industrial upgrade of the occupants. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates are set out
under Management Discussion and Analysis as well as in notes 1 and 18
to the financial statements of this annual report respectively.
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Results and Dividends

The Group's results for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2019 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out under
Chairman’s Statement as well as in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 136 to 288 of this annual report respectively.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents
per Share in respect of FY2018/19 (FY2017/18: HK5.0 cents per Share
with scrip option). Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming AGM to be held on
13 September 2019, the proposed final dividend will be distributed on
or about 21 October 2019 to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 23 September 2019.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 19
September 2019 to 23 September 2019, both days inclusive during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. The
ex-dividend date will be on 17 September 2019. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all properly completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 18 September 2019.

Business Overview

The business overview of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion
and Analysis and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this
annual report.
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Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Details of the reserves are disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” and in note 51 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Details of the Company'’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 March
2019, calculated in accordance with Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), amounted to
approximately HK$572.4 million (31 March 2018: HK$763.1 million), of
which HK$405.9 million (31 March 2018: HK$400.5 million), subject to
the adjustment with the number of shares which may be allotted after the
date of this report but before the date of book close, has been proposed
as final dividend for the fiscal year under review, are disclosed in note 11
and 51 to the financial statements.

Senior Notes
The information of the outstanding senior notes issued by the Company
during the reporting period is as below:

In September and October 2016, the Company issued senior notes due
in September 2021 with a nominal value of US$200 million (equivalents
to approximately HK$1,560 million) and US$150 million (equivalents
to approximately HK$1,170 million) respectively, in a total of US$350
million (equivalents to approximately HK$2,730 million). These notes were
consolidated and formed a single series of “2016 Notes” at a coupon rate
of 6.75% per annum. The net proceed of the issue was mainly for the
purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness and for general corporate
purposes. The Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of
US$4.5 million of the 2016 Notes and have it cancelled in September
2018. After such cancellation, the principal amount of the 2016 Notes
outstanding is US$345.5 million.
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In March 2017, the Company issued senior notes due in March 2020
with a nominal value of US$300 million (equivalents to approximately
HK$2,340 million) at a coupon rate of 5.75% per annum (“2017 March
Notes”). The net proceed of the issue was mainly for the purpose of
refinancing existing indebtedness and for general corporate purposes.

In November 2017, the Company issued senior notes due in November
2022 with a nominal value of US$300 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$2,340 million) at a coupon rate of 7.25% per annum
("2017 November Notes”). The net proceed of the issue was mainly
for the purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness in relation to
construction and development of our projects and for general corporate
purposes. The Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of
US$13.5 million of the 2017 November Notes and have it cancelled in
September 2018. After such cancellation, the principal amount of the
2017 November Notes outstanding is US$286.5 million.

In January 2018, the Company issued senior notes due in January 2021
with a nominal value of US$250 million (equivalents to approximately
HK$1,950 million) at a coupon rate of 7.25% per annum (“2018 January
Notes”). The net proceed of the issue was mainly for the purpose of
refinancing existing indebtedness in relation to the construction and
development of our projects and for general corporate purposes. The
Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of US$12.0 million
of the 2018 January Notes and have it cancelled in September 2018.
After such cancellation, the principal amount of the 2018 January Notes
outstanding is US$238.0 million.

In May and June 2018, the Company issued senior notes due in
August 2020 with a nominal value of US$150 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$1,170 million) and US$100 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$780 million) respectively, in a total of US$250 million
(equivalents to approximately HK$1,950 million). These notes were
consolidated and formed a single series of “2018 May Notes” at a coupon
rate of 10.875% per annum. The net proceed of the issue was mainly
for the purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness in relation to the
construction and development of our projects and for general corporate
purposes. The Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of
US$7.0 million of the 2018 May Notes and have it cancelled in September
2018. After such cancellation, the principal amount of the 2018 May
Notes outstanding is US$243.0 million.
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In March and June 2019, the Company issued senior notes due in
March 2021 with a nominal value of US$200 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$1,560 million) and US$60 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$468 million) respectively, in a total of US$260 million
(equivalents to approximately HK$2,028 million). These notes were
consolidated and formed a single series of “2019 March Notes” at a
coupon rate of 11.875% per annum. The net proceed of the issue was
mainly for the purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness in relation
to the construction and development of our projects and for general
corporate purposes.

Further details of the Senior Notes are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Donations

During the Year, in order to care about the society where the Group
operates its business, the Group made charitable donations totaling
approximately HK$9.75 million (FY2017/18: HK$34.49 million) to various
charitable organizations.

Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 are
set out in note 1 to the financial statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors*

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman)

Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung

Mr. Cheng Tai Po

Mr. Lin Ching Hua

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew

Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung

Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel

Notes:

*  Mr. Song Chuan resigned as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group with effect from 1 February 2019.

*  Mr. Zhao Lidong has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group with effect from 1 February 2019.

The Company’s Articles provide rotation and re-election for all Directors.
In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. The Articles also
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election,
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election.
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The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considers all Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent.

The list of names of all Directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report is available on the Company’s website.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into service contract with the
Company while each of the Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Non-Executive Directors has entered into letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years. The service contract and the letter of
appointment may be terminated by either party thereto by giving not less
than one month’s prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the Directors had a material beneficial interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any significant contract to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its holding
companies was a party during the Year or as at 31 March 2019.

Biographical Information of Directors and Key
Management

The biographical information of the Directors and Key Management of
the Company is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Key Management” on pages 72 to 81 of this annual report.
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Enforcement of the Deed of Non-Competition
Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 4 September 2009 (“Non-
Competition Undertaking”) entered into by each of Mr. Cheng Chung
Hing has undertaken with the Company (for itself and on behalf of each
other member of the Group) that so long as the Company is listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and so long as:

e in respect of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, he remains as the controlling
shareholder or a director of the Company;

that he shall not, and shall procure his associates not to, either alone
or jointly with any other person or entity, or for any other person, firm
or company, or as principal, partner, director, employee, consultant or
agent through any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or other
contractual arrangement, be engaged, invested, or otherwise involved,
whether as a shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, in the carrying on of any business in any form or
manner in China that is in competition or is likely to be in competition,
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, unless those business
opportunities have been first offered to the Group upon terms which
are fair and reasonable and the Board has declined such opportunities,
in accordance with the provisions of the Non-Competition Undertaking,
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing or his respective associates may pursue such
opportunities.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing confirming his compliance with the Non-Competition
Undertaking during the Year.

Directors’ Emoluments
Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the fiscal year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed above, the Company has received confirmations from
all Directors that none of them have engaged or were interested in any
business which were in competition or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Securities

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company
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Cheng Chung Hing Ordinary Shares 2,224,920458" 81,633,333 - - 2,306,553,791 28.41%
N LAk

Cheng Tai Po Ordinary Shares 588,984, 145" 4,936,000 . N 593,920,145 7.31%
ElyN LR

Ma Kai Cheung Ordinary Shares 138,966,649 - - - 138,966,649 1.71%
SNE LR

Fung Sing Hong Stephen Ordinary Shares/Share Options - 9,200,000 - 189,990,000% 199,190,000 2.45%

BEM L@k B

Li Wai Keung Share Options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
EXE RRE

Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew Share Options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
2EE ik

Hui Chiu Chung Share Options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
FTRE RRE

Yung Wing Ki Samuel Share Options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
B RRE
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Notes:

(1

(©)

(4)

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Accurate Gain Developments Limited which in turn was deemed to have
interests in 2,224,920,458 Shares. As informed by Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, he
had voting rights and certain other rights over 1,446,666,666 Shares, pursuant
to certain swap funding arrangements between Accurate Gain Developments
Limited and PAG Holdings Limited.

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing is a director of Accurate Gain Developments Limited.
He is the father of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman and the younger brother of Mr.
Cheng Tai Po.

Mr. Cheng Tai Po is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Proficient
Success Limited which in turn holds 588,984,145 Shares and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the aforesaid 588,984,145 Shares. Mr. Cheng is a
director of Proficient Success Limited. Mr. Cheng Tai Po is the elder brother of
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and the uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung, as beneficial owner and beneficiary of trust and through
the interest of his spouse, being interested in 40.83% of the issued share
capital of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited which through a
number of intermediaries, wholly owns Carrianna Development Limited, Dr.
Ma Kai Cheung is therefore deemed to be interested and duplicated interests
in an aggregate of 138,966,649 Shares held by Carrianna Development
Limited via its holding company. Dr. Ma is a director of each of Carrianna
Group Holdings Company Limited, Carrianna Development Limited, Sincere
United Holdings Limited, Carrianna Holdings Limited, Gartrend Development
Limited and Carrianna (BVI) Limited.

The relevant interests are share options granted to Mr. Fung Sing Hong
Stephen, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew, Mr. Li Wai Keung, Mr. Hui Chiu
Chung and Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel pursuant to the Company’s share
option scheme adopted on 4 September 2009. Further details of the share
option scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this report.

The percentage shareholding was calculated on the basis of 8,117,130,848
Shares issued as at 31 March 2019.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, to the knowledge of
the Directors, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i)
notified to the Company and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors and chief executive were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); (i) entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to
the Company and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 March 2019, to the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

Long Position in the Shares
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Tencent Holdings Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 955,936,666% 11.78%
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THL H Limited Beneficial owner 955,936,666 11.78%
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Proficient Success Limited Beneficial owner 588,984,145 7.25%
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Notes:

(1) As informed by Accurate Gain Developments Limited, it was interested
in 778,253,792 Shares in the capacity of a beneficial owner and had
1,446,666,666 Shares in respect of derivative interests under certain swap
funding arrangements with PAG Holdings Limited. Therefore, Accurate Gain
Developments Limited was deemed to have interests in 2,224,920,458 Shares.

As informed by PAG Holdings Limited, through its ultimately controlled
corporations, Pacific Alliance Group Limited, Pacific Alliance Investment
Management Limited, Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited,
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. and PA Eminent Opportunity VII
Limited, it was deemed to have interest in 1,446,666,666 Shares.

(2) THL H Limited is wholly owned by Tencent Holdings Limited.

(3) Mr. Cheng Tai Po owns 100% of the issued share capital of Proficient Success
Limited.

(4) The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 8,117,130,848
Shares issued as at 31 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, to the knowledge of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, no other person (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Information on Share Options

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 4 September 2009
(the “Share Option Scheme"”). The major terms of the Share Option
Scheme are summarized as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
eligible persons for their contribution to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group.

2. The Board may at its discretion grant options to Directors, employees,
officers, agents, consultants or representatives of the Group.

G
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The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. The total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% in nominal amount of the issued Shares as at the date
of commencement of the listing of Shares on The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange unless with the prior approval from the Shareholders.
The Share Option Scheme limit was refreshed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 21 August 2013, and hence the
maximum number of the Shares available for issue upon exercise
of all share options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 319,632,400 Shares, representing approximately 3.93%
of the total number of issued Shares of the Company as at 31 March
2019.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) to each grantee
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of grant.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
approval of the Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion, save that no
share option may be exercised more than 10 years after grant.

The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options is
HK$1.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be determined
by the Directors at their absolute discretion and shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Shares on the date of grant.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 29 September 2019 after
which no further options will be granted under the Share Option
Scheme. In respect of the options granted and accepted prior to such
expiration and not then exercised, they shall continue to be valid
and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T

EEE AR R E11E T E R ME B ARITHE 2 ME B
REETHEMA TEHTHROEE - TEEBAT
RFEETIRDHI30% - BREARRRIRETELHE
A BRIR IR AR AT BT T A BB AR A PO
KIRHBE - TEBRARNMREBBMIMETZ
HEMEEHITROEBEN10% - BRER S £
REMR2013F8A21 A RIT 2 AR ARFEAF K
eLrEH  ABREERESSBETITTIRY
M EERERTEMAIHEBEBTOROEER
319,632,400% - HHE MR AR FIN2019F3 A31
HE BTN #220493.93% ©

FERETZRTERHBRE(REDTE
A RORTT 2 BB R ) BT M AMEM 1218 A
HM R H B IR S AR ABT RS ETHY
PR B8 - THREBARARNEEBHPEET
R 1% o IR — FHR BB IR B
o RREBRALE o

EXT2RNEREBRENTES - HABK
REERBRI0FRIR

BARANAXMBTERBRERBRENK

e

EXT2RBBERESBRIENTTEE - ETE
ERTIISENESE  (RORELASRES
B FTERRERMIETWHE © (DO
ERFHAMLEZXAETERIMERR
ERADIFHRME RGBS B HIRE
-

BB RERT 1§ 10 20195F9 B29 HAR I - HIZHEA
EERIBEE AR 81 — PR M EAE - REBK
RETBIYAERRRT - RZRLAERE L EE
IR R RITEZ BB IDABREATT
o



Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

The table below summarized the details of the movements in the share RN B NIB RS HEST 2145 H B IR S B =E 155

options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme during the Year: R TERZA :
Number of Share Options
EREHE
Exercise
As at Cancelled/ As at Price Exercisable
Name Date of Grant 1 April 2018 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 March 2019 HK$ Period
R 2018 & R2019%  7EE
a8 R A 4A1H Bt BT B/ AR 3A31H B Cigid
Directors
Bz
Fung Sing Hong Stephen 27/6/2013 8,000,000 - - (8,000,000) - 169 27/6/2014-26/6/2018
BEM 171212014 19,000,000 - - (19,000,000 - 414 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
19,000,000 - - (19,000,000) - 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
30/6/2014 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 4.07  30/6/2014-29/6/2019
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 407  30/6/2015-29/6/2019
13/172016 39,995,000 - - - 39,995,000 1.528  13/1/2016-12/1/2021
39,995,000 - - - 39,995,000 1.528  13/1/2017-12/1/2022
3/7/2017 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 1.52 3/7/2017-2/7/2022
40,000,000 - - 40,000,000 1.52 3/7/2018-2/7/2023
Song Chuan"” 31712017 20,000,000 - - (20,000 000) - 1.52 3/712018-2/7/2023
F 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000 - 1.52 3/7/2019-2/7/2024
10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) - 1.52 3/7/2020-2/7/2025
Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew  17/2/2014 1,000,000 = = (1,000,000) = 414 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
REE 1,000,000 - - (1,000 OOO) - 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
13/472018 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1.81  13/4/2018-12/4/2023
= 1,000,000 = = 1,000,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Li Wai Keung 171212014 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 414 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
TR 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
13/4/2018 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1.81  13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Hui Chiu Chung 171212014 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 414 - 17/2/2014-16/2/2019
R 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
13/4/2018 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1.81  13/4/2018-12/4/2023
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1.81  13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Yung Wing Ki Samuel 171212014 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
oK 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 414 17/2/2016-16/2/2019
13/472018 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1.81  13/4/2018-12/4/2023
- 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Employees/Advisers 27/6/2013 1,000,000 - - (1,000 000) - 1.69  27/6/2013-26/6/2018
EE /BB 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 1.69  27/6/2014-26/6/2018
1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 169 27/6/2015-26/6/2018
171212014 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 414 17/2/2015-16/2/2019
1,000,000 - - (1,000 000) - 414 17/2/2016-16/2/2019
30/6/2014 34,650,000 - - 34,650,000 4.07  30/6/2014-29/6/2019
34,650,000 - - 34,650,000 407  30/6/2015-29/6/2019
22/8/2016 17,500,000 - - (3,750 000) 13,750,000 175 22/8/2016-21/8/2021
28,000,000 - - (11,000,000) 17,000,000 175 22/8/2017-21/8/2022
4,500,000 - - (1,250,000) 3,250,000 175 22/8/2018-21/8/2023
13/472018 - 1,250,000 - (1,250,000) - 1.81  13/4/2018-12/4/2023
- 8,750,000 - (1,250 000) 7,500,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
- 7,500,000 - 7,500,000 1.81  13/4/2020-12/4/2025

408,790,000 25,500,000

(118,000,000) 316,290,000
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Notes:

1. Mr. Song Chuan resigned as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group with effect from 1 February 2019.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the
share options granted on 13 April 2018 was HK$1.83 per share.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme is set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debt
Securities

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Securities” and “Information on Share Options” in this report
and in note 38 to the financial statements, at no time during the Year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company (including their
spouses or children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Issuance of Debt Securities by a Subsidiary
Short-Term Notes

In October 2016, China South International obtained the relevant
approval for issuing the short-term notes in the national inter-bank
market in the PRC with a maximum principal amount of RMB6.0 billion.
In June and August 2017, China South City International issued the first
tranche and the second tranche of the short-term notes of 2017 with a
principal amount of RMB500 million with a maturity period of 270 days
and at an interest rate of 6.5% per annum for each tranche, respectively.
The proceeds thereof were to be used for general corporate purpose
and repaying part of the bank loans of the Group. The first tranche and
the second tranche of the short-term notes of 2017 have been repaid in
March and May 2018 respectively.

Further details of the short-term notes are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.
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Medium-Term Notes

In April 2014, China South International obtained the relevant approval
for issuing the medium-term notes in the national inter-bank market in
the PRC with a maximum principal amount of RMB4.0 billion. In May
2014, China South International issued the first tranche of the medium-
term notes of 2014 with a total principal amount of RMB1.0 billion with
a maturity period of 5 years and at an interest rate of 7.5% per annum.
The proceeds thereof were to be used for repaying part of short-term
bank loans of the Group. The first tranche of the medium-term notes of
2014 have been repaid in May 2019. In September 2014, China South
International issued the second tranche of the medium-term notes of
2014 with a total principal amount of RMB1.0 billion with a maturity
period of 5 years and at an interest rate of 8.4% per annum. The
proceeds thereof were to be used for repaying part of bank loans of the
Group. In July 2015, China South International issued the first tranche of
the medium-term notes of 2015 with a total principal amount of RMB2.0
billion with a maturity period of 3 years and at an interest rate of 7.0%
per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used for replacement of
bank loans of the Group and the construction of CSC Nanning project.
The first tranche of the medium-term notes of 2015 have been repaid in
July 2018.

In April 2017, China South International obtained another approval for
issuing the medium-term notes with a maximum principal amount of
RMB3.0 billion. In April 2019, China South International issued the first
tranche of the medium-term notes of 2019 with a total principal amount
of RMB600 million with a maximum maturity period of 3 years and at an
interest rate of 8.5% per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used
for refinancing existing borrowings of the Group. As assessed by Golden
Credit Rating International Co., Ltd., China South International and the
first tranche of the medium-term notes of 2019 both were given “AA+"
rating.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of China South International’s
medium-term notes was HK$2,459.9 million. As assessed by Dagong
Global, China South International, and the first tranche and second
tranche of the medium-term notes of 2014 both were given “AA" rating.

Further details of the medium-term notes are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements.
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Corporate Bonds

In March 2015, China South International obtained the relevant approval
for issuing the corporate bonds in a maximum principal amount of
RMB1.5 billion in the PRC. In April 2015, China South International
issued the corporate bonds with a total principal amount of RMB1.5
billion with a term of up to 6 years in maximum and at an interest rate
of 7.0% per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used for funding
the development of CSC Zhengzhou project. In April 2018, China South
International repaid approximately RMB1.499 billion of corporate bonds.
The remaining portion of RMB482,000 will be matured at April 2021
which the interest rate was 8.05% per annum which was early repaid in
full in April 2019.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of China South International’s
corporate bonds was HK$562,000. As assessed by Pengyuan Credit Rating
Co., Ltd., China South International and the corporate bonds were given
"AA" and “AA+" rating respectively.

Further details of the corporate bonds are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Domestic Company Bonds

In December 2015, China South International obtained the relevant
approval for issuing the domestic company bonds in a maximum principal
amount of RMB4.4 billion in the PRC. In January 2016, China South
International issued the first tranche of the domestic company bonds of
2016 with a total principal amount of RMB3.0 billion with a term of 3
years and at an interest rate of 5.98% per annum. The proceeds thereof
were to be used for repaying part of the bank loans of the Group and for
general working capital. In May 2016, China South International issued
the second tranche of the domestic company bonds of 2016 with a total
principal amount of RMB1.4 billion with a term of 3 years and at an
interest rate of 6.85% per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used
for repaying part of bank loans of the Group and for general working
capital. The first tranche and second tranche of the domestic company
bonds of 2016 was repaid in January and May 2019, respectively.

In April 2019, China South International obtained another two approvals
for issuing the domestic company bonds in a maximum principal amount
of RMB4.4 billion in total in the PRC. China South International may issue
new domestic company bonds as when appropriates.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of China South International’s
domestic company bonds was HK$1,733.2 million. As assessed by
Golden Credit Rating International Co., Ltd., China South International
and the domestic company bonds were given “AA” and “AA+" rating
respectively.

China South City Holdings Limited ZFERFiHIZRER A T
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Further details of the domestic company bonds are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
During the year, the Company repurchased part of the senior notes and
an aggregated principal amount of US$37.0 million was cancelled in
September 2018.

Further information of the senior notes is set out in the section headed
“Senior Notes” and note 32 to the financial statements of this report.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the Year.

Bank Borrowings
Details of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest customers were less than
10% of the Group's total revenue. The aggregate purchases from the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 40%
(FY2017/18: 58%) of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 20% (FY2017/18: 26%) of
the Group’s total purchases for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2019.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholders which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s total
number of issued Shares has any interests in the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance. Detailed information on the Company’s corporate
governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report as contained in this annual report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility in
community affairs, environmental protection and corporate governance
during its business operation in order to achieve its sustainable
development. The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance
Report is set out in this annual report.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

Five Year’s Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five fiscal years is set out on page 71 of this annual report.

Management Contract

During the Year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

Events after the Reporting Period
The events after the reporting period are set out in note 52 to the
financial statements.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young who
will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Ernst
& Young as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHENG CHUNG HING
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERME

The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving high
standard of corporate governance to enhance the corporate performance
accountability and is committed to doing so. To the best knowledge and
belief of the Directors, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the year, save
and except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.6.7 provides that Independent Non-Executive Directors
and other Non-Executive Directors, are equal board members, should
attend general meetings of the Company. During the Year, two Non-
Executive Directors and two Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Company were unable to attend the last annual general meeting of
the Company held on 21 August 2018 as they had other prior business
engagement.

The Board of Directors

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprises eleven Directors, including four
Executive Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and four Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Key Management” on
pages 72 to 81 of this annual report.

Independent Non-Executive Director

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors and
representing at least one-third of the board with at least one Independent
Non-Executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

During the Year, all existing Independent Non-Executive Directors have
made an annual confirmation of independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and performance
monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the
Group to the Executive Directors and key senior management within the
control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further details
of these committees are set out in this report.

Relationship between Directors
o Mr. Cheng Tai Po is an elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and
the uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman.

o Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman is the daughter of Mr. Cheng Chung
Hing and the niece of Mr. Cheng Tai Po.

Change in Information of Directors

The change in the information of Directors since the publication of the
2018/19 interim report up to the date of this annual report is set out
below pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules:

o Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen has been appointed as an Advisor of
National Management Accounting Advisory Committee, Ministry of

Finance with effect from 25 December 2018.

o Mr. Song Chuan resigned as Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group with effect from 1 February 2019.

o Mr. Zhao Lidong has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group with effect from 1 February 2019.

Details of appointment of Mr. Zhao Lidong is set out in the announcement
dated 31 January 2019.
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Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as a code
of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the relevant
period of the fiscal year ended 31 March 2019. Employees who are,
or likely to be, in possession of unpublished price sensitive information
in relation to the Company or its Shares are required to prohibit from
dealing in shares of the Company during the black-out period.

EBTFEEETRESFRIZEESTH

RNARE M LR BIFTEAIZESFR - (EARAR]
ERRTHBHFRHNEE - RRAIEREBESED
BEEEH%  EENEHZE201993 8318 L HREFE
MHEREA—EETEETRIFTE AR EER - S
AR EBA R R RERGHRAHREHRZE
BHREETESREFBHANEBEAQBRRMD

Board Meetings EEgER
During the Year, four Board meetings were convened by the Company. RAEER @ AARHBHIUAEESEH  ETE22
The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings was as follows: SEMESHEBIOT :
Number of
Attendance/
meeting held®
HiE BT
Directors BE =R C
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) NGRS A (/) 4/4
Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen (Vice Chairman) TSEMEE(BIFE) 4/4
Mr. Song Chuan (Chief Executive Officer) ™ RINF A (7TBAEZE ) 3/3
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer) @ N RS A (TR 7
Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman LIS g 4/4
Non-Executive Directors FETES
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung ENEEL 2/4
Mr. Cheng Tai Po BRI AE a/4
Mr. Lin Ching Hua MIREESE A 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE 4/4
Mr. Li Wai Keung FEREE 4/4
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung R LA 4/4
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel DAL E 4/4
Notes: 3T

(1

Mr. Song Chuan resigned as Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 1 February 2019.

(2)  Mr. Zhao Lidong has been appointed as Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 February 2019.

(3)  The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings
a director is entitled to attend.

RINFEEB20195F2 A1 BRFHERARRNTES -

() HBURLERA2019F2A1BEZEREDANITE
o
3) HFEEFREFERHFEAHSANAE HERLY

FEHIREL -
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The Directors are provided with agenda and relevant Board materials
related to the agenda in advance before the meeting. They can access to
the senior management and the company secretary of the Company at all
time and, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into service contract with the
Company while each of the Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Non-Executive. Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years.

The Company'’s Articles provide rotation and re-election for all Directors.
In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. The Articles also
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election,
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible to offer for re-election/election.
Accordingly, five Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, Mr. Lin
Ching Hua, Mr. Li Wai Keung, Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and Mr. Zhao Lidong
are eligible to offer themselves for re-election/election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. During the Year, Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing was Chairman of the Company and he provided
leadership for the Board and ensure the proper and effective functioning
of the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities, while Mr. Song Chuan
during his tenure of office as the Chief Executive Officer from 1 April
2018 to 1 February 2019, and Mr. Zhao Lidong during his tenure of office
as the Chief Executive Officer since 1 February 2019, is accountable to the
Board for the overall implementation of the Company’s strategies and the
coordination of overall business operations of the Group.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to handle particular responsibilities of the Board and the
Company’s affairs. All board committees of the Company are established
with specific written terms of reference which have been published
at the websites of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively. The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for the review and supervision of the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
system and review of the Company’s financial statements. The written
terms of reference are in line with the provisions under the CG Code and
the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Audit Committee by the
Board, which include to determine the appropriate corporate governance
practices applicable to the Group’s circumstances and to ensure processes
and procedures are in place to achieve the Group’s corporate governance
objectives.

During the Year, the Audit Committee consisted of Mr. Li Wai Keung
as chairman, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew, Mr. Hui Chiu Chung
and Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel. All the Audit Committee members are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. During the Year, two meetings of
Audit Committee were held to review the FY2017/18 annual results and
the FY2018/19 interim results of the Group before submission to the
Board.

During FY2018/19, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk management
and internal control system, connected transactions, interim results and
annual results of the Group and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The attendance of the Directors at the Audit
Committee meetings was as follows:

EEZE®

BTV =—EZ£ES  BEEXZES  FIES8
eNREEEES  AEREETERARTNETSE
e ARRMEESRE €Y RN EmBESRD
AEREREREEZD 5 R TBERE BB TR AR
A, - ER L B EREM Eﬂéﬁu%ﬁﬁﬁ%f'
WAEAEER TSRBEIEEER  BFHAR
A o

i

EREESE

ERZEGAARN LERAEENMEREZT
HF AEE&W“BWT /%, I REBEAN TN EEwE o
HEEABESESEESTUBETITRERESTSRIRE
BREEENRBERBBEER  HheFaiETHEA
RASBEBRAMBECEE TR - WIEREERE
MREFERAREEREERNAER -

RAFEERN  BEREECHFTERTCE(ERE) - £E
EBEAE - FRPEERBKHEEEENK - BEREES
FEKBHABYIENTES - RAFEN  BEH
MAEBZZESSH  NERESCRCENAEE
2017/18 A fE 248 K2 2018/ 198 R F E P HASEAS

R2018/190 BFE - ERZE RO EHAEENE
R AREERS  BERS  THIRENREFEE
UAEAEERANERARED - EEZZEEEH
MEFHEBERDT

Number of

attendance/

meeting held

HE BT

Directors = BRIE
Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman) REREE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung SRR S 2/2
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel IR E 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
on the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors and senior management is
subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee so as
to ensure that the level of their remuneration and compensation are
reasonable. The specific written terms of reference are in line with the
provisions of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one Executive Director, including Mr. Li Wai Keung as
chairman, Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for Executive
Directors is to enable the Company to retain and motivate Executive
Directors by linking their compensation with their individual performance
as measured against the Group’s corporate objectives and operating
results, taking into account also the comparable market conditions. The
principal elements of the remuneration package of an Executive Director
include basic salary, performance and/or discretional bonus, participation
in the Share Option Scheme and other benefits. The remuneration of
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors)
includes mainly the director’s fee and participation in the Share Option
Scheme which is a matter for the Board to decide by reference to their
duties and responsibilities and the comparable market conditions.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held to
review the structure of the remunerations for Directors of the Company
and the grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme to Director
of the Company. The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration
Committee meeting was as follows:

I ESSh
FMESSREREFRBRTEABHMREME
RS - FHERECHER S BEERERE
BABMFH - RRESOHHAT RBERAE -
EARERREREN S ERTARE -

P B emMA B EFNITEE R R RITESA
B BREFEBEL(ERE)  REEREREBRESL
5 o

ARENHTESTHHBRER B N ABARRIIT
SN BREFNEARREAEENEEBRM
RERER - RSZERELRTISER - R
BRABHTES - WMTESNFISTBIREREE
AHE - ERREBELL - 2 EERET SR
M o SEMITER(BIEEIFNTER)NFME
ZEREEHRS N2 BERENS  YRAEEEKS
RFFNBE LA ELBRTISERREE

RAEER - BAR—RFHEREEEZ - UEHA
RAEFNFHRBARRBBERET SR TEERE
BEEE - FHZESEZINESHERAMT

Number of

attendance/

meeting held

HE BT

Directors = BERXE
Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman) FREBEE(FE) 7
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE ”n
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing /NS e ”n
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
to the nomination of Directors with a view for the appointment of
suitable individuals with relevant expertise and experience to enhance
the constitution of the Board and to contribute to the Board. The specific
written terms of reference are in line with the provisions of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one Executive Director, including Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen
Andrew as chairman, Mr. Li Wai Keung and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee were reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, including the skill, knowledge,
experience and diversity of background of its members, and the re-
designation of senior management of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity by adopting a board
diversity policy which stipulates that when identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Directors, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity including, but not limited
to, a number of factors, such as age, race, cultural and educational
background, professional and business-related experience, reputation of
candidates for integrity and his/her accomplishment, skills, knowledge and
length of service, in order to maintain an appropriate range of balance
of skills, experience and background on the Board. The appointments of
Directors will base on meritocracy and take into account the aforesaid
factors as a whole for the benefits of the Company, as well as taking into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

During the Year, the Company arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ liabilities insurance coverage in respect of legal action against its
Directors and officers.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and reviewing its effectiveness.
A defined management structure with specified limits of authority and
responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular
financial and operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to
the relevant management. The works carried out by the internal audit
department ensure the risk management and internal control systems are
in place and function properly as intended. The results of the internal audit
and reviews are reported to the Executive Directors and Audit Committee
of the Company. The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems and are satisfied
with the adequacy of the systems of risk management and internal control
of the Group during the Year.

For the annual review on the risk management and internal control,
the Audit Committee considered the internal control report and risk
management report were satisfied as to effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. There were no matters of
material concerns relating to financial, operational or compliance controls.
The Board is satisfied with the adequacy and the effectiveness of the
systems of the risk management and internal control of the Group during
the Year.

Independent Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’'s independent auditor are Messrs. Ernst & Young. For
FY2018/19, the remuneration paid and payable by the Group to the
independent auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by them were as follows:

R\ B B I & R BREE 4
EERAAEEZREBREREMNAMEZERS - Ak
MEBRM - ARARCHERAEATNERER I
AIABREENEE UM IERERREEANRER
E - WREFZEGTE  WREFTTEFBER
WEME R TIE - WETERED - RANOER -

N EZABFID KL - UEHETH B MEE R
A XAEREEABZEMFTE - AEPEZEM
FRETTE TR RiERRREIE R ARERE R REE
HAETT - WIRETEREB RUEF - ARPER MERN
BREAARFATEFTIECZZEGRE - EFC
ERAEERREENAREZERSNERE - XiE
MAEERAFEANRREE R AREZERSE T
# o

SRR R AREIENFEEENMNE - ERREEER
MRS RE RARERRE - WENREERR K
NEHERERZGBAYN - BXYBEFENY - ELNER
ERmMASEWINEE BEFSEMNREENEKSF
ERRBREENAREZER R R AR BRI -

BB S
AEENBYZBRBAZKGHAEHHN - BE
2018/1981 TR 4R &+ 7N 55 1140 8 ST e B D 5 1 5 42
HERRIFEERGD A RESOHEIT

HK$'000

FHET

Audit and review services EZNEERE 4,350
Non-audit services (Other services related to senior notes)  FEEXIRIES (B ITELZEAOHMRE) 830
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Directors’ Responsibility

Every newly appointed Director will receive briefings and comprehensive
induction on appointment to ensure understanding of the Directors’
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to refresh their knowledge and skills
and the Company organizes appropriate directors’ training to Directors
to help ensure they are apprised of the role, functions and duties being a
director of the Company.

The Directors are aware that they should give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company and they are continually adapted with
regulatory developments and business development of the Group to
discharge their responsibilities. The Directors’ knowledge and skills are
continuously developed and refreshed by, inter alia, the following means:
(1) Attending training session organized by and/or reading materials
provided by the Company, as regards to legal and regulatory
changes and matters relevant to the Directors in discharging their
duties, including the laws, rules and regulations relating to the
corporate governance;

Participating in continuous professional training seminars/
conferences/courses/workshops on subjects relating to directors’
duties and corporate governance, and rules and regulatory
changes, organized by the other companies, professional bodies or
government authorities; and

Reading news, journal, magazine or other reading materials from
time to time as regards to legal and regulatory changes, economy
and matters relevant to the Directors in discharging their duties.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors received
the following trainings during the Year:

BIEEEMRENCE  RAFER  ES2E
AT

Type of Training

Directors = e kil
Executive Directors® HITESO

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) LN e E ) (1)and (3)
Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen (Vice Chairman) BEMEE(EFEE) (1) and (3)
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer) N RS A (T BAEE) (1)and (3)
Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman LIED g (M
Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung ENEEL (M
Mr. Cheng Tai Po BRI AE (1)and (3)
Mr. Lin Ching Hua MIREESE A (1)and (3)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REERE (1) and (3)
Mr. Li Wai Keung FEREE (1) and (3)
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung SRR (1), (2) and (3)
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel oKL (1) and (3)
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Notes:

(1

Mr. Zhao Lidong have been appointed as Executive Director of the Company
with effect on 1 February 2019.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2018/19 which
were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the independent auditor of the Company

on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 129 to 135.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Tse Man Yu has been the Company Secretary of the Company since
2008. She is a full time employee of the Company with professional
qualifications and extensive experience, and has adequate working
knowledge on the Company to discharge her duty as the Company
Secretary. During the Year, Ms. Tse confirmed that she received relevant
professional training of not less than 15 hours to update her skills and
knowledge.

Communication with Shareholders and Noteholders
The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders,
noteholders and other investment community is essential. During the
Year, the Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and team of investor
relations of the Group held regular briefings, press conferences and
analysts meetings of interim and annual results, attended investor forums
and participated in roadshows, conducted meetings and visits to projects
of the Group with the institutional investors and financial analysts in
China, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the
Group's business and development. Investors can also communicate with
the Company through email at ir@chinasouthcity.com.

The shareholders’ meeting provides a useful platform for the shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Directors and Chief Financial
Officer of the Group will attend the shareholders’ meetings to answer
the questions raised by the shareholders. Shareholders can also direct
their enquiries and proposals to the Company. The contact details of
the Company are set out in the “Contact Us” section of the Company’s
website at www.chinasouthcity.com.

Shareholders’ Right

Pursuant to the new Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), shareholders of the Company holding not less than 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meeting may request the Directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of business to be dealt with at the meeting
and may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic
form and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it in
accordance with the provisions under sections 566 to 568 of the New
Companies Ordinance and the Company’s Articles.

RAMWE

WX EZ L B2008FREEARRBZ ABIWE © KA
ARR2HBES  AAEXERNERKER - RAK
B TR L/UEFJ’/} AWENBE - RAFE
N AEETHERREEI T O/ 2 B R IR
aJHLAE%ﬁﬁHHﬁD%HE&

ERRREBHEARSE

RATRE - HERE - BREEAREMIEEREEE
PEMRBBNZEREE - RAFEARN  BITEF - &
EEREUBREREEEBERRB T HERTERE
FEBEMSURTHREREEESTEE  RPRH -
E%&/i@\\liﬁﬁ REEWE - HEEEREE R
BONBELMEEKE  BITERRBBAEEZIER -
%?&§§E7%¢$%l%¥%&ﬁ%ﬁ%§ HEZEIRA
%18 E Hir@chinasouthcity.com BN 2 A B 4

EReFRHARGEN TS HEREEEEHM
RRBER BEEREEEREMHAEHEERRX
SMERRELNRER - BRITFAURAARRRRE S

BHRARER  c ARRWNBMEFBEEN AR R B
www.chinasouthcity.com B 4% P9 | — &7 -

i SRAER
RIEHCA TED) (BB AN $622%) - FRA2E
AERRER# HRRIHEAD Tw&m%$ 1

5%MBRRAABRELZARRRES - FEGLT
RAKENE LRIE % WEZREHERHAL

%ﬁé'Tﬁ%iﬁi%¥%ﬁi*%$”ﬂ'iﬁ
TRIEFHCA FHED )EE 566 2 56818HI R F A AR
FRHETT ©

Annual Report 2018/19 E%f

111


www.chinasouthcity.com

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERHmE (&)

Attendance of the Directors at the annual general meeting of the

BEEM2018F8 A1 ARIT 2 AR RIRERFREH

Company which was held on 21 August 2018 was as follows: HEERIT
Number of
attendance/
meeting held
HE BT
Directors = BRXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) BN ESE A (F /) 71
Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen (Vice-Chairman) HEMEE(BLE) 71
Mr. Song Chuan (Chief Executive Officer) RN (TTRAREE) 11
Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman BiE i+t 11
Non-Executive Directors FETES
Dr. Ma Kai Cheung BNEEL 0/1
Mr. Cheng Tai Po EARFRIEE ”n
Mr. Lin Ching Hua MIRBESE A4 0N
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew REEFRE 1”1
Mr. Li Wai Keung TERSEAE 7
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung SRR 01
Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel Aok T E 0/1
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Published documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are available on the Company’s website at www.chinasouthcity.com.
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Environmental Social and Governance Report
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Our Philosophy

China South City is a leading developer and operator of large-scale
integrated logistics and trade centers in China. Through years of operation
and development, the Group has adhered to its business philosophy
of “Integrity, Harmony, Win-win and Sharing” and has endeavored to
provide an online and offline combined logistics and trade integrated
ecosystem for SMEs. On one hand, the Group assists local governments
in upgrading old markets by developing modern wholesale marketplaces
that promote regional economic transformation and development. On the
other hand, it provides one-stop comprehensive value-added services for
SMEs in China South City projects, thereby helping such businesses reduce
their costs and enhance their competitiveness through business initiatives
aimed at “Sustaining, Supporting, Assisting and Promoting Enterprises”.

The Group strives to keep close communication and cooperation with
its stakeholders in operation, in order to raise the level of corporate
governance. The Group endeavors to attain sustainable development by
creating a favorable working environment for its employees, assisting its
customers in improving their operational competitiveness and establishing
sustainable relations to create value, and continuously minimizing
environmental impact in the course of operation.

Our Awards and Accreditation

Recently, the Group won the “Most Innovative Award for Hong Kong
Listed Companies” prize in the competition of “Roadshow China e the
Best Listed Company in Greater China”, which is a recognition of China
South City continuing effort to develop and innovate for our Stakeholders.
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CSC won the “Most Innovative award for Hong Kong Listed Companies” prize

ERPNAENBR E TR RRAL S 1]

Annual Report 2018/19 £f

113



114

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Talents are the prime impetus to sustainable corporate development.
Adhering to its “people-oriented” management philosophy, the Group
aims to attract and cultivate talents by providing them with an extensive
platform to grow and perform. Meanwhile, the Group complies with
national and local labor laws and regulations, upholds the principle
of equity and fairness, and strives to provide employees with equal
opportunities. Our policy of equal employment opportunities applies to
employment arrangements including recruitment, hiring, promotion,
re-designation, redundancy and dismissal, regardless of race, religion,
gender, family status, sexual orientation, physical disability or any other
reasons. All employees and job candidates are treated equally. During
the Year, the Group continued to achieve a win-win situation for both
employees and corporate development, by effectively allocating human
resources and standardizing collaborative relationships among employees.

Employee Overview

China South City strives to best allocate human resources and make
timely adjustments to its team structure according to the actual needs of
business development. During the Year, the Group streamlined part of
the employee structure in response to its business needs, by retrenching
employees not in line with business development and engaging qualified
candidates through public recruitment as well as internal referrals for the
expanding business need. The Group upheld the principle of fairness,
equity and openness during these processes.

As at 31 Mar 2019, the total number of full-time employee was 5,038.

The younger generation has become the major composition of the
employees, and gender composition by and large reached a balance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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The overall employees (by age) as at 31 March 2019 Total number of employees (by gender)
HZE2019F3A31 RERFHREADHEERR as at 31 March 2019:
HZE2019F3A31ARMBIBIDNESER
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615%A L 46%

12.3%

. Male

Eefis
Female

oy

16.0%
40.7%

During the Year, the monthly employee turnover rate by gender of the ~ RAFEE - AEBIZMRIEI S AEREE AR - &M
Group was 2.36% for female employees and 2.65% for male employees. BB RA X 452.36% @ BHEE REEA2.65% °

Average monthly employee turnover (by age) during the Year
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Employee Development and Training

China South City believes that talent is the most important driving force
to its sustainable development. Learning serves as the principal means for
employees’ sustainable development and creativity. Therefore, it is the
responsibility of a corporation to provide employees with opportunities of
continuous improvement.

During the Year, the Group continued to enhance its staff training system
that incorporated orientation, training for management associates, etc. at
all levels. Furthermore, the Group provided adequate on-the-job training
for its employees through a wide array of activities, such as lectures and
seminars, outward bound courses, experience sharing, etc. In addition,
to record and monitor the effect of training, the Group included training
hours as one of the departmental appraisal criteria in order to motivate
employees and to create a positive training environment for them. In order
to plan employee training and development in a more systematic way,
the Group launched the “CSC Talent Program” ([3-88512 J) to help
employees prepare career paths and build a team of backup management
talents for China South City. During the Year, the Group recorded an
average 5.17 training hours for each employee.
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Outward bound training for excellent and promoted staff on 23 June 2018
201856 A23HEAFE T REF B THEITIEE

Training hours (by grade of staff) in FY2018/19
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The “CSC Talent” ([#5- ]) management training
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Entry Level Middle Level Senior Level Total
Hig HfE BE CH
Number of Hours /NEF 16,750 8,630 820 26,200
Percentage Aot 64% 33% 3% 100%
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In respect of remuneration and fringe benefits, externally the Group
takes reference to the general economic environment and the pay level
of industry peers, while internally it upholds the principles of fairness
and competitiveness, with reference to position, capability, performance,
as well as educational and professional qualifications. According to
employees’ position, responsibility and job nature, the Company applies
three different categories of remuneration, including an annual scheme
with reference to operating results of the year, a performance-based
scheme with reference to annual and quarterly performance, and a
commission-based scheme with reference to sales performance.

In respect of Employees’ career development and promotion opportunities,
the Group maintains a fair competition and a diversified employee
development scheme. With the employee performance appraisal system
in place to boost the work performance of individual employees, a healthy
and positive promotion mechanism is also established. By combining the
effective use of a balanced scorecard with KPI targets management, the
Group dissects mid to long-term goals into annual, quarterly and monthly
indicators to keep motivating employees to improve themselves. Training,
internal referral, internal competitive engagement and other mechanisms
are employed to create a diverse range of fair opportunities for the
development of employees. The Group has a comprehensive vacation
system in place in accordance with local labor laws and regulations,
which covers sick leave, casual leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave,
maternity leave, lactation leave, annual leave, injury leave and statutory
holidays. The employee benefit system is under constant improvement
to take better care of our employees. In a bid to promote a healthy and
balanced lifestyle, the Group organizes a variety of corporate culture and
recreational activities to facilitate work-life balance, cultivate team spirit
and increase the sense of belonging among the employees in an all-round
manner.
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Occupational Safety and Health for Employees

The Group endeavors to provide a healthy and safe working environment
for its employees, and encourages them to strike a balance between
work and life. The Group has established its safety committee and project
management center to ensure regular inspection and evaluation of the
safety and civilized construction of each project on a quarterly basis.
To further facilitate safety management in construction, operation and
development, the Group continues to actively carry out the “Production
Safety Month” activity, with the theme of “Preventing Risks, Eliminating
Hazards and Containing Accidents” to promote safety management.
The Group also provides regular courses and training on occupational
safety for employees, particularly those involved in construction and
fire services, with several safety seminars and fire drills conducted and
project inspections arranged by the safety team. These activities raise
the awareness of safety precautions among all the employees, improve
their safety skills, eliminate potential safety risks and proactively eliminate
hazards. With a comprehensive response mechanism in place, the Group
provides medical payment in advance for the injured employees in the
first instance while timely reporting to the Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau (A 1 & R At & {REE /B) with its adequate risk prevention
and emergency response measures. The Group also delegates its labor
union personnel to visit the injured employees, console their family
members, and seek for the best treatment plan together with medical
institutions.
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Apart from accident prevention, we have invested resources to enhance
health awareness among employees. For instance, CSC Shenzhen has
its employee dormitories furnished with facilities such as gyms and table
tennis to promote their work-life balance. During the Year, CSC Shenzhen
held a health talk of “CSC Lectures (Shenzhen)” where the knowledge of
oral health and First Aid were disseminated among the employees to help
employees pay attention to their personal health in daily life and be more
capable to cope with health related incidents.

BREpIEBSNEAE - RPITIRABRIEREE M 2 2R
B Pl R EEREREBEEARGRESE
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Male Female Total

B M B

Rate of work-related injuries BTREINIER 1.38 0.39 1.77
per thousand employees

Number of working days lost RIEELAITIEEE 197 22 219

due to work-related injuries

Employees’ trip to Wutong Mountain, Shenzhen
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Free medical consultation by our volunteers in CSC Shenzhen

R FERREEAETELSED

Labor Standards

The Group strictly complies with the PRC government’s “Provisions on the
Prohibition of Child Labor” and does not hire any employees aged below
16. During the Year, there were no incidents related to child labor, forced
labor or harassment. The Group works regularly to inspect and prevent
child labor and forced labor through proper pre-employment review of
the personal information of its employees, as well as inclusive internal
training to raise the legal consciousness among its subsidiaries and in turn
attain the goal of forbidding child labor and forced labor.

Environmental Protection

China South City is aware of the potential eco-environmental impact
which may result from business development. Therefore, to ensure
sustainable development and protect the environment, the Group adheres
to energy saving and emissions reduction in the entire process of its
development and operation, ensuring its compliance with applicable laws
and regulations on environmental protection. In addition, the Group
has rolled out multiple recycling plans throughout its daily operation, to
raise the environmental awareness of employees, business tenants and
residents. From product design, green construction to operation, the
Group is committed to reducing its environmental impact through various
green measures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE - HFRERERS (&)

Environmental Friendly Design

All design and construction of China South City projects comply with the
national standards on energy-saving buildings and have passed third-party
inspection, as well as energy-saving acceptance checks by the government
upon project completion. During its project design, the Group maximizes
the application of energy-saving and environmental friendly materials, and
adopts energy-saving solutions to reduce carbon emissions. For instance,
at CSC Zhengzhou, residential projects are designed with an integrated
insulation structure which combines insulation and enclosure functions of
a building. Such design, with its greater durability and new fire prevention
technology, serves as an effective solution to the quality and fire safety
issues commonly seen in the projects of energy-saving insulation
buildings. In line with national energy saving measures and emissions
reduction measures, the design is of great significance to ramping up the
energy-saving capacity of buildings and facilitating the transformation and
upgrade of the construction sector.

The Group applied the national standards on energy-saving buildings to its
building design and construction in its projects. During the Year, several
projects of the Group obtained environmental friendly awards such as the
National Award for Green Building Design (One Star) (B — £ fi 4k 552
HERFHTIR).
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Approximate

Subsidiary Project Name Construction Scale (1,000 m?) Certificate/Verification Letter
FAoR HEHB BERE(FEHK) BEREE BEERE
CSC Nanchang Xizhanhuafu Phase IV 270 Certificate of Green Building
HMEEMH (Residential Buildings) Design Label (One Star)
P EFUHEE —ERBEEER
Wangcheng Phase | 70 Certificate of Green Building
(Commercial Buildings) Design Label (One Star)
S —HEIER —ERFeEERG
CSC Zhengzhou CSC Zhongyuan 1,192 Certificate of Green Building
ERJNZE R i Design Label (One Star)
—ERFEEERG
CSC T-Park 580 Certificate of Green Building
ERIWT-ParkBl I E£E Design Label (One Star)
—EREEEERE
CSC Hefei Zijingmingdu Phase IV 410 Certificate of Green Building
SIRERE (Residential Buildings) Design Label (One Star)
FH BEUHEE —ERBEEER
Community Center 50 Certificate of Green Building
HEAHO Design Label (Two Star)
“ERBEEER
CSC Nanning 1668 Pioneer 20 Certificate of Green Building
FMEERE Park Zone 1 Design Label (Two Star)
4# and 6# ZERRBEERS
1668KI%XE1E
4# ~ 6#
CSC Chongging Bananhuafu Phase Il 700 Certificate of Green Building
EEEREH (Residential Buildings) Design Label (One Star)

EmEN_HER
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Environmental Friendly Facilities

To better incorporate the philosophy of sustainable development into its
daily operation and management, the Group proactively promotes the
application of energy-saving equipment in each project.

For instance, there was an energy-saving program on lighting and air-
conditioning in CSC Shenzhen. Lamps have been replaced with LED
energy-saving ones at Plazas 1 and 2, Phase 1 wholesale market and the
administrative building, and intelligence air-conditioning system were
gradually in use, which saved over 7,440,000 kWh of electricity during the
Year. A 1.7MW photovoltaic system was installed at the roof top of Plaza
4 of CSC Shenzhen, generating 1,620,000 kWh of electricity during the
Year. In respect of water saving, CSC Shenzhen has applied water saving
equipment and facilities, using sensor-activated taps and pedal-enabled
water-saving toilets, which effectively reduced the water usage of the
plazas and public areas within the project.

During the Year, other CSC projects also implemented a number of
energy saving and emissions reduction measures. For instance, in CSC
Harbin, LED Lamps have been adopted in the underground car parks
of Plaza 2 without prejudice to the available illumination, timer setup
for signboard lighting on a seasonal basis, and usage control of the air
conditioning system based on seasonal and outdoor temperature, etc.

In CSC Hefei, The PV-LED photovoltaic lighting system was adopted in the
underground car parks of Plaza 3. In addition, the photovoltaic system
also enabled Phase 4 of the residential buildings and community center to
reduce the emissions of exhaust gas and dust.

Education on Environmental Protection

To make the best use of resources, the Group proactively implemented
Green Office in its daily management and operation. Employees have
been educated on energy saving and environmental protection to boost
their environmental awareness. They have also been encouraged to
protect the environment by managing office supplies consumption, water
and energy saving, workflow simplification and paper reduction.

Civilized Construction

Highly attentive to the impact on the environment and communities
during its project development, the Group strictly complies with applicable
laws and regulations on environmental protection. The Group has
formulated civilized construction standards, including the “Construction
Sites Safety and Civilized Construction Standard of China South City”
CERBEERITRSZ2HBEIEERIZF®E)) and the “Construction
Project Safety and Civilized Construction Evaluation Methods of China
South City (Trial)” (EERBIER TI2L 2 XABIHENEIDE(FTT))),
in order to advocate civilized and green construction and strive to establish
a better business environment in a more environmental-friendly manner.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIB - HFHEERRE (B)

In respect of managing exhaust gas and dust pollution, green
management has taken place at construction sites. Cement and other
construction materials which are easily blown into the air are sealed and
stored; and construction waste is discharged and transported through
special airtight refuse passages or containers. Construction sites are also
equipped with enclosed waste stations where construction waste and
domestic waste are classified and stored.

In respect of managing sewage discharge, sedimentation tanks have
been built at the cleaning space for concrete carrier vehicles for diversion
of rain, sewage and wastewater from construction sites. Sewage goes
through technical treatment before being reclaimed. The remainder of
processed water is discharged into municipal sewage pipelines or recycled
for greening and road flushing. Oil, thinner and paint at construction sites
must be placed in storage rooms whose ground must have received anti-
seepage treatment to prevent any groundwater pollution.

In respect of managing solid waste discharge, the Group requires the
constructor to timely remove the solid waste generated during its
construction process and, utilize or dispose of such wastes according to
regulations. Wastes are packed by bag, regularly collected by property
management personnel, put in dumpsters to be sorted in garbage stations
and transported by garbage trucks after sealing treatment, to enhance
the recycling and reuse of construction and demolition wastes during on-
site operations. During the Year, a total of approximately 60,000 cubic
meters of construction and renovation waste materials were cleared and
transported.

In respect of environmental protection at communities, the Group also
requires its contractors to establish relevant measures to not disturb
residents nearby, with proper prevention of dust, noise and light pollution
as well as traffic congestion at construction sites so as to further mitigate
the impact on the life of community residents.

Through close cooperation with its suppliers and contractors, the Group
seeks to provide its customers with high-quality products and services. All
employees are required to comply with the Group’s anti-bribery and anti-
corruption policies at all times to prevent violating laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIB - HFHEERRE (B)

Supply Chain Management

The Group values product quality and cost control, with most of its
procurement going through a tendering process. The Group implements
a series of unbiased, fair, just and transparent tendering processes and a
supervisory mechanism, to ensure the quality of its products and services
as well as professionalism during the performance of agreements. In
selecting contractors, the Group also takes into account a contractor’s
environmental awareness and social responsibility. The number of
suppliers for the Group by geographical region during the Year is detailed
as follows:

Number of suppliers by region
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Number of suppliers by nature
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The main suppliers selected by China South City are the subsidiaries of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation, one of the world’s
top-500 enterprises and a large state-owned enterprise with good labor
safety and welfare management.

Product Liabilities

Apart from developing properties, the Group actively cultivates the market
in order to provide a favorable business environment for its tenants. In
this regard, the Group values the advice and suggestions from its tenants
and seeks to communicate with them through different channels. During
the Year, the Group further refined the implementation rules of customer
satisfaction surveys for its regional subsidiaries. The Group can learn the
extent of customer satisfaction of China South City in respect of product
planning and design, construction quality, business operation, property
management and customer service through customer satisfaction surveys.
Accordingly, specific targets are set, to drive the continuous improvement
of management and services, so as to raise customer satisfaction and
loyalty. According to the “Complaint Management and Handling Control
Procedure of the Group (Third Edition)” (5B E 182 M ERIBIEHITE 7 )
(82 =HR)), general complaints would be concluded within two working
days from the date of acceptance.

In addition, along with business development, the Group has successively
set up departments or chambers of commerce at its project companies
to serve tenants, with the goal of building a platform for effective
communication and to enhance mutual understanding and trust between
China South City and our tenants.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIB - HFHEERRE (B)

Regarding the protection of customer information and privacy, the Group
uploads its customers’ personal information to the CRM System, and
assigns special personnel to be responsible for the use of CRM accounts.
Any access to such information must go through a multi-level approval
procedure.

In respect of product quality control, the Group’s business management
division organizes regular “product safety trainings” to promote the
national laws and regulations on quality control. The Group also invites
quality control authorities for regular sampling inspection.

As more and more CSC projects are put into operation, safety
management has become an important part of the Group’s development.
During the Year, the Group continued to intensify its fire safety and
prevention management, with the formulated “China South City Manual
of Fire Safety and Prevention System and Standards”. The specialists of the
Production Safety Supervision and Management Office also participates
in safety-related work such as project planning, blueprint design,
construction, inspection and acceptance as well as fire safety; the project
unit organizes regular safety inspections which engages the first parties of
projects, supervisors and the constructor; the construction unit organizes
a safety inspection on a monthly basis; and the construction management
center of the Group organizes a routine inspection each quarter with
special inspections, to apply the implementation rules throughout project
operation. During the Year, China South City, together with the armed-
police and fire department, promoted fire safety knowledge and training
to the employees, tenants and residents, and held joint fire drills with
fire authorities during which participants were introduced to the use of
firefighting equipment, firefighting methods, precautions against safety
hazards and self-rescue knowledge.

Professional Ethics

The Group strictly prohibits any acts of bribery and corruption during
its business operation. The staff handbook applicable to the Group
is prepared in accordance with national laws and regulations, and
ethical requirements of the industry, to regulate any abuse of power,
malpractice, bribery and corruption. In order to raise all employees’ sense
of abiding the law and further foster a clean culture of enterprise, and
intensify the anti-corruption education in China South City, the Group
successively conducted “Education and Trainings on Observing Discipline
and Law"” in the eight projects during the Year, in which more than 1,800
employees participated. For proper risk prevention, the Group has set up
the mailboxes and phone number for collecting public complaints and
reporting at each subsidiary. All the complaints and reporting are handled
and investigated by dedicated personnel from the Group's customer
service center or risk control center after receiving and categorizing
the cases. If criminal behavior is involved in the reported case, it will be
referred to the police. During the Year, there was no litigation case related
to corruption.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIB - HFHEERRE (B)

The business operation of China South City is closely related to
community development. Over the years, the Group, actively engaged in
community charity affairs and well aware of its responsibility in community
development, has been striving to create demand within the communities
where the Group's operations are located and make contribution to their
sustainable development.

Charity Donations

The Group cares about the society where its projects are located and
made an aggregate charitable donation of approximately HK$9.75 million
to various charitable organizations during the Year. China South City cares
people’s livelihood, poverty relief, disaster relief, environmental protection,
education, medical assistance, care for children and other charitable
causes.

During the Year, the major donations made by China South City included:

1. Red Cross education against poverty in Feixi County

2. The launch of “Love and Caring to Disabled Children” donation

3. Donation to Mengqging County

4. Donation to Guodian County

5. Donation to Zhengzhou University

6.  Co-fundrasing activity for Guangdong and Guangxi Provinces
7.  Cardboard donation to schools in Nanning

8.  Donation for passageway repairs in Xieshan Village, Meitong Town,
Putling City
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HSHEERRE (&)

Cultural and Recreational Activities

1.

CSC Shenzhen — “The First Staff” knowledge contest
YR B TAERRE

CSC Shenzhen - The First Staff Knowledge Contest

In response to the Group’s and its major decision on enhancing
fire safety control, and create a conducive learning atmosphere for
employees and establish solid awareness of regulations and safety,
the First Staff Knowledge Contest took place in CSC Shenzhen
on 17 August 2018. The contest is designed to help employees to
further study the Employee Handbook and the Fire Safety Manual,
while alleviating their work pressure and creating a lively working
atmosphere.

Serving the Community

1.

A Tree-planting Volunteer Activity by CSC Zhengzhou

On the morning of 2 March 2019, volunteer employees of CSC
Zhengzhou conducted a tree-planting activity at Longhu Town,
Xinzheng City to enhance green awareness, the sense of social
responsibility among employees and bring “green” along the
Zhengzhou-Yaoshan Expressway.
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Products from the poverty-stricken village on hotsale
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Environmental Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRIE - HRHEERRE (B)

2019 Spring Festival Product Exhibition by CSC Nanning to
Help Huanan Village with Poverty Alleviation

Huanan Village is one of the administrative villages of Yan’an Town,
Jiangnan District, Nanning City, and one of the poverty-stricken
villages under priority support by the autonomous region. In January
2019, CSC Nanning presented free booth for Huanan Village to
sell their renowned local specialties such as oranges during the 11-
day “2019 Spring Festival Product Exhibition” of CSC Nanning.
Such products were well-received among citizens. CSC Nanning
will leverage its own development resources and advantages to
intensively work on poverty alleviation by pairs for Huanan Village,
and contribute to the nationwide poverty relief campaign.

2018 “Wonderful Life ¢ Cultural Practice”, a Charity
Performance by CSC Shenzhen

2018 "Wonderful Life e Cultural Practice,” a charity performance
was successfully held at CSC Shenzhen on the afternoon of 29
December 2018. The event was embraced by the audience enjoying
lively music. The activity was organised by Longgang District Cultural
and Sports Tourism Bureau, and co-hosted by Longgang District
Cultural Center Management Office and CSC Shenzhen, to allow
citizens to experience music culture. While continuously popularizing
fine art and realizing cultural synergy among regions, the event
was welcomed by citizens with enjoyment and made positive
contribution to the work of benefitting people through culture.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A% E R

-
EY::

To the members of China South City Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China South
City Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 136 to 288, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B AHENRE ()

Key audit matters (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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Fair values of investment properties

As of 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of investment properties was
HK$52,464,934,000. Fair value gains on investment properties amounted
to HK$2,793,403,000 which accounted for 51.95% of profit before
tax of the Group. The Group engaged an external valuation expert to
perform valuations of the Group’s investment properties to estimate their
fair values as at 31 March 2019. The fair values of investment properties
were determined principally using the income capitalization method by
capitalizing the rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due provisions for the reversionary income potential of the properties.
The determination of application of the valuation technique, future rental
income and rented rate involved significant management judgment and
estimates.

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included evaluating the valuation process and the
independence and expertise of the external valuation expert. We assessed
the related data of the properties as used by the external valuation expert
as inputs for the valuations by comparing to the historical data and
market index. We also involved our valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the valuation methodology and the underlying assumptions
which principally included the market unit rental rate and capitalization
rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B AHENRE ()

Key audit matters (Continued) BREEXSBEE)
Key audit matter BREEZER
Impairment of trade receivable balances FEW B B AR E

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$1,064,890,000. Assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables
involves a high level of management judgment. During the year,
management used a provision matrix to calculate expected credit losses
for receivables. The matrix was initially based on the Group’s historical
default rates, and specific factors that management considered in the
estimation of the rates including the type of customers, ageing of the
balances and recent historical payment patterns. Management then
calibrated the matrix for the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information, such as forecasted economic conditions.

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We evaluated the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls which govern credit control, debt collection and
estimate of expected credit losses (“ECL").

We assessed, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade receivable
ageing report were classified with the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing individual items in the report with the relevant sales invoices.

We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision by:(i) evaluating the
management’s assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by management to form such
estimations, including testing the accuracy of historical default data, and
evaluating whether the historical loss rates were appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-looking information
and (iii) examining the actual losses recorded during the current financial
year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B AHENRE ()

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B AHENRE ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B AHENRE ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B AHENRE ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is TJEN Michael.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

26 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBRmK

Year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE201943 8318 ILFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P s FAET FAET
Revenue WA 5 10,274,255 9,405,370
Cost of sales $HE R AN (5,834,661) (5,336,191)
Gross profit EF 4,439,594 4,069,179
Other income and gains HAb WA Rz 804,061 856,965
Fair value gains on investment properties wEMENFERE 2,793,403 4,378,474
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAX (666,069) (680,691)
Administrative expenses TE R (1,129,949) (1,216,023)
Other expenses Hibfx (333,407) (329,668)
Finance costs BhE AR 7 (530,858) (294,771)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AR E 6 5,376,775 6,783,465
Income tax expenses Frisfif 10 (2,133,661) (2,281,133)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEFE 3,243,114 4,502,332
Attributable to: B
Owners of the parent ISYNCIE YN 3,250,962 4,511,679
Non-controlling interests PR i A (7,848) (9,347)
3,243,114 4,502,332
EARNINGS PER SHARE BERESRAREER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ERBEAZ
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BRER 12
Basic R
— for profit for the year — REEFIE HK40.33 centsifli  HK56.35 centsfll
Diluted e
— for profit for the year — REEFE HK40.33 cents’fll  HK56.19 cents&fll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meZEREE

Year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE201943 8318 ILFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEFE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEZFHE 3,243,114 4,502,332
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME H 2w (EE) WA
Other comprehensive (loss)/income R E LR AT eEN R BN
that may be reclassified to profit or loss Hih2mE(E1E), WA -
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign & BINEFKEH
operations bE 5 =58 (3,273,127) 3,776,276
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME ~ Z&FERRTI%
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Hit2mE(E8R) KA (3.273,127) 3,776,276
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME ~ AREEMAZME (EE), WA
FOR THE YEAR (30,013) 8,278,608
Attributable to: THNE T ELL
Owners of the parent SARER A (9,480) 8,271,536
Non-controlling interests JEFERS RS (20,533) 7,072
(30,013) 8,278,608
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

31 March 2019
201943 H31H

31 March 2018
20183 H31H

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BaE FET FHET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NM&E 13 1,400,177 1,749,787
Investment properties WEMZE 14 52,464,934 48,135,043
Properties under development BRAYE 15 979,151 3,451,245
Prepaid land lease payments Rt HES 16 1,328,747 1,449,228
Goodwill RS 17 49,111 34,128
Investments in associates REEL N RRIRE 18 - 142,112
Financial assets at fair value through BiEBRARATEEZ

profit or loss TRIEE 19 12,965 =
Available-for-sale investments AHBESRIRE 19 - 138
Other long-term receivables Hib RHEjfEL R IE 20 21,904 15,684
Deposits paid for purchase of BE P AERYEST

land use rights and property MiR&E 21 31,740 1,149,909
Deferred tax assets RIS E 36 3,578,802 3,139,824
Total non-current assets M EELLE 59,867,531 59,267,098
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Properties held for finance lease FEREMEME 22 295,545 333,514
Properties held for sale FEHEME 22 39,155,078 38,108,017
Inventories =& 23 133,427 177,095
Trade receivables FEUE Z BRI 24 1,064,890 1,185,378
Contract assets BHEE 26 99,621 =
Prepayments, other receivables and AR FIE - At ERRIER

other assets HEtmEE 25 2,847,730 1,613,206
Financial assets at fair value through FBBERUATEYERE

profit or loss CREE 19 283,368 205,966
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash & NS EBY NI RFIIFE 27 9,359,772 10,655,692
Total current assets MENEERE 53,239,431 52,278,868
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMFER A 28 15,729,226 22,807,754
Contract liabilities aHaE 29 13,655,066 =
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SESRITREMESE 30 8,778,903 7,098,504
Short-term notes PSECEEESS 31 = 625,100
Senior notes BRERE 32 2,314,682 -
Medium-term notes FREfZE 33 2,459,903 2,622,149
Corporate bonds EEH 34 562 1,978,294
Domestic company bonds BARAMES 35 1,733,161 3,789,933
Tax payables FEfBiE 4,202,083 4,988,314
Total current liabilities mENAEERE 48,873,586 43,910,048
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 4,365,845 8,368,820
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥EHABRRBEE 64,233,376 67,635,918
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

AR IR AR ()

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

31 March 2019
201943 H31H

31 March 2018
201843 A31H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

BaE FET FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITERHEMES 30 8,959,775 8,999,701
Senior notes BRER 32 10,017,690 9,230,272
Medium-term notes hERZ 33 - 2,629,495
Domestic company bonds BAARIES 35 - 1,854,236
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIEAE 36 9,106,084 8,521,460
Total non-current liabilities JEmMEBBERTE 28,083,549 31,235,164
Net assets BEFE 36,149,827 36,400,754
EQUITY Em
Equity attributable to owners of the parent [SYNCIE ZE PN Ay o
Share capital [N 37 7,222,312 7,060,973
Other reserves H 39 28,768,281 29,157,371

35,990,593 36,218,344
Non-controlling interests eI 159,234 182,410
Total equity e 36,149,827 36,400,754
CHENG CHUNG HING ZR+A 8 ZHAO LIDONG # ¥ 3R
Director &%= Director &%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREEIR

Year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE201943 8318 ILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAER
Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share surplus option  fluctuation Capital Revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EE BRE ES Bf FER
BE  BHER #E  RBRE  ERRE #E RENE 3t BE  REEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
lif3 T T T T T ThT T T T ThT
Note (i)
k()

At 1 April 2017 R201754A18 7054362 1,591,047 169,245  (1,466,215)  (275,841) 286,456 20,939,200 28,298,254 181,137 28,479,391
Profit for the year RERRE - - - - - - 4511679 4511679 (9347) 4502332

Other comprehensive income for the year: REEEMZENA

Exchange differences on translation of BEBNETHN

foreign operations ERZR = = - 3,759,857 = = - 3,759,857 16419 3776276
Total comprehensive income for the year TEEB2ANA - - - 3759857 - - 4511679 8271536 7072 8,278,608
Disposal of subsidiaries REMEAT - (371) - 1579 - - - 1,208 (5,799) (4,591)
Exercise of share options EERE 37 6,611 - (1,014) - - - - 5,597 - 5,597
Lapse of share options BIREAN - - (7,501) = = = 7,501 = = =
Equity-settled share option arrangements IEREENBRELRS 38 - - 42,065 - - - - 42,065 - 42,065
Final 2017 dividend paid BR20175 KRS - - - - - - (400316)  (400,316) - (400,316)
Transfer from retained profits EREREHE - 035 - - - - (411,039 - - -
At 31 March 2018 R201853A318 7060973 2,001,711 202,795* 2,295,221* (275841 286,456* 24,647,029* 36,218,344 182,410 36,400,754
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
e EER(E)

Year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE201943 8318 ILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERARE
Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share surplus option  fluctuation Capital Revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EE BRE Ed Efy FER

R BHEE R RBEE EAEE i RENE @it B EHEE
Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
i3 TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Note (i)
k()

At 1 April 2018 R2018E4A1R 7060973 2,001,711 202,795 2,295221 (275,841) 286,456 24,647,029 36,218,344 182,410 36,400,754

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RNE B BHE LR
FBi V8 = = = = = - (450 (4450) - (M50

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15 FaEAREREER
E3LS ivd 7 - = = = = = 58,366 58,366 - 58,366
At 1 April 2018 (restated) W2018F4A 1R (REF) 7,060,973 2,001,711 202,795  2,295221 (275841) 286,456 24,660,945 36,232,260 182,410 36,414,670
Profit for the year RERERE - - - - - - 3250962 3250982 (7,848) 3,243,114

Other comprehensive income for the year: REEEM2ARA :

Exchange differences on translation of BERINEHN
foreign operations EXZR - - - (3.260442) - - - (3260442) (12,685 (3273127
Total comprehensive income for the year KEBHZAERA - - - (3,260,442 - - 3250962 (9,480) (20533) (30,013)
Disposal of subsidiaries RENBAR = (1523 = (6,119) = = = (7642) (905) (8547)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RHEAR 40 - - - - - - - - (6,401) (6,401)
Capital contribution from a non-controlling —(EERRERA

shareholder ERHE - - - - - - - - 4,663 4,663
Scrip dividend MRS 37 161,339 - - - - - (161,339 = = =
Lapse of share options BREXN - - (55,569) - - - 55,569 - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements NEREENBRERS 38 = = 14,595 = = = = 14,595 = 14,595
Final 2018 dividend paid BR018ERERE = = = = = - (2391400 (239,140) - (239140
Transfer from retained profits ERERBFE - 595,308 - - - - (595308) - - -
At 31 March 2019 R201953A318 7222312 259549 161821%  (971,340)F  (275,841)*  286,456* 26,971,689* 35,990,593 159,234 36,149,827

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of  * ZERBEORGEVBMRAXRMANGES H
HK$28,768,281,000 (31 March 2018: HK$29,157,371,000) in the 1, 5% 1% 28,768,281,000 /& 7t (2018 F£3 A 31 B
consolidated statement of financial position. 29,157,371,000%7T) °

Note: FfsE :

(i) In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the Company’s subsidiaries ()  BEFBEDEE - A2 T H A B9 E A RZE

registered in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory FEAEHREFNB(CRETCABEFERBBR)N
profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses) to the statutory surplus 10% 1 N ETE BERGEE - %f?ﬁ{%ﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁLﬁﬁﬁﬁ
reserve. When the balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s ﬂﬁﬁ$ﬂ’]50%ﬂ% CAINEERETHEABAERS
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus ﬁ‘?ﬁﬁﬁT%E"?ﬁiﬁiﬂ&irﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁ“ﬂﬂﬁ$ ES
reserve can be utilized to offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital. OEERBBEMNMEEZER B BNERVARD J\
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at %ﬁ%%ﬁé%ﬁiﬂﬂ%leiﬂ'UZS‘Vo °

a minimum of 25% of the registered capital after such usages.

Annual Report 2018/19 £f

141



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERETMER

Year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE201943 8318 ILFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3831ALEE
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i FEx TR
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRERE
Profit before tax BRI 5,376,775 6,783,465
Adjustments for: .
Finance costs & pk AR 7 530,858 294,771
Interest income FEWA 5 (89,240) (77,945)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, BREWME  BEKXEEE
plant and equipment BB () 6 1,077 (113)
Depreciation e 6 140,239 130,309
Amortization of prepaid land lease payments B RS 6 34,087 28,269
Changes in fair value of investment properties BENEATEE 5 (2,793,403) (4,378,474)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWE BB E R 6 86,115 112,134
Provision for impairment of goodwill EERERE 6 134,228 =
Provision for impairment of AHEESRIEE
available-for-sale investments ERE 6 - 175,500
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BRENB AR 5 (24,515) (1,142)
Loss on redemption of the senior notes BEELREEE 5 = 89,876
Gain on repurchase of the senior notes ERELERE 2 ME 5 (94,607) =
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets at FBBERARNTETIRZ
fair value through profit or loss, net CREENATEMWE),
B8 - R 5 (1,003) 4,461
Dividend income from financial assets at BERBHURFESRZ
fair value through profit or loss SREENRERA (3,261) =
Equity-settled share option expense A G E I IR E R 6 14,595 42,065
3,311,945 3,203,176
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for BIEMEHRE MHEME
finance lease and sale w,/(3Ehn) 1,783,520 (345,051)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLD/(1Em) 31,712 (24,597)
Increase in other long-term receivables E £ 2R W BORE N (7,279) (8,883)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEUE S ERFR (1), R (104,505) 75,107
Increase in contract assets BHEELMN (27,054) -
Increase in prepayments, TR FRIE - E AU RIE &
other receivables and other assets Hih &N (1,351,761) (420,124)
Increase in contract liabilities BHABEEM 3,648,438 -
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash RERHE S M), wm (1,140,069) 285,721
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E A e sRIELE N 3,085,945 2,721,755
Cash generated from operations KEFTERIR G 9,230,892 5,487,104
Overseas taxes paid ERESIFIE (2,074,498) (1,543,899)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBHRSRAFE 7,156,394 3,943,205
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

GeRanak(E)

Year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE201943 8318 ILFE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3831ALEE
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i TR FHET
Net cash flows from operating activities KERBRSRNFHE 7,156,394 3,943,205
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHRERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BEE¥¥ « MENREER 13 (111,283) (50,342)
Dividends received from financial assets at BRBEE AN FETERZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEDBRE 3,261 -
Net cash outflow on purchase/disposal of FERBEEUAFETERZ
financial assets at fair value through BE RESHEERS
profit or loss transactions R FEML (103,131) (210,431)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, BREDE  BEMEEEER
plant and equipment FriS 708 6,616 34,058
Proceeds from increase in minority interests LR D BR R E a 4,663 =
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment BE - ELRIRE - (126)
Increase in amounts due from associates JE M= A B N = (50,654)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —RHB AR 40 1,855 =
Cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal of REMBARRESREA (RL)
subsidiaries, net FHE 41 25,647 (11,805)
Deposits paid for purchase of land use rights and BB E T b R R E A
property R (48,951) (1,133,019)
Additions to properties under development BEBYERNE (3,376,973) (3,613,317)
Interest received BUFI B 89,240 74,654
Net cash flows used in investing activities KE TR LML FHE (3,509,056) (4,960,982)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE
Issue of short-term notes BITRARES - 1,163,784
Payment for interest on short-term notes R E SRR (28,027) (97,686)
Repayment of short-term notes ERERES (614,885) (2,016,970)
Issue of senior notes BITEERE 32 3,449,469 4,149,512
Payment for interest on senior notes BEZEFNERH 32 (708,755) (318,825)
Redemption of the senior notes BEELRE = (1,568,994)
Repurchase of the senior notes Bl EERE 32 (411,432) =
Repayment of domestic company bonds BRBERAREIES 35 (3,497,400) =
Payment for interest on medium-term notes PEIE R A SR 33 (348,574) (352,581)
Payment for interest on corporate bonds REEFMERMRK 34 (122,409) (123,816)
Redemption of corporate bonds BEIMEES 34 (1,866,186) =
Repayment of medium-term notes EERHEE 33 (2,352,443) -
Payment for interest on domestic company bonds BN AMESF SRR 35 (320,945) (324,633)
New bank and other borrowings HESRIT REMER 9,853,446 9,612,905
Repayment of bank and other borrowings ERRTRAMER (7,304,845) (8,428,673)
Exercise of share options Srdi e = 5,597
Dividends paid DI R (239,140) (400,316)
Interest paid BAFLE (1,041,510) (841,138)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities RETERESGRY) /RAERE (5,553,636) 458,166
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBRSEENRDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,906,298) (559,611)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year FNRE RREEEY 27 8,204,333 8,022,020
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net =SB &5 (364,203) 741,924
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF FXAKNRERBELZEEY
YEAR 5,933,832 8,204,333
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERASEBENERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 27 5,933,832 8,204,333
Annual Report 2018/19 i

143



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE R AR MY RE

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

1. Corporate and Group Information
China South City Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Room 2205, 22/F, Sun Life Tower, The
Gateway, 15 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
development and operation of large-scale integrated logistics and
trade centers, development of residential and commercial ancillary
facilities, property management and the provision of E-commerce,
outlet operations, logistics and warehousing services.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Nominal value of

RERAEEER
EEFERARAA (AT EESEMRL
AERAT - AAREMP ERAINEENE
R ERE1SHERA B KBS RAE221E
2205% °

FA - ARBREME AR (S AEER DR
NEERIELERIVEAMREERR ST
REBEBELERE MEEEAREHRETRD
g BERENEE - MRRR RS o

B2 R E R
AARNEENBAR BT -

Place of issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share  Date of Percentage of equity
registration and capitalasat  incorporation/ attributable to the
Name business 31 March 2019 registration Company  Principal activities
21 AR/ R R019%3A318  EMEL/ ARERE  TEER
FEng BRTEE/AR  ERAS BEASML
RAEE
Direct Indirect
B BB
% %

China South International Industrial Materials City The People’s Republic HK$2,200,000,000 18 December 2002 100 - Development and operation of
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (ii(iv) of China (“PRC")/ 2,200,000,000&  18-12-2002 integrated logistics and trade centers
("China South International”) Mainland China GREEMTRERR AT

EHARTERARRANVER 2 A) B/ EARE RERES
([EmER)

Nanchang China South City Company PRC/Mainland China Renminbi ("RMB") 16 November 2007 - 100 Development and operation of
Limited (i)iv) ("CSC Nanchang") PE/ AR 1,100,000,000  16-11-2007 integrated logistics and trade centers

BEZEIARARNN (HEZ@%]) ARH1,100,000,0007 GARENRRARRSTL

HEREE

Nanning China South City Company PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 28 August 2009 - 100 Development and operation of

Limited (ii)(v) (" CSC Nanning") P8/ wEARE AKH1,000,0000007C  28-08-2009 integrated logistics and trade centers

BEERPERARNW (REEEE])

BRBEMANARR ST
RELES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B ER AR ML ()

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

1.

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

1. RERAEEER®)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER @)
Nominal value of
Place of issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share  Date of Percentage of equity
registration and capitalasat  incorporation/ attributable to the
Name business 31 March 2019 registration Company  Principal activities
&1 AL/ R R019%3A318  EMEL/ ARFRE  FEER
Bend BRALE/HR  HRAK BERADY
RAEE
Direct  Indirect
ER  BE
% %
Xi"an China South City Company Limited (il PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 12 November 2009 - 100 Development and operation of
ERZBmAARAR) R/ RE AR AR%1,000,000,000C  12-11-2009 integrated logistics and trade centers
GARENRRARZS T
HEREE
Harbin China South City Company Limited (i PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 9 January 2012 - 100 Development and operation of
KRB EHARA () PE/wE AR AEH1,500,000,000%  09-01-2012 integrated logistics and trade centers
FEBEMRRERZZTL
RERES
Harbin Baolitong Market Development PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 22 December 2011 = 100 Development and operation of
Management Company Limited i) /R B AR ARH500,000000  22-12-2011 integrated logistics and trade centers
RREENATEREERAR R AN FRBEMRRERZZTL
REREE
Zhengzhou China South City Company PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 17 May 2012 = 100 Development and operation of
Limited (ii)(iv) ("CSC Zhengzhou") P/ R EARE ARH1,000,000,0007T  17-05-2012 integrated logistics and trade centers
HEEEER i) FABENRRARRG T
(&=l FEREE
Hefei China South City Company Limited (i)(iv) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000,000 25 December 2012 = 100 Development and operation of
("CSC Hefei") e/ hEARE AEE1,2000000000  25-12-2012 integrated logistics and trade centers
AEERARAA) ) REBEMRRERRZRL
G =00 RERES
Chongging China South City Company PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 27 December 2013 - 100 Development and operation of
Limited (iiiv) (" CSC Chongging”) T/ hEAR AK1,000,000,000  27-12-2013 integrated logistics and trade centers

ERERIRRARW)
([EEEmS)

GRBEMRRARR ST
RERES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

1.

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

1. RERAEEER®)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER @)
Nominal value of
Place of issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share  Date of Percentage of equity
registration and capitalasat  incorporation/ attributable to the
Name business 31 March 2019 registration Company  Principal activities
&1 AL/ R R019%3A318  EMEL/ ARRELE  TEEE
BEn BRALE/HR  HRAK BEASM
RAEE
Direct  Indirect
ER  BE
% %
Shenzhen Huasheng Commercial Development PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000/ 19 November 2010 - 100 Management of outlet operations
Company Limited (i) R/ RE AR RMB100,000,000  19-11-2010 AR5 EEER
A EEERERARD i) ARH#50,000,0007,/
AR#100,000,0007
Shenzhen China South City E-Commerce Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 19 April 2012 = 100 Development, operation and
Company Limited (i) PE/wE AR ARH100,0000007T  19-04-2012 management of an E-commerce
RYEEH AR AR L) platform
STHETARE EERER
Shenzhen First Asia Pacific Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 31 December 2003 - 100 Provision of property management
Company Limited (i) P8/ wEARE AR#50,000,000C  31-12-2003 services
MIE-TANEERERAT) RENFERRH
Qianlong Logistics Group Limited (ii) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,003,000,000 2 July 2004 = 100 Provision of logistics services
LRI EEARA i) hE/hEAR AR1,003,00000070  02-07-2004 SRS
Shenzhen HOBA Home Furnishing Chain Store PRC/Mainland China RMBA480,000,000 12 October 2001 = 75 Furnishing market operation
Company Limited (i) PE/wE AR AFEH480,000,0007  12-10-2001 FERHES

AT B EREERRG R AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3

1.

AR MR ()

1 March 2019 201943A31H

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

1. “1&4(%!%!6}( &)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER @)
Nominal value of
Place of issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share  Date of Percentage of equity
registration and capitalasat  incorporation/ attributable to the
Name business 31 March 2019 registration Company  Principal activities
&1 AL/ R R019%3A318  EMEL/ ARFRE  FEER
BEn BRALE/HR  HRAK BEASM
RAEE
Direct  Indirect
ER  BE
% %
China South City Management Company Hong Kong HK$T 9 November 2007 = 100 Provision of management services
Limited & 1L 09-11-2007 RHEBRY
EENERARAT
China South City Group Company Limited (ji) PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 20 July 2004 - 100 Investment holding
EBHEEAR A hE/PEAR AR¥300,0000007T  20-07-2004 RERR
Chongging Zhenzhong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 24 May 2016 = 100 Development and operation of
Development Company Limited (i) T/ hEAR ARM50,000000  24-05-2016 residential and commercial ancillary

ERRPRHERZERLH)

AREEEREHSRES

Notes:

(i) Sino-foreign equity joint ventures under PRC law.
(i)~ Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.
(i) Limited companies under PRC law.

(iv)  Pursuant to certain project and land related contracts signed by
the subsidiaries of the Group and the local governments, as well
as pursuant to the requirements of the local governments and the
local authorities related to the relevant public tender, auction and
listing, some parcels of the land acquired have sales restrictions on
properties built on them. The saleable area of trade centers of China
South International is limited to 30% of the total buildable gross floor
area (“GFA") of properties built on the relevant parcels of land. The
saleable area of trade centers and logistics facilities built on certain
parcels of land acquired by CSC Nanchang and CSC Nanning in 2010
is limited to 60% of the relevant total buildable GFA. The saleable
area of trade centers or commercial properties built by CSC Hefei and
CSC Chongging is limited to 50% of their relevant total buildable
GFA. The saleable area of trade centers or commercial properties of
phase | and future phases of CSC Zhengzhou is limited to 60% and
50% respectively of the relevant total buildable GFA. Except for the
restrictions mentioned herein, there is no sales restriction on the parcels
of land acquired by the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

BifaE

iy HEERETHRIEELERT] -
(i) FEDERETHINGBERE

(i)  FEEFETHERAR

(iv) REBEAREENEAREEBETRR A THE
KL iAmAaR t/{&ﬁﬁ%ié?imﬁﬁ(ﬂ%‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁlﬁ*ﬁ

RARRFIM S B3R - B0 IR B MR aEHE
PR - &?ﬁ%f‘ilﬂ”*ﬁ%ﬁmiﬁiﬁ%&%qﬂME’]T

SHEMBERN B A EEEEEBERIZ0%  FEER
AR EEE RN 2010FRENET it &
FEZHR P OLRERRMEN A HEBERL
ZEMEGTEEEEENG0% « AEERE &
ERERPEROR ST ONEEDENAHEE
ERRRZEMERAEEEEENS0%  EM
ERPERN —HRABR SO SR O EE
%%MT%%EF“mRF&%%%@TL@
A TEHI60% K& 50% ° B Lt iER 2o - AEE
Ky L8 A SHER I ©

ERRFITIAR Tm§$u%§$¢7%%ﬁé
FEIBRASEEEFETESR N ZAR
MEAR - EERAEREEMHEAR TZ%%%

BRI ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
dates on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZRGR A 7

1 REEE

ZEPBHRRIBBEE LS IS (RS
BAE )R EBM RS EN ([ FEMER
SEA D (BT BEMBEEMBREEL &
BEFHER([FEGTER]) kEE)  FER
REHRUREBRAARPIZ R EMRE - Wi
ESERAEREL - R EME LB BIERIARF
Bz ERMEER A THEAERRI - RRH
FEASN - U FBBRRIAEITES - FTARES
EMERAEZSEA TS -

meERE

GO IRERRIEASEEE2019F3A31H1E
FENMBRE - MEBRAR AR R EENMEE
THOEE(BEEREER) EXAEEASR
ZHESEREHSRERMEBHAEEER - BrEFE
BEREHRMEN (N TAEEBREENE
BINEH SRR RS TER) FEZERIR
B+ BDERISIEHIHE -

HARRERAEEEELNEREHRAZEHN
SEHBLEN - AIREERFTEERSHEA Y
REHRNENE  @ER—VABIERS
o B

(a) HEREBEHREMBEHEANGLLH

(b) EAbaHZHPIELNERN @ &
@ AEBENKREELEERTE -

KB AR ERR Tt A R RIER e RS B
RIS — BT BERER - B ARMEER
REERGEREE ARGAFTE - Y SHEELR
B HERFIEGIERL -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
jﬁ%#&% BTT CII ( /nﬁ )

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

1 RO

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognizes
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

SEEEE

B e bR LR AR - 1Bk

ﬁﬂzﬁ”&)&ﬁﬁ%liﬁmiﬂ TMNEERER $Elt
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers
Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration
Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new
and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified
in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction are modified,
with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an
equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group as the Group does not have any
cash-settled share-based payment transactions and has no
share-based payment transactions with net settlement features
for withholding tax.

China South City Holdings Limited ZERF3HIZRGR A 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

2.2 2 BENEEREE 2)

(Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial (b) BBUBHREELFIFES R T EMN2018
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods F1A1BR BRI FRE AR EE
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all S EREIFESMT E : AR S
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: EEemTASHEENME =[EHH :
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge DEERETE - BRERERSETERE
accounting.

The Group has recognized the transition adjustments against AEE BN 2018F4 A1 H W HIWIIGHE 45
the applicable opening balances in equity at 1 April 2018. BRIEZEE AR - Btk - EEY LB
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated and R WHEERESSSTENFEI5EE
continues to be reported under HKAS 39. o
Classification and measurement DEANFTE
The following information sets out the impacts of adopting AR E RS RAE B 5w E R E 95
HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position, including the HEIEMRRATE  BEAEBER
effect of replacing HKAS 39's incurred credit loss calculations HEAFSFNTEREEEBRRESSE
with HKFRS 9's expected credit losses (“ECLs"). MBI E 30 FTE AR = BB B L -
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39 RIERE L ERE395EREE 2018
and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018 is as FARVBIRBERMBRELERFEIRRE
follows: BUASERETTHIRR AT
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
ERSERE30RHE BENBREEAEIRTE
Re-
Notes Category Amount  dlassification ECL Amount Category
it E5l &8 ENE REGEFE i £l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tan TAn TAn TAT
Financial assets SHEE
Available-for-sale investments MHNESRIE AFS! 138 (138) = = N/A
To: Financial assets 8% FRERALTE {i (138) =
at fair value through profit or loss SR eREE
Other long-term receivables HitREEWZE L8R 15,684 - - 15,684 AC
Trade receivables B 5% il L8R 1,185,378 - (59,267) 1,126,111 AC
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ TfJ3U8 « EttEWFUER L&R 1,190,964 - - 1,190,964 AC
other receivables and other assets AMEERBEN
Financial assets at fair value through BBRERNATESE FVPL 205,966 138 = 206,104 FVPL (mandatory)
profit or loss SREE (Bt
From: Available-for-sale investments Ba: ftnEeRRE 138 - |
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBLEEY L&R 10,655,692 - = 10,655,692 AC
and restricted cash REBHES
13,253,822 - (59,267) 13,194,555
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

2.2 2 BENEEREE 2)

(b) (Continued) (b)y (&)
Classification and measurement (Continued) PENFTEE)
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
EREINEAIE0HHE EANBREEAFIRHE
Re-
Note Category Amount  dlassification ECL Amount Category
it E5l k] ENE REGEFE 8 £l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tan Thn TAn TAT
Other assets EEE
Contract assets AEE (i 77821 - = 77821
Deferred tax assets BLfagE 3,139,824 - 14,817 3,154,641
3,217,645 - 14,817 3,232,462
Total assets BEE 111,623,787 - (44.450) 111,579,337
Finandial liabilities FRAE
Financial liabilties included SREERERES AC 9,705,579 - - 9,705,579 AC
in trade and other payables REMERTET
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3t 81T R EM(EE AC 16,098,205 - - 16,098,205 AC
Senior notes BEER AC 9,230,272 - - 9,230,272 AC
Short-term notes BdAs AC 625,100 - - 625,100 AC
Medium-term notes hHZE AC 5,251,644 - - 5,251,644 AC
Corporate honds PEES AC 1,978,294 - - 1,978,294 AC
Domestic company bonds BRARIER AC 5,644,169 - - 5,644,169 AC
48,533,263 - - 48,533,263
Totalliabilties AfEER 75,145,212 - - 75145212
1 AFS: Available-for-sale investments ! AFS : AT ESRMEERE
2 L&R: Loans and receivables 2 L&R @ BRI fE U R IE
3 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortized cost 3 AC : IR AT E NS R EER SR AE
4 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 FVPL : BB AN EYIR S REE
Notes: et
() The Group has classified its unlisted investments previously () AEBEBHEINSBEAMHEEREDN
classified as available-for-sale investments as financial assets FELETRENEABBIEZARTESEE
measured at fair value through profit or loss as these non-equity ZERMEE  HAAZZIEREREXRBIB
investments did not pass the contractual cash flow characteristics BB ERELEREIENASLNBERE
test in HKFRS 9. FFEOIE o
(i) The gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables and the (i) MIBEBGFTERFEIRTE 28—

contract assets under the column “HKAS 39 measurement
— Amount” represent the amounts after adjustments for the
adoption of HKFRS 15 but before the measurement of ECLs.
Further details of the adjustments for the adoption of HKFRS 15
are included in note 2.2(c) to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2 2 BENESERKE®)

(Continued)

(b)  (Continued) (b) (&)
Impairment BE
The following table reconciles the aggregate opening TREF B RS 399 T M 48 5 E B
impairment allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECL allowances BB E R S B TSR R 0% Ty TE
under HKFRS 9. Further details are disclosed in note 24 to the =B EIEEREITYHE - £ — SEER

financial statements.

BN MK E24 -

Impairment
allowances under ECL allowances
HKAS 39 Re- under HKFRS 9
at 31 March 2018 measurement at 1 April 2018
72018F4H1H
R201853H31H BRnE BT
KinEBast WEZEREIHRT
ZRIZE395% T MEFEREE
AR ERE BHictE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FAT
Trade receivables FEUWE SRR 412,908 59,267 472,175
Impact on retained profits REFBEHE
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on retained profits is as IR AR B ISIRE LR S o9t E R R FIE
follows: 0)=2 -
Retained profits
REFHE
HK$'000
FAT
Retained profits IREF)E
Balance as at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39  FHB &@:1¥E8|5$E395 24,647,029
2018F3 A3 1AM H
Recognition of expected credit losses BB IERELELFE R T TR (59,267)
for trade receivables under HKFRS 9 EWE ZERFNIESEEEIE
Deferred tax in relation to the above A A _E S| B A IEE R IR 14,817
Balance as at 1 April 2018 under HKFRS 9 SRR EERFEE T 24,602,579
201844 A1 B Y45 R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(0)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognized at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognizing
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgments and estimates. The
disclosures are included in notes 3 and 5 to the financial
statements. As a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with respect to
revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of
initial application or only to contracts that are not completed
at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 April 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 15
was recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance as at
1 April 2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 11, HKAS
18 and related interpretations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 1 April 2018 as a result

of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

2.2 EFBENEEREE (2)

(&)
TSR ERAEEMBREERIE5
SEMEMMN B EMBHKRIAR E20185F4
AIARTZENESE

Increase/
(decrease)
#in, G
Notes HK$'000
BaE FAET
Assets BE
Inventories wE (iii) (3,403)
Prepayments, other receivables TERTHRIE « HMEREIE R A& E (iii) 3,403
and other assets
Properties held for sale FEHE M (i) 133,705
Contract assets BHEE (i) 77,821
Total assets aEE 211,526
Liabilities BE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMFERFRIA (i) (10,597,370)
Contract liabilities EHaE (i) 10,731,075
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEARE (i) 19,455
Total liabilities wafE 153,160
Equity e
Other reserves E A (i) 58,366
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 31 March 2019 and
for the year ended 31 March 2019 as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no impact
on other comprehensive income or on the Group’s operating,
investing and financing cash flows. The first column shows the
amounts recorded under HKFRS 15 and the second column
shows what the amounts would have been had HKFRS 15 not
been adopted:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2019:

2.2 2 BENEEREE 2)

(0)

(&)

LATBE T BRRA T &M SRS %8|
21557 » £2019F3 A31 B A KREZ=2019
FIANHAMEENEHRRAEEZFENS
B HABBMIEMEERFE 155 HA
FEBERAEENLCE RENRBER
CREVELE - F—JBE BBV KR
EHRBEISR T LENEEE - F2IET
KRIRANSE

HZ201973A31 AL FEMBARER -

Amounts prepared under

mESFERE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
EBHE REHZ
%R EBTK #in,
F155% HwEZEA Om2)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BoaE FAT FAT FAT
Revenue 1 ON (i) 10,274,255 10,265,001 9,254
Cost of sales SHERKA (i) (5,834,661) (5,825,407) 9,254
Gross profit EF 4,439,594 4,439,594 =
Selling and distribution expenses  $5& & 7 #5552 (i) (666,069) (693,122) (27,053)
Profit before tax 5 51T AR 5,376,775 5,349,722 27,053
Income tax expenses Friefim Y (i) (2,133,661) (2,126,898) 6,763
Profit for the year AR ZF) 3,243,114 3,222,824 20,290
Attributable to: T &ML
Owners of the parent ISYNEIETZPN 3,250,962 3,230,672 20,290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2 €3 BEXNESERKE @)
(Continued)
(©)  (Continued) (o (#&)

Amounts prepared under

mElSBERE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
EBH® REBZ
WwEZEA EBBK g,
FE 155 HwEZEA Om2)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Earnings per share attributable to 2B A B E @IS
ordinary equity holders of the BEAZBRER
parent
Basic BN
— for profit for the year — AREREFHE HK40.33 cents HK40.08 cents  HKO0.25 cents
40.337%1L 40.0875 11l 0.257%841
Diluted e
— for profit for the year — REEFE HK40.33 cents HK40.08 cents  HKO0.25 cents
40.337 11l 40.087#1L 0.2574l
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March M2019F3A31 A EEARER ¢
2019:
Amounts prepared under
wHESERE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BERMK REHRZ
HwE%ER BB #hn,
F155 2R Om2)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FHET FET FAT
Inventories FE (iii) 133,427 140,133 (6,706)
Prepayments, other YRR - Hib e akia (iii) 2,847,730 2,841,024 6,706
receivables and other assets MEHAMEE
Properties held for sale BEHEMZE (i) 39,155,078 38,459,937 695,141
Contract assets BREE (i) 99,621 = 99,621
Total assets HEE 113,106,962 112,312,200 794,762
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2 i BENEERKE2)

(Continued)
(©)  (Continued) (o (#&)
Amounts prepared under
mElSERE

Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)

EBH® REBZ
HEZEA BERM® g,
F155% HEER Om4)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FAET BT FET
Trade and other payables B 5 NHE A ERFRIR (i), (i) 15,729,226 28,689,151  (12,959,925)
Contract liabilities EREE 0] 13,655,066 = 13,655,066
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIEEE (if) 9,106,084 9,081,179 24,905
Total liabilities BEEEE 76,957,135 76,237,089 720,046
Other reserves H bR (ii) 28,768,281 28,693,565 74,716
Total equity BT 36,149,827 36,075,111 74,716
The nature of the adjustments as at 1 April 2018 and the 2018F4 A1 BHIFAEEIEE 20193 A31
reasons for the significant changes in the consolidated Bir& MBI KR EBE2019F3A311°
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 and the tFEHFEBRRENZHHNEHITI

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 ™

March 2019 are described below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(]
(i)

(Continued)

Sale of properties

In the prior reporting periods, proceeds received from
customers for pre-sold properties were presented as deposits
and receipts in advance included in trade and other payables
and no interest was accrued on the advances received.

Under HKFRS 15, for contracts where the period between
the payments by the customer differs from the transfer of
the promised goods or service, the transaction price and the
amount of revenue from the sales is adjusted for the effects
of a financing component, if significant. The Group concluded
that there is a significant financing component considering
the length of time between the customers’ payment and the
transfer of properties to customers and the prevailing interest
rates in the market. The transaction price is discounted to take
into consideration the significant financing component. The
Group recognized contract liabilities for the interest on the
advances received from customers with a significant financing
component. In addition, reclassifications have been made from
sales deposits received included in trade and other payables
to contract liabilities for the outstanding balance of advances
from customers.

The consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
April 2018 was restated, resulting in recognition of contract
liabilities, increase in properties held for sale and decrease in
sales deposits received included in trade and other payables
amounting to HK$10,731,075,000, HK$133,705,000 and
HK$10,597,370,000, respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, the adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in
an increase in contract liabilities and properties held for sale
amounting to HK$695,141,000. For the year ended 31 March
2019, the adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in an increase in
revenue and cost of sales amounting to HK$9,254,000.

As at 31 March 2019, under HKFRS 15, HK$12,959,925,000
was reclassified from sales deposits received included in trade
and other payables to contract liabilities.

2.2 2 BENEEREE 2)

(0
(i)

()

HEW=
RIBEREME - REEDERRES K
FSFURIZE 5 R AMER TR T RS R
BRFAZTI R E HERBREEF

5 o
B

REFBVHREEAEISH - HAK
TE PN AR B R e 7 mm SR TS B9
HBRETRE - AIXZERREEMERES
ERRELONTE(MER)(EHFE -
AEERE  AERIFFPNREAES
BRMEZRANBERTZE THE - &
BRNBEXN - KHEEMBAUFREXR
BMEMD - AEERAEFAURBMEEE
ABEMOMBRFEERENAE - It
Sh - BEBRM R AENERENE SR
HMEMNRIE T RE MIABGRIAEH 2R
ERMAE-

MN2018F4 A1 BMZE M BMRAKRE K
B - BEEREANAE  SEHEWE
EMEEBESREMENKREBTNEEDE
B Uz 5 Bl 4> 10,731,075,000% 7T
133,705,000/ 7t %.10,597,370,000/8 7T °

M2019F3H31 R - BRMNE B EHE
EABISREBNENBERIBIEHED
¥ EFD R 5695,141,0008 7T - & E
2019F3A31 B ILFE - AERB BB
AR5 BB AU A R ERR A
F+2 B9 59,254,00078 7T

M2019F3A318  IRIBEBH B MESE
AIZE155% - ABREEE S REMENKIE
THEREREESEEANABENERE
7312,959,925,0007 7T.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(]
(i)

(Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Following the adoption of HKFRS 15, sales commissions
directly attributable to obtaining a contract, if recoverable, are
capitalized as contract assets.

The consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 April
2018 was restated, resulting in recognition of contract assets,
increases in other reserves and deferred tax liabilities amounting
to HK$77,821,000, HK$58,366,000 and HK$19,455,000,
respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, the adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in
increases in contract assets, deferred tax liabilities and other
reserves amounting to HK$99,621,000, HK$24,905,000 and
HK$74,716,000, respectively. For the year ended 31 March
2019, the adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in an increase in
income tax expenses and decrease in selling and distribution
expenses amounting to HK$6,763,000 and HK$27,053,000,
respectively.

(iii) Sale of merchandise with variable consideration

Some contracts for the sale of merchandise provide customers
with a right of return. Before adopting HKFRS 15, the Group
recognized revenue from the sale of goods measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and volume rebates. If revenue could not be reliably
measured, the Group deferred the recognition of revenue until
the uncertainty was resolved. Under HKFRS 15, rights of return
give rise to variable consideration which is determined using
the expected value method or the most likely amount method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2 €3 BENESERKE @)
(Continued)
() (Continued) (o (#&)

(iii) Sale of merchandise with variable consideration (iii) BREEN TR BHZE ()

(Continued)

Rights of return

For a contract that provides a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the Group previously
estimated expected returns based on the average historical
return rate. Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the amount
of revenue related to the expected returns was deferred and
recognized as deferred revenue which was included in other
payables and accruals in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. The
initial carrying amount of goods expected to be returned was
included in inventories.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognized a right-
of-return asset which is included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets and is measured at the former
carrying amount of the goods to be returned less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in
the value of the returned goods. In addition, a refund liability
was recognized based on the amount that the Group expects
to return to the customers using the expected value method.
Accordingly, the Group reclassified deferred revenue of
HK$4,199,000 to refund liabilities as included in other payables
and accruals and reclassified inventories of HK$3,403,000
to right-of-return assets as included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets as at 1 April 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, the adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in an
increase in prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
a decrease in inventories by HK$6,706,000. Besides, refund
liabilities were increased by HK$8,273,000 and other payables
and accruals were decreased by HK$8,273,000.

RE#E
HRAEFRHEEETEHRARENER
BEX  NEBEAREBEFHELREER
e MRS - RRATEM RS ER
15581 - EFRHREABHNBRASED
BN HER BRI - G5t AR AT
AR E A SRR BB - AR
FEEHERA - TRHR O KB Y H) P16
RESBETAFE -

RERB BB REERF 155K - &K
SERRBRBEAMNKIE - HERKK
BREMEERHNREEE  WIRNUER
[B] & 5 A9 BR T (BR 2 4R 1B & A 1 1) 78 25
AR 2 - BIEREEYEENEMAEE
WA o LI  RFBBEDNRBAEETEH
FREHEELIRERNEFNESERER - &
It - ANEE I IRE A 4,199,000/ T B
PEARFAE(BEREMEMNZIERE
518 B R E# 5 17 E3,403,000% ) &
REREE - 2EN2018F4A 1B
R - HMEUGRIBE R EMEE -

HZE2019F3A31H - BB B BV B R
AR5 B R TEN R - UG
18 % HAth & 38 0 e 45 R 46,706,0007%
JC ° BESh - IRFREEIE 08,273,000/ 7T -
H fth A5 5RI8 I E R T 5RIER 4>8,273,0007%
T o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
jﬁ%#&% BTT HI ( nlﬁ )

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management'’s intentions for the use of a property
does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the
date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation
where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in
a foreign currency and recognizes a non-monetary asset
or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising
from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. The interpretation has had no impact on the
Group's financial statements as the Group’s accounting policy
for the determination of the exchange rate applied for initial
recognition of non-monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities is
consistent with the guidance provided in the interpretation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

2.3 BIEMAEM 2 BB IR
B

ZRER B A % R RS B A T 51 2R AR 1B

statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation!

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 16 Leases!
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement!
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11

REBZ ] RG] BB SRS 2R
EEUBREER EBHES
Xl H

BN BIREERFR
BENBIREERFE 105
REBEFERE285
(2011 ﬁ)Zﬂ%ET
BENBREERFE 165
BENBREERE TR
BESTEAE 1T RES
SEPERIEH 2 BT
BECHERE195.2
CHI
BECHERFE28H.2
EH)
EE (BT BREHEE
ZEO)REAEEIH
2015F22017F 852

ABRBEZIEFIENE

REZHRBENAZ
BERRZEH
EEHELTE

HE

REEAP

Vit 2

FRIEAET - TR

REZRAREERRZ
KA

FrtEEs TREM

BEMBREENEN &

2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

FRLE EREREENENS F
BEHENE 2R EAE

STERIE23% 2 AT

1 20191 A1 83k 2 & FA 2 F = BRI £
2 7202051 A1 Ak & Fts 2 FEHRE K
3 202141 A1 B8k & FA < F & BRER
4 SRR F LR B - (B IRATERA

B E AN AR BN BB RS
ARG :

A8 e —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 23 EEGEERERZEBMBRELE

164

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at @ minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test
to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 23 EEHEEKRERZEBHBRELE

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognize assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates
to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognize the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognize the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the
standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to
recognize the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 April 2019 and will
not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognized in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial application.
The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on
lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the
date of initial application. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated that right-of-use
assets of HK$120,744,000 and lease liabilities of HK$119,795,000
will be recognized at 1 April 2019.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 23 EEHEERERZEBMBRELE
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Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS
9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture, to which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such
long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment,
which includes the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments on 1 April 2019 and will assess
its business model for such long-term interests based on the facts
and circumstances that exist on 1 April 2019 using the transitional
requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends to apply
the relief from restating comparative information for prior periods
upon adoption of the amendments.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(i) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of
hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative information.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 April 2019.
The interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments
in the associates, except where unrealized losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognized in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.4 ERETBERME 5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and held-for-trading
investments at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 ERETBERME 5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

170

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 ERETBERME 5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
jﬁ%#&% BTT HI ( nlﬁ )

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME (5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

3% to 9%
9% to 18%
9% to 18%

Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
jﬁ%#&% BTT HI ( nlﬁ )

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost comprises the land costs, construction
costs, capitalized borrowing costs and other costs directly attributed
to such properties during the period of construction.

Properties under development are initially classified as non-current
assets and transferred to current assets under the category of
properties held for sale when the construction of the relevant
properties commences and the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete within the
normal operating cycle.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME (%)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalized at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalized finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)"” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME 5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

e  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

BRERHMESmMEE(B2018F4 81
HEBRANEBMKERELEREIR
BUR) ()

BEGE

ERMEBERSPETRETE  2B0OT

BEHERL B EHEE (BHETR)
AT E AT RIRGM » AEEIREHKATTES
BEE

o NKEBAHNRERERENFATREE
ZEBRATHEZEREE -

o TREEZANGRNEEAMELZR
EMBABINAERHRFELASTEL
S o

R E 2 e RMEEERRAERMNIR
SHERAFLRERNR - WaEMERREETH
R - BRSO ER BRI ER o

BAFEGABRHEHEE
BAHEFARSENESREERRBFIEFEENS
BB E LRV R E AR AT E A B
MEREEIRYBREAFEAENERE
E - WEBeREESENEHALEXED -
AEREREEDBRFHERE - ITETARR
ERBRARITETE - BRIFESRERBREH T
B BRITDBEAFERE - BEREBWIFAK
BINARERNSNEREE - HRAFEFA
BREOBIFE(THEEBEN) - BEEKT
EHIRAEIN b Pt i SRR 0 B SR A FERT
AR EEKE - BNt 1TE S ERR AR
D EEHRE - AIEB LAV SRR ER
NFEF AR -

Annual Report 2018/19 4R

177



178

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognized
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
investments, or loans and receivables. When financial assets are
recognized initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME (5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held-for-trading. Financial assets are classified as held-for-
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value presented as other income and gains. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognized in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortization is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held-for-trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses
recognized as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investments revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognized,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss as other income, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale investments revaluation
reserve to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognized in equity is amortized to the statement
of profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortized
cost and the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME (%)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April
2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognizes an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are one year past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME 5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 —Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BA RS AR AL (48D

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME (5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss —
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the statement
of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, short-term notes, senior
notes, medium-term notes, corporate bonds and domestic company
bonds.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
short-term notes, senior notes, medium-term notes, corporate
bonds and domestic company bonds are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the effective interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME (5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts
at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance
with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)"; and (i) the amount
initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognized.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (ii) the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or canceled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties held for sale and held for finance
lease

Properties held for sale and held for finance lease include completed
properties held for sale and held for finance lease and properties
under development expected to be completed within the normal
operating cycle. Properties held for sale and held for finance lease
are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
land costs, all development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realizable
value is determined by reference to the prevailing market prices, on
an individual property basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realizable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 ERETBERME (5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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2.4 ERETBERME (5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual installments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge or over the benefits received by the
Group related to such assets.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognized under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 March 2019 201943 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April
2018) (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognized at the point
in time when the purchaser obtain the physical possession of
the completed property and the Group has a present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.

Property management service, E-commerce, logistics
and warehousing services

Property management service income, E-commerce income,
logistics and warehousing services income are recognized over
time when the services are rendered.

Outlet operations

In outlet operations, revenue from sale of merchandise and
commissions from concessionaire sales is recognized at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

Some contracts for the sale of merchandise provide customers
with rights of return. The rights of return give rise to variable
consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the expected value method
is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because
this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in
HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, a
refund liability is recognized. A right-of-return asset (and the
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognized
for the right to recover products from a customer.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognized on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms.

Finance lease income is recognized when the significant risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the properties have been
transferred to the lessee.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 EAEHBEHME (g)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April
2018) (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April
2018)

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of properties, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the properties sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) finance lease income, when the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the properties have been transferred
to the lessee;

(d) property management service and other income, when the
services have been rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(f) income from outlet operations, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold, or when the services
have been rendered; and

(g) income from E-commerce and the provision of logistics and
warehousing services, when the services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PR IR M (4R

31 March 2019 201943 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Contract assets (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or
an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Right-of-return assets (applicable from 1 April
2018)

A right-of-return asset represents the Group’s right to recover the
goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured
at the former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less
any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential
decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Group updates the
measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected
level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of
the returned goods.

Refund liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)
A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the
consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at
the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 ERETBERME 5)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details
of which are given in note 38 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of
that period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

196

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognized. Where awards include a 